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FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating income increased by approximately HK$78,071,000
and HK$7,028,000 respectively from the growing financial leasing
business and big data business, and increased by approximately
HK$86,284,000 due to consolidation of the operating income of
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as
“Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Ltd.”) (“Tiannuo”) upon
completion of its acquisition by the Group in September 2020. As
most of the remaining units of Shantou Commercial Plaza were
sold last year, making it very unlikely to derive income from sale of
development properties in the year, operating income decreased by
approximately HK$30,378,000. However, the Group still recorded
a significant increase of 82.3% in total revenue from continuing
operations to HK$293,555,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 as a result of the combined effects of the above and other
factors.

Despite the increased profit contribution to the Group from the
development of financial leasing business mentioned above,
the Group saw a significant decline in profit and recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$66,036,000 in the year, representing
a turnaround from profit to loss, because the effective period of
limitation of the payables for convertible notes which became due
in 2007, together with the accrued interest, had lapsed; and one-
off income of approximately HK$78,819,000 were recorded last
year, but there is no such gain for this year; and a loss of disposal
amounting to approximately to HK$39,177,000 and an impairment
loss on other receivables of part of unpaid consideration amounting
to HK$38,033,000 generated in the disposal of 25% interest of
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* were recorded in this year.
In addition, special gain of approximately HK$41,015,000 from
increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were recorded last year, while only increase in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$20,094,000 was recorded this year.
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FINANCIAL LEASING BUSINESS

While the financial leasing business was faced with challenges
and difficulties brought about by the epidemic, the Group
resolutely adhered to its established strategic plans and firmly
followed the path of professionalism in the development of green
environmental protection business, consistently focusing on
municipal environmental protection fields such as solid waste
treatment, sewage treatment and biogas power generation. The
Group carried out a series of inspections on its existing customers to
understand and track the fallout on delayed production resumption
and collection of receivables. Corporate customers were basically
unaffected by the epidemic and asset quality remained good, without
any bad debts so far. In addition, to establish a brand image of
professionalism in green environmental protection business, the
Group officially renamed Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*, a
subsidiary of the Group with specialty in financial leasing, as Canton
Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd.* (“Greengold Leasing”) on 5 June
2020, fully reflecting its strategic goal of becoming a leading financial
leasing company with specialty in environmental protection in China,
and the first product under the green debt financial leasing scheme
was successfully issued in Beijing Financial Assets Exchange on 8
September 2020. Although China’s economy suffered a blow from
the epidemic and the tension of Sino-US relations, and China’s
financial leasing industry faced mounting pressure in respect of risks
related to bad debts, the Group believes that it will be able to remain
committed to professionalism in green environmental protection
business, effectively manage relevant risks, improve various business
and risk management systems, strengthen post-rental management
and achieve solid development results through continuous efforts, as
the demand for financial leasing rises and the impact of the financial
leasing industry on the economy increases with the diversification
of financing models required for China’s economic development,
and as the Chinese government continues to step up its support
for green finance. In the year, the segment recorded an operating
income of approximately HK$158,602,000 and an operating profit
of approximately HK$81,111,000, representing a significant increase
of 96.9% and 128.8% respectively year-on-year. The segment is
expected to become one of the Group’s main sources of profit in the
future.

FEmES
Chairman’s Statement

MEREETR

MEHEXTEH BB T RNEFE
HOANEBBRRLRETHERE BEE
HERFREXECER B BERERERER
ENEKEREVAREEEMBUIRMRAE I
HIREREPET T —R2INHE MELE
BEEREIEERECOEMTIINEE
BRET THRARHY ARNBRRERAFTE
BEE REEEEEER ESKAHRIE
Rollbsh BT HRUSBIRGFEECREE
SOBRIEZIEFAELBRNEBEREM
ENRERERMNMERAEERARIER
ELAaIERgcmBERERRARE (Mg
HE) AOBRAZEMNABAN—NERRE
¥ tREEEQATINHKBER TR
EENBNABRDETIEREMEER SN
HEMEHEACERTIER HATE
BREPEBGRRNEE T PELERES
FE > PEMBEETEERIZERENE
NAEHB EEEFEKEEREMEEN
EEAZRC HREREENERTEN
Ao RMBERETERCHENZENENILE
FEBNSSEESMNZIFNOERE NS
REERAENBRHEBREXZECHE
BEFRBEEIf TSXBEBKAR
EESE MaRARrEE RETEIGE S
TOMARATRBRFNERRE > SFRE
S AL B HE158,602,0007T K 48 =
#78181,111,00070 * REF R D BIKIE
EF96.9%K%128.8% > FEFTRI A AEERN
RKEFERFKRIRZ —o

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 $



FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

The Group’s overall rental income from investment properties
in the 2020 decreased by 5.8% year-on-year to approximately
HK$9,309,000, mainly because most of the remaining properties
of Shantou Commercial Plaza were successfully sold last year,
resulting in a reduction in rental area. In addition, to alleviate the
hardship suffered by tenants as a result of the epidemic, the Group
offered a series of rental reduction measures in the year, leading to
a decrease in rental income. Specifically, the overall occupancy rate
of China Holdings Building rose to approximately 95.16%, and its
rental income increased slightly to approximately HK$8,390,000 after
taking into account the impact of the rental reduction measures.
As most of the remaining properties of Shantou Commercial Plaza
were sold last year, its rental income decreased by 66.9% year-on-
year to approximately HK$339,000. As for properties in Hong Kong,
despite the rental reduction measures offered by the Group, the
tenants terminated the lease in May 2020 ahead of expiration due to
the impact of the epidemic, and leases with new tenants were not
signed until November, leading to a decrease in rental income by
66.2% year-on-year to approximately HK$241,000.
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With its solid position in the property development and investment
sector and by leveraging its experience in such fields, the Group
is striving to develop the industrial park in Danzao Town, Nanhai
District, Foshan City, the PRC, which is designed to house the main
and spare production plants, pilot base, research and development
centre and ancillary facilities for new energy vehicles. The project
was scheduled to be completed and put into operation this year.
However, project construction and investment attraction were
hindered by the epidemic. The schedules of various construction
projects were delayed due to a severe shortage of staff on duty
caused by the late return of project workers to work. As such, the
completion date of the industrial park is expected to be postponed.
The Group will quickly make appropriate adjustments to construction
plans and speed up the building and construction of the industrial
park, provided that prevention and control measures can be strictly
implemented and construction safety and construction quality can
be assured. As for investment attraction, although the plans of
some enterprises to settle in the industrial park were hampered by
the epidemic, the Group overcame difficulties and proceeded with
the investment attraction plan for the industrial park in line with
the industrial planning of Danzao Town. In May 2020, the Group
completed the delivery of a factory building to the first enterprise
settling in the industrial park. As at January 2021, the number
of enterprises settled reached 3, and the Group is stepping up
promotional efforts by adopting a combination of online and offline
promotion through various investment attraction means, including
planning activities and preparing promotional materials to bring in
more people. With the ramp-up in the promotion of Danzao, Nanhai
District, Foshan City, as a “hydrogen valley”, the industrial park has
gradually become buzzing in Nanhai for attracting merchants.

BIG DATA BUSINESS

In the year, the big data business conscientiously implemented
prevention and control measures and arrangements for work and
production resumption in the face of the sudden Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) outbreak. It placed emphasis on both prevention and
control measures as well as business operations, actively carried out
business activities, and strived to promote project development and
improve technology R&D capabilities, managing to achieve business
growth despite the epidemic. In the year, operating income increased
by 37.2% vyear-on-year to approximately HK$25,909,000, and net
profit was approximately HK$1,907,000, a significant increase of
64.8 times year-on-year.
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FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

WELLNESS ELDERLY CARE BUSINESS

The Group will continue to develop a three-tier elderly care system
comprising institutions, communities and households in Nanhai
District. Last year, the Group successfully collaborated with Jiujiang
Town to launch the first town-level quality elderly care service project
in Nanhai District, and was responsible for investing in and operating
Jiujiang Taoyuan Nursing Home. Yet, as the project was still at the
start-up investment stage, and the epidemic broke out in 2020,
China adopted very stringent prevention and control principles for
the elderly business. To implement anti-epidemic measures and
ensure quality elderly care services with a commitment to build
an apt and warm elderly haven, the Group will further implement
standing prevention and control measures as a normal practice
to combat the epidemic and successfully protect the lives of the
elderly by giving priority to safety consistently. The Group initially
suspended admission of new elderly residents, which affected the
occupancy rate. As at the end of 2020, the average occupancy
rate of nursing beds was only 43%, failing to reach the breakeven
point. Accordingly, the Group temporarily waived the operation
and management fees from the nursing home, and failed to record
any income from the project. However, the Group has already
established a good reputation in this area and built the Taoyuan
elderly care brand in full swing will be conducive to pushing
forward the development of the wellness elderly care segment. On
another front, the epidemic also affected the Smart Elderly Care
Services Platform and disrupted the promotion of elderly care
services platform and the development of platform-based value-
added services such as referral of home elderly care services and
assistance and quality supervision. As a result of the combined
effects of the above factors, overall operating income decreased by
70.7% year-on-year to approximately HK$2,307,000, and a small
operating loss of approximately HK$2,979,000 was recorded, a
decrease of 2.4% in loss year-on-year.
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HOTEL BUSINESS

The tourism service industry was hard hit by COVID-19 and
experienced a challenging and unusual year in 2020. Guilin Plaza
(“Guilin Plaza”) felt the pinch of the epidemic outbreak in early 2020
with the closure of scenic spots and hotels in Guilin, cancellation
of tour groups and temporary stagnation of the tourism market. As
a result, the hotel room sales business was suspended until late
March 2020. Even when it resumed business, the tourism market
recovered slowly, and recovery of tourists from foreign markets was
especially difficult, with most of the tourists coming from domestic
markets. The hotel flexibly adjusted its customer mix through
adopting flexible strategies, but its income was still deeply dented
with an unsatisfactory occupancy rate. The average occupancy
rate decreased by 15.62% year-on-year to 44.19%. The average
room rate also dropped by approximately 10.81% year-on-year. The
operating income decreased significantly by 24.6% year-on-year to
approximately HK$10,197,000, and the operating loss widened by
43.5% year-on-year to approximately HK$7,898,000. It is expected
that the revenue and operating results of Guilin Plaza will remain
pessimistic in 2021.

As the epidemic severely shocked business in the home-stay lodging
industry, China Select Small Hotel Union Limited, a 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Group, experienced continued operating difficulties.
On 1 July 2020, it decided to terminate its business and initiated the
liquidation procedures.
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FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

CIVIL EXPLOSIVES BUSINESS

The Group has engaged in the operation and management of civil
explosives business and gradually accumulated relevant experience
through Tiannuo, a 49%-owned associate, since 2018. In order to
further expand its footprint in civil explosives business, the Group
entered into an agreement on 22 June 2020 to further acquire an
additional 2% equity interest in Tiannuo completed such transaction
in September 2020 and consolidated the results of the business
of Tiannuo, facilitating the Group to improve its profitability and
explore domestic civil explosives business. Tiannuo contributed a
gain of HK$663,000 to the Group this year. In addition, it contributed
attributable gain of approximately HK$181,000 to the Group before
the acquisition transaction was completed.

Although Tiannuo is currently affected by the on-going technological
modification project, causing temporary suspension of some
production lines and a decline in sales volume, which puts a strain
on its profitability in 2021, the Group still believes that Tiannuo
will significantly improve its future performance by carrying out
technological upgrade and modification and effectively implementing
corresponding cost-reduction reform measures.

PROFIT FROM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The outbreak of the epidemic at the beginning of the year
not only affected the resumption of work and production, but
also continuously affected the Chinese and global economies.
Ltd.”, a
31.875%-owned associate of the Group, saw a decline in

Consequentially, Nanhai Changhai Power Co.,
operating performance with an operating profit of approximately
HK$212,442,000, weighed down by dampened customer demands
and affected by the on-going technological modification project. It
contributed profit of approximately HK$67,716,000 to the Group,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.9%.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

RABIFmES

FERBH T /\FECEBBPIFHI9%E
mZBMEATDRENFEEREERAIRIF
mEB B RBAMECR - A TE-—FIH
ERABEREFZIEAZER R-_Z°F
FRBI+HEEE-—TWEBRHERN
2%RENHZ TN __E_ZF AT
Ry RREEBEHAR BRRAESE
ERNEANENAFATBERRRES  SES
& B 75 2R & F B 15663,0007T © Lh9h 0 TETE AR
WERZE BEAEBRTREBHNBEMABE
181,0007z °

BARFRAEZ IR AT ENEETERD
TE O ERMOEEGRSEREFERMBE
BETR - H T —FRMNEMEN BF
EEBR/RAERNBBERMARNERETH
MAEEEBEEA A EZRE R EAERNEH
RRER BEEETRBEBRERFE
o

BE QBB N

HRFVBEBESE FEXEEIT EBE>
BREFETEREHEE BNEERE
HERRAR (KREBERHB31.875%K1#E) H
BERERTEMZIER N EIEETRM
BETIR FREXBEBM TR BELE
AEABHEE212,442,00070 0 A A EBEIRMH
B EEA B 67,716,0007 0 EEEFE R D
7.9%°



FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of
HK$6,105,371,000 (31 December 2019: HK$5,147,666,000),
total liabilities of HK$4,117,039,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$3,441,696,000), a gearing ratio (being total liabilities divided by
total assets) of 67.4% (31 December 2019: 66.9%), net assets of
HK$1,988,332,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,705,970,000), and
equity attributable to owners of the Company per share of HK66.83
cents (31 December 2019: HK64.54 cents).

The Group had net current liabilities of HK$66,332,000 (31
December 2019: net current assets of HK$505,514,000), a
current ratio (being current assets divided by the current liabilities)
approximately 0.95 times (31 December 2019: 1.36 times). The
Board believes that net current liabilities is attributable to the
obligations under borrowings — due within one year of approximately
HK$690,935,000 (the “Borrowings”) with the repayment on demand
clause which were classified as current liabilities in accordance
with HK' Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and are not repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period according to
the repayment schedule. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Borrowings will not be required to be repaid in full within a year
under normal circumstances and when the payments are made
according to schedule, which the Directors are confident that they
could achieve. Taking this into consideration, the Directors consider
that the liquidity position of the Group would be positive and the
Group can maintain the business as a going concern. On the other
hand, the Group had bank balance and cash of HK$798,263,000
(31 December 2019: HK$1,028,396,000), are sufficient for capital
requirements for future operation and new projects or business
development of the Group.
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FEWmES
Chairman’s Statement

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, properties of the Group for own use and
investment, bank deposits, entity interest of a subsidiary held by
the Group and finance lease receivables with a carrying value of
approximately HK$2,011,973,000 were pledged to banks as the
security for the bank borrowings granted to the Group (31 December
2019: properties of the Group for own use and investment, bank
deposits, entity interest of a subsidiary held by the Group, and
finance lease receivables with a carrying value of approximately
HK$1,906,513,000 were pledged to banks).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign exchange
fluctuation of income and costs would be mutually offset. However,
as the Hong Kong-based Group has injected a substantial amount
of current borrowings into domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries
in Mainland China and held a huge amount of monetary assets
denominated in RMB, an exchange gain or loss would arise from the
appreciation or depreciation of RMB. It is expected that an increase
or a decrease of approximately HK$6,127,000 in the Group’s loss for
the year would arise if the exchange rate of RMB to HKD appreciates
or depreciates by 5%. Over the few past years, RMB constantly
showed an upward trend and gradually became stable in the second
half of 2008, starting to fluctuate upward and downward repeatedly.
Due to the Sino-US trade war in recent years, the exchange rate
of RMB against USD continuously weakened; however, China’s
economy began to recover vigorously after controlling the epidemic
effectively while the global economy was staggered by the impact
of the epidemic this year, stimulating the appreciation of RMB,
which not only reversed the deteriorating situation of exchange loss
of approximately HK$5,194,000 due to the sharp depreciation of
the exchange rate of RMB against USD during the same period of
last year arising from the Sino-US trade war, but also generated
exchange gain of approximately HK$17,308,000. Therefore, the
Board believes that RMB will be immensely affected by the Sino-
US trade war and epidemic dynamics in the short term, the path
of which is hard to predict, but in the long run, it is expected that
RMB will remain stable and will not expose the Group to significant
and long term adverse foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, it is not
necessary for the Group to hedge against foreign exchange risk at
the moment.
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OUTLOOK

Although the Group faces the impact of global economic uncertainty
brought about by the epidemic, as China’s economy begins to
recover after bringing the epidemic under control, the Group will
proactively adjust its strategies to seize opportunities arising from
the market recovery. With experience accumulated during the course
of transformation and upgrade over past years, the Group will strive
to enhance its business activities in response to market changes,
shifting its development focus to segments such as industrial parks
and property investment, financial leasing, big data, wellness elderly
care, and civil explosives. In respect of property development
and investment, building on its solid foundation in the property
development and investment sector and leveraging its experience
in such fields, the Group will continue to develop the new energy
industrial park in Danzao Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City, China
by rapidly advancing the construction of the industrial park and
intensifying promotion efforts in business attraction, so that the
industrial park will be put into full operation as soon as possible and
generate revenue for the Group. In respect of the financial leasing
sector, in light of the overcast of Sino-US trade war and tension
and the impact of the epidemic outbreak, the Group will continue
to “abide by the general strategy of focusing on stability while
seeking progress”, stick to the direction of professionalism in green
environmental protection financial leasing, and comprehensively build
up the core competitiveness of financial leasing in the environmental
protection segment. In respect of the big data sector, by taking
advantages of the opportunities arising from the new smart city
construction plan in Nanhai District, the Group will continue its
research and development efforts in the big data industry projects,
leverage market forces in technological research and development,
explore innovation applications and business models, enhance
independent research and development capabilities, improve
research and development efficiency, and strive to create key
products meeting market demands as a main driver to our profit
growth in the future. In the wellness elderly care sector, the Group
gives priority to the safety of the elderly, prudently yet vigorously
promotes business development while properly carrying out various
epidemic prevention tasks, and establishes a good reputation. The
Group also spares no effort to build the Taoyuan elderly care brand,
and continues to head toward the direction of developing a three-
tier elderly care system comprising institutions, communities and
households in Nanhai District, after taking over the operation of the
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welfare centre of Nanhai District in the future. In the civil explosives
sector, the Group has engaged in the operation and management
of civil explosives business and gradually accumulated substantia
experience through Tiannuo, a 49%-owned associate, and further
completed the acquisition of Tiannuo to make it a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Through technical upgrading of production
lines and release of excessive mixed assembly production capacity,
the Group will improve its future performance, strengthen its profit
base and develop domestic civil explosives business. In addition, the
Group will, through its joint ventures and associates, participate and
invest in power generation and other high-growth industries in the
PRC. With the above business development directions, the Group
will continuously expand its business and gradually achieve the goal
of increasing and maintaining stable returns for shareholders.

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

B MERRRESE EATERNEFNAE
BRRERENEREIFRER LN & E
ETZEHGERERBEARZHARKE
ZESFTESHERITE BBULEERE
B R RERBRKAEIBEREREE BY
BREARERRERRORYBER



R E WS

Corporate Governance Report

China Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance and is committed to maintaining
the high standard of corporate governance which is reviewed and
strengthened on a continued basis. The board of directors (the
“Board”) and the management of the Company maintains and
enhances the policies and practices of the Company in a timely,
transparent, effective and responsible manner, so as to maintain
good, solid and reasonable corporate governance structure. The
Board believes that the Company and shareholders as a whole can
derive maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
on corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with all code provisions under the CG Code, except the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 as set out in the section headed “ROLES
AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR” of this
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board
and three committees under the Board, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all committees in writing and
specifies clearly the power and responsibilities of the committees.
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THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, including five
executive directors who have extensive business experience, and
three independent non-executive directors who possess appropriate
professional qualifications. Throughout the year 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, the composition of the Board is set out

below:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)
(resigned on 5 September 2020)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

With effect from 5 September 2020, Mr. Lin Pingwu resigned as
an executive director and the managing director of the Company
and member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company in order to pursue his personal business
commitments and Mr. He Xiangming, an existing executive director
and the chairman of the Board, has been appointed as the managing
director of the Company. With effect from 1 January 2021, Mr.
Cheng Weidong has been appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company.

Every director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. Each director discloses to the Company for
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments every year. The
Board considers the composition of executive and non-executive
directors is rational and appropriate and provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group.
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The independent non-executive directors provide the Group with
diversified experience and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each committee
bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgements on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to
time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any director may be appointed
or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

Individual information and responsibilities of all directors are
contained in this annual report on pages 39 to 41.

There are no business, financial, family and other relevant interests
among directors.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements and
matters, monitoring the performance of senior management and
is responsible for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the managing director, the management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans developed
by the Board. The Board authorizes the management to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Group. Each committee under
the Board has its own specified terms of reference which clearly
define their powers and responsibilities.
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The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for its decision and has separately identified those functions
reserved to the Board. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.

The Board also performs the obligations regarding corporate
governance, including:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) to the Listing Rules.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year
(approximately once each quarter) and will convene meetings
when necessary. When a regular board meeting is convened, the
Board papers will be sent to directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the deadline as required by the Listing Rules and the
code provisions so that directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities.
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The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering dividend payment, the Board will take into account
factors such as the Group’s expected financial performance,
business conditions and strategies, expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, business cycles and other
internal or external factors that may affect the Company’s business
or financial performance and financial position, return and interest
of the shareholders and other factors which the Board considers to
be relevant. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and the Dividend Policy does not constitute any commitment or
obligation of the Company to declare dividends.

All members of the Board have actively participated in the
Company’s Board meetings to discuss the overall strategy and
business of the Group. The Board convened ten meetings in 2020
and the attendance of directors is as follows:
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Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EE4AE BITRE HE=R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. He Xiangming MR LS 10/10 100%
(Chairman and Managing Director) (EE R EFABAETE)
Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director) MER A (EFRALLE) 7/7 100%
(resigned on 5 September 2020) (RZEZZEFNAEH
FFIE)
Mr. You Guang Wu (Director) BERLE (FF) 9/10 90%
Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director) — E&M 4 (B FHBIAEACHE) 9/10 90%
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director) TML L (EFEHEAELE) 10/10 100%
Mr. Cheng Weidong RERILE (EEFIETE) - -
(Deputy Managing Director) HR—EFE-_—F—HF—H
(appointed on 1 January 2021) BZE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIFPITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ek B8] 128 o 4 9/10 90%
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR32 Ak o &= 8/10 80%
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B F AL 9/10 90%
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The remuneration of directors is determined with reference to their
functions and responsibilities and the results of the Company in
accordance with the remuneration and performance assessment
programme of directors and senior management which was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2017. Any director is not allowed
to participate in determining his/her own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Group during the year is
set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

The Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure for directors and upon reasonable request, the directors
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Under the current management structure of the Company, the
chairman of the Board is Mr. He Xiangming and the managing
director of the Company is Mr. Lin Pingwu until 5 September
2020. On the same date, Mr. He Xiangming was appointed as the
managing director of the Company. During the year, the deputy
managing directors of the Company are Mr. Huang Zhihe and Ms.
Wang Xin.
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The chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the Board operates effectively
and performs its proper duties and discusses all important and
proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a timely manner.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and procedure.

The managing director is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so
as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
the managing director is also responsible for coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and
encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and
effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.

Following with the resignation of Mr. Lin Pingwu as the managing
director of the Company, Mr. He Xiangming, the Company’s
chairman, has also assumed the role as the managing director of
the Company temporarily. The Company believes that vesting both
roles in Mr. He with the assistance of the deputy managing directors
will allow for more effective planning and execution of business
strategies. As all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board, the Company believes that there is adequate
balance of power and authority in place. Although Mr. He performs
both the roles of chairman and managing director, the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and managing director is
clearly established. However, it is the long-term objective of the
Company to have these two roles performed by separate individuals
when suitable candidates are identified.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The
company secretary and representative of auditor update directors
on the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the directors, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year under review, all directors of the Company
participated in continuous professional development to update their
knowledge and skills by reading materials relevant to the directors’
duties and responsibilities and/or their relevant professional and by
attending the training programs arranged by the Company and/or
talks and seminars organised by different professional institutions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. After making specific
enquiries, all directors have confirmed that, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020, they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors with extensive experience in accounting or legal aspects.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the financial
statements, annual reports and accounts and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, providing advice
to the Board, and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditor of the Company and any matters
related to the termination of appointment. Mr. Chan Kwok Wai is the
chairman of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the
meeting results and recommendations of the audit committee to the
Board after each meeting.

BEZEEE

ERZEER-RBUFATESEMN K
SHEESIERTEAEELER -BEREES
TIBEEERARANUHFRER -FER
SRRENEBREEAABEZERRLAE
FERHER - MEARBAZBANEZE F
MREMAKLIZREMEESREESR
REREESREZZEENIFE BENE
REZRNEFEREERZEEN TR
RREREER-

In 2020, the audit committee convened four meetings. Members and A CE TR BRZEESREREORG
their attendance are as follows: FONBRHEEERUT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Members RELTE BITRH HE=R
Chan Kwok Wai ek R {22
(Chairman of the audit committee) (BRZEELE) 4/4 100%
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 4/4 100%
Deng Hong Ping 7= T 4/4 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year included
reviewing the 2019 audited financial statements and the annual
results announcement, reviewing the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
considering the accounting standards adopted, reviewing the
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function,
reviewing the management letter about audit work of the auditor
submitted to the management and the response of the management
and the basis of opinion made by the auditor in their report, etc.

BERZEZEEEFENFMBHN TIFERESER_
T-NEFECERMBERERRFEXER
S EBRBE_S_TFRA=THIENRE
AHTEIRERTHEEAS B EATHRMA
WEE - ERAVHFER BREERN
HEZERR BREARBANEZINENE
W BRZHBAEREERNERIBE RN
ARG REEEOE RBMEEKREEMR
FHNEREEEER
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The remuneration
committee is principally responsible for reviewing remuneration plans
for directors and senior management, making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits, pension rights and payment

FHNEEE

HNEZETH=-RBIUIFNTEER—EH
TEFHN -FINEZETTREEERNES
REREBEASNHFMAOR NEFTRE
WITEFARSREEASNFNEGE 28F
Mo BAESENRBESN REMEE
BRFMEEENER %Eﬁ’fiﬁﬁ?'ﬁa@

of compensation. Mr. Chen Da Cheng is the chairman of the MEEGRESHNESESNTZERLEE
remuneration committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting E R o
results and recommendations of the remuneration committee to the
Board after each meeting.
In 2020, the remuneration committee convened five meetings. MR _TE _EF#HMEE BITERT
Members and their attendance are as follows: FONBREREERWT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
rE
Name of Directors EELTE BITRH HE=R
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 4/5 80%
(Chairman of the remuneration committee) GrWZ 5 g + /%)
Chan Kwok Wai ok B 2 5/5 100%
Deng Hong Ping BRF 5/5 100%
He Xiangming EIELE 5/5 100%
Lin Pingwu MER (K ZFEZFF 1/2 50%
(resigned on 5 September 2020) 18 # HEEE)

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year
included reviewing the emoluments and incentive scheme of the
Group, reviewing the remuneration of Mr. Cheng Weidong, the
new director, determining the performance assessment index
of the directors and senior management and considering the
incentive payment and making recommendations to the Board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no director or senior

management member determines his/her own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration based on the responsibilities, qualifications and
In addition, the
Group adopted the share option scheme for a term of 10 years

working performance of staff (including directors).

on 26 April 2013. Since adoption of the share option scheme, the
Group has not granted any share options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The nomination
committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. It shall consider the suitability of a candidate
to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In 2020, the nomination committee convened three meetings,
members and their attendance are as follows:

AEENFHBERENET (BEES) BB
B EERIEREMETEMSE LI &
EBER T —=ZFNAZ+/"BRMTH
A+ EMNEBRESE > aXMNBRIESS
AEEMRB RO ETAERE

RHEEG

RYZEEH=-LBUIFATEFR—LH
TEFHEAN - RLEZETEERTESTEN
R NB AN TR ERBESEAAT
B’Jﬁ%”%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁf’ﬁﬂjE’J*’E@Jﬁ%tljh
ZoRBESEMIEEANER L8 @R
)S’Z*MK ABMFERMNEBENERHEESENSG
WA Tz ETHRRIES.131FFT HEVE
R E B ILIFRTESRAEIL -

NCECEE O RREEEY
FORERHEBROT

BET=RE

Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EELE BITRH HE=R
He Xiangming EIELE 3/3 100%
(Chairman of the nomination committee) FEHEEEFE)
Lin Pingwu MFER (R -E-FF 2/2 100%
(resigned on 5 September 2020) 718 & HEEE)
Chan Kwok Wai ok B 2 3/3 100%
Chen Da Cheng R 32 AX 2/3 67%
Deng Hong Ping &R T 3/3 100%
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The work carried out by the nomination committee during the year
included considering and nominating Mr. Cheng Weidong as the
new director of the Company, reviewing the Board structure of the
Company, reviewing of appointment and resignation of directors of
the Company, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, considering and reviewing the Board diversity
policy and making recommendations to the Board.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company have
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
presented annual confirmations of independence issued pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company. The nomination
committee has assessed their independence and confirms that all
independent non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. The term of office of Mr. Deng Hong
Ping, Mr. Chan Kwok Wai and Mr. Chen Da Cheng are until 30
June 2021, 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 respectively. They are
subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election requirements of
the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a director. The selection criteria used
in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc. The
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a director is summarised
as follows:—

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

2. When it is necessary to appoint an additional director or fill a
casual vacancy, the nomination committee identifies, selects
and recommends candidates to the Board pursuant to post
nature and the criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.
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3. The nomination committee shall submit the candidate’s resume
and recommendation, including terms of appointment, to the
Board for consideration. If the process yields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the assessment result
and presents the same together with its recommendation to the
Board for consideration.

4.  Based on the recommendation from the nomination committee,
the Board will consider and approve the appointment of new
director(s).

5.  Each director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election at
the annual general meeting of the year.

6. The nomination committee shall review overall contribution,
performance, professional knowledge and qualifications of the
retiring directors and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration for their re-election.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. With a view to maintaining competitive advantage, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element. Therefore, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in 2013. The policy set out that the nomination committee of
the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board,
makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
directors of the Company, oversees the conduct of the annual review
of the effectiveness of the Board in order to achieve the objective
of Board diversity. In addition, mechanisms including supervising,
reporting and policy reviewing etc. ensure that the Board diversity
policy will be implemented effectively.

The nomination committee has reviewed from time to time the
diversity of the Board of the Company to ensure that the policy
will be implemented effectively and considered that there is no
immediate need for setting up the measurable objectives.

3. RYLZEER/REEAEHKEZR &
REERR REEFGEE - NRE
ANBBB—% RLLZEGHERETH
BREZE UL ERBRRHES
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the audit committee and the senior
management of the Company. The Board determines the nature
and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
design, implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set up and
maintained a suitable and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted corporate risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the senior management
identifies risks that would affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners
are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to
assist the Board and the audit committee in ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify deficiencies in the design and implementation of risk
management and internal controls and recommend proposal for
improvement. Significant risk management and internal control
deficiencies will be reported to the audit committee and the Board
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the audit committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
had performed annual review on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on risk
management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the Securities Future Ordinance. The
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, if the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On, who is engaged and
appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. The primary contact persons with the company secretary
of the Company are Mr. He Xiangming (executive director, chairman
and managing director) and Ms. Ella Chong (assistant to the
chairman). During the year, the company secretary of the Company
duly complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing financial
statements of the Group.

The financial department of the Company is managed by a qualified
accountant. With the assistance of the financial department, the
Board will ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the audit fee was
approximately HK$1,700,000 and the non-audit services fee
mainly included services provided as reporting accountants was
approximately HK$494,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by HLM CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 59 to 74.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of good communication
with shareholders and investors, and recognizes the value of
providing current and relevant information to shareholders and
investors. The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring that
both shareholders and investors can obtain the complete, identical
and current information of the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained communication with shareholders
through the annual general meeting or other general meetings and
encourages them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings provided
that their shares must be registered in the register of members.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting can
fill in the proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting
and return the same to the Company so as to appoint their
representatives or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

At the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2020, all directors
were present to answer questions raised by shareholders and
separate resolution in respect of each separate issue was proposed
for shareholders to vote thereon. The Company appointed branch
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineers and to ensure
votes cast are properly counted and recorded, and announced the
results of the poll on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called and propose any matter
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company. The
Requisitionists may deposit the written requisition for special general
meeting (which shall specify the full name of the Requisitionists,
the business and proposal to be considered at the general meeting
of the Company, and shall be signed by the Requisitionists) to the
principal place of business of the Company for the attention of
the Board. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting in specified days as
provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules,
the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

In accordance with the provision 88 of the Company’s bye-laws,
no person other than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election as
a director at any general meeting unless not less than seven (7)
days before the date appointed for the general meeting there shall
have been lodged at the office or at the head office notice in writing
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected provided that the period for lodgment
of the aforesaid notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to
the date of such general meeting. For further information, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” published on the Company’s website at
http://chinainvestments.tonghaiir.com.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (“Proposers”), or not less than 100
of such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing
to: (a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Proposers may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Proposers; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
name, address, telephone number and email address etc.) by the
following means:

Address: Unit 501, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-23013878

Email: general@cihl.com.hk
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Directors’ Report

The directors present the annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
44 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 14 of this
annual report. In addition, the discussion on the principal risks
and uncertainties which the Group is exposed to the relationships
with the Group’s suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in below paragraphs and the section on
employees under page 47 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year with financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 14 of this annual report.

The events significantly affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 14 of
this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and financial
management risks.
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The details of financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The hotel management continuously enhance
relationships with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys
good relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of
2020, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures
have been adopted in the Group’s managed hotel. Such initiatives
include recycling of used papers, energy saving measures and water
saving practices. An environmental, social and governance report is
set out on pages 49 to 58 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Bermuda, mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, we have complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China,
Hong Kong and the Bermuda that have a significant impact on the
Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 75 to 77 of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year end
date. There was a revaluation surplus of HK$49,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: surplus of HK$4,618,000). Details
of such revaluation are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment are set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Particulars regarding the Group’s major properties are set out on
pages 275 to 280 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.
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During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 80 to 81 and Note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under
the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$725,199,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)
(resigned on 5 September 2020)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping
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With effect from 5 September 2020, Mr. Lin Pingwu resigned as
an executive director and the managing director of the Company
and member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company in order to pursue his personal business
commitments; and Mr. He Xiangming, an existing executive director
and the chairman of the Board, has been appointed as the managing
director of the Company. With effect from 1 January 2021, Mr.
cheng Weidong has been appointed as an executive director and the
deputy managing director of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
You Guang Wu, Ms. Wang Xin, Mr. Cheng Weidong and Mr. Deng
Hong Ping shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The terms of office of Mr. Deng Hong Ping, Mr. Chan Kwok Wai and
Mr. Chen Da Cheng are until 30 June 2021, 30 June 2022 and 30
June 2023, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

He Xiangming, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director
and chairman of the Board of the Company on 23 July 2014 and
appointed as managing director of the Company on 5 September
2020. Mr. He is the chairman of the nomination committee, a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company, the
chairman of the board of directors of Guilin Plaza*, Canton
Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd.*, Guangdong Sinsing Technology
Ltd.*, Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Ltd.* and Guangdong
Taoyuan Comprehensive Health Operation Co., Ltd* and a director
in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. He holds a master
degree in Geography from South China Normal University. He has
extensive experience in business management and environmental
public utilities. Mr. He is also a vice chairman of Nanhai Listing
Promotion Association*. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He was
the chairman of Grandblue Environment Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).

You Guang Wu, aged 56, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004
until 6 April 2006 when he was redesignated as vice chairman of
the board and executive director of the Company. On 26 February
2009, Mr. You was appointed as the chairman of the board and on
23 July 2014 resigned as the chairman of the board. Mr. You is now
an executive director of the Company, the managing director and
legal representative of Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd.”
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. You
is a senior accountant in the PRC. He holds a master degree in
economics. He has accumulated extensive experience in investment,
financing and financial management.
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Huang Zhihe, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 5 August 2013.
Mr. Huang is also the managing director and legal representative of
Guangdong Sinsing Technology Ltd.* and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang holds a bachelor degree in
industrial management and engineering and a master of business
administration from South China University of Technology. He has
extensive experience of investment and development in real estate
and management in hotel industry.

Wang Xin, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 1 May 2014 and
is also the chairman and legal representative of Guangdong Sino
Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wang holds a master degree in
economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics. She
has extensive experience in corporate business operation, strategic
financial planning and management, team building and management

innovation.

Cheng Weidong, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
director and the deputy managing director of the Company on 1
January 2021.
representative of Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive Health
Operation Co., Ltd.*
the Company. He holds a degree in economic management from the

Mr. Cheng is also the managing director and legal

and a director in a number of subsidiaries of

Party School of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of Communist
Party of China. He has extensive experience in corporate investment
and development planning. Mr. Cheng is a director of Prize Rich
Inc., a shareholder of the Company holding 1,222,713,527 shares
of the Company (representing 71.41% of its entire issued share
capital). Prior to joining the Company, he worked as the chief officer
of the Planning and Development Division of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administrative Bureau of Nanhai District, Foshan
City*.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Kwok Wai, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004
and is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree in Accounting and
Commerce, and is member of the CPA Australia and a member of
Hong Kong Securities Institute. He has over 30 years of experience
in the finance and accounting industry. Mr. Chan is also currently
independent non-executive director of 4 other listed public
companies in Hong Kong, namely Chinese Estates Holdings Limited,
Tern Properties Company Limited, National Electronics Holdings
Limited and Far East Consortium International Limited.

Chen Da Cheng, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Sun Yat-sen University, PRC. He is a
practicing solicitor in the PRC and has over 30 years of experience in
legal services. Mr. Chen is also the executive director of Guangdong
Lawyers Association, legal consultant of Foshan Public Security
Bureau Nanhai Branch and chief supervisor of Nanhai Anti-drug
Association®.

Deng Hong Ping, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 6 April 2006 and is a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor
Degree in marine engineering of the Ocean University of China in
Guangdong and graduated in master of economics and legal studies
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Deng is a
practicing lawyer in the PRC and an arbitrator of Foshan Arbitration
Commission and he has accumulated extensive experience in legal
sectors, particularly in enterprises mergers and acquisition and debt
reorganization.

Note: The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the above
executive directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interest of the Company’s directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares or interest in debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, the persons who were interested in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company are as follows:
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These 1,441,439,842 shares comprises (i) 1,222,713,527 shares held by
Prize Rich Inc. which was wholly-owned by Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*; and (i) 218,726,315 new shares to be allotted and
issued by the Company to Prize Rich Inc. upon the exercise of conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Prize
Rich Inc. pursuant to an acquisition agreement as part of the consideration.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register as having an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed below, there were no connected transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

1)

On 22 June 2020, Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage
Investments Holdings Limited* (“Nanhai Canmanage”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Foshan City
Nanhai District Lianhua Asset Operation & Management Co.,
Ltd.* (“Nanhai Lianhua”) entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement, pursuant to which Nanhai Canmanage has
agreed to acquire from Nanhai Lianhua an additional 2%
equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Guangdong Tiannuo”). Following the completion of
the acquisition, Guangdong Tiannuo has become an indirect
subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of which
has consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Prior to the acquisition, an existing sales and purchase
agreement involving the sale and purchase of paper boxes was
entered into between Guangdong Nanhong Chemical Co., Ltd.*
(“Nanhong Chemical”), a subsidiary of Guangdong Tiannuo,
and Guangdong Nanhai Chemical Factory Co., Ltd.* (“Nanhai
Chemical”), a substantial shareholder of Guangdong Tiannuo,
in their respective ordinary and usual course of business. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Nanhong Chemical has become
an indirect subsidiary of the Company through Guangdong
Tiannuo, and Nanhai Chemical has become a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the existing sales and purchase
agreement involving continuing transaction which was originally
entered into between Nanhong Chemical and Nanhai Chemical
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Group
upon completion of the acquisition. The Company is required
to comply with the relevant disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The announcement of the
Company in respect of the said transaction was made on 23
November 2020.
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2)  On 27 November 2020, Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen)
Investments Company Limited* (“ZCXK”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd.* (“Nanhai Holding”), a controlling
shareholder of Prize Rich Inc. (“Prize Rich”), a shareholder
holding 1,222,713,527 issued shares of the Company
(representing 71.41% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company), entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement,
pursuant to which ZCXK has agreed to sell, and Nanhai
Holding has agreed to purchase 5% equity interest in
Global Digital Cybersecurity Authority Co., Ltd.* at a cash
consideration of RMB7,604,510 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,958,113).

As Nanhai Holding is the controlling shareholder of Prize Rich,
it is a connected person of the Company. The transaction
contemplated under the disposal constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the disposal exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%,
the disposal is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The announcement of the Company in
respect of the said transaction was made on 30 November
2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 43 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions constituted
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is for a term
of 10 years from the date of adoption. No option has been granted
since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Group
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants for their
contribution or future contribution to the Group and to strengthen
the long-term relationships that the participants may have with the
Group.

For details of terms of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
Note 36 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donation was made within the Group
(2019: HKS$Nil).

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

Bt s 2

ARABRERR T —=FWNA -+ XBE17
ZREBFRG ERM—IERERESE (15
REESTE)) - BRES B ARMBES S
TE o BRMBRESE LUK TARBHE D
EhkE-

BRESHSEELCEBUEBEEZS
B2 RESAERREKARSRIFLZE
RAAG T 8B ~ 228 B4R - W e SRR
W2 RELRAERZ B2 RARG-

BRBRES B S BAEMUTBER
FRMI5E36©

BA-LERBOEALQTZ LS
iz 15

RAEFER> XA HEEMRME LB E
BA-LEHBRIEAEATZ EHEKMG -

ARFERE

BREBEARABDAMFIZER URMESF
M RARSE xRV ZBEHTRMNZ
NRFREEFEINENEBMERZNA
RAB EMARRBPTRE Z25% 5 KT o



MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest supplier accounted for 32% of the
Group’s purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted for 47%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted for
nearly 29% of the Group’s turnover and the five largest customers
accounted for 47% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group is approximately 527
(2019: 197). The remuneration of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of performance and responsibility of
the employees. The Group provides education allowances to
the employees. The Group also provides internal training to its
employees to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to
enhance their job related skills. The Group also operates a share
option scheme, under which qualified employees may exercise their
options at an agreed price to subscribe for shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s bye-laws provided that the directors for the time
being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes and share option scheme as disclosed
in notes 33 and 36 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Investments Holdings Limited

He Xiangming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

*

For identification purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company always puts great emphasis on environmental
protection, is particularly dedicated to reducing emission of
greenhouse gas and promoting resource utilization efficiency and
waste management, etc., and paying the highest attention to its
hotel business. An environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
task team has been established by Guilin Plaza Hotel to formulate
relevant policies for hotel under the 5R principle (replace, reduce,
reuse, recover and recycle), plan and organize the implementation
of various relevant tasks and constantly put forward administrative
measures, in an effort to save energy and reduce resource
consumption.

EXHAUST GAS

—  Boilers and other combustion facilities have been installed flue
gas purification devices that have passed the standardised
test of the environmental protection administration, so as to
minimize the emission of harmful gas.

—  Fuel have been changed from using diesel with a lot of nitric
oxide emission to clean using natural gas, so as to reduce
emission of sulfur dioxide and particles.

—  Exhaust gas emission has passed the test of environmental
protection administration, with emission indicators has met the
statutory and regulatory standards.

— All vehicles in the hotel use highly efficient fuel detergents to
reduce fuel consumption and hydrocarbon emissions.

- During the year, the emissions of nitrogen oxides, cerium
oxides and particulates amounted to 272.44kg, 1.42kg and
7.8kg (2019: 358.3kg, 1.83kg and 8.94kg ), respectively. The
decline was mainly attributable to the closure of hotels and the
decrease in car usage during the epidemic.
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GREENHOUSE GAS

The greenhouse gas emitted by the Company mainly comes from
electric consumption. The hotel also tries our best to reduce electric
consumption and carbon footprint in the following ways.

Electricity consumption

— During the year, the hotel enhanced the solar water
heating function of its solar power system, using clean and
environmentally-friendly renewable energy and further reducing
power consumption.

— The hotel used more new energy saving light source like
LED semiconductor lamps in its lighting system during
the refurbishment, which not only reduces 75% of power
consumption under the same lighting effect, but also has a
longer useful life and reduces the consumption of resources.

—  The hotel has worked out Regulations on Energy Saving and
Environmental Protection, advocating active adoption of up-
to-date saving techniques and management methods in the
energy-saving management of the hotel, so as to practically
reinforce the capacity of energy management and control, carry
out energy saving and consumption reduction works, reduce
operation cost and protect the environment.

— The hotel adheres to the guideline of “Full Attention and
Participation by all, Constant Persistence and innovation”.
Therefore, we are not only dedicated to educating and training
our employees and strictly enforcing relevant regulations, but
also encouraging employees to put forward feasible advices to
continuously improve our energy saving and control, in a bid to
continuously intensify and develop energy saving of the hotel.

— During the year, the electricity consumption and greenhouse
gas emissions of the Company totalled 2,695,585 units and
1,870.04 tons (2019: 2,312,450 units and 1,763.35 tons
respectively), the increases is because the Company is under
development such as big date business, the consumption is
proportionally increased with the expansion of the office space.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENT AND RESOURCE IRIERERER

CONSUMPTION

K¥ER

Water Consumption

The water consumption of the Company focuses on the hotel
business. In all guest rooms of the hotel, we apply water-saving
pedestal pans which meet the Class-1 standards of water
use efficiency. We guide guests to correctly use the pedestal
pans according to different standards for bowel movement and
urination. We also encourage employees to use water frugally
in daily life. We also install the intelligent inductive water-
saving system in employees’ bathrooms. These measures
can effectively control the intensity and total amount of water
consumption.

The hotel collects a large amount of condensed water vapour
by the cooling tower, thereby significantly reducing the loss of
plume.

Strengthened water consumption regulation at the hotel: Water
leakage detection and water balance testing were conducted
and water tanks were cleaned on a regular basis. Ledgers
were established to conduct measurement and assessment by
installing separate water meters and water-saving faucets so as
to exercise control over water consumption. Water-saving signs
are placed in guest rooms to guide guests as a reminder, and
change of cotton fabric products is made on a per guest basis
instead of the previous daily basis, all aiming to reduce water
consumption and minimize pollution to water resources.

The hotel also enhanced employees’ water-saving awareness
to promote good habits and culture of saving water and
other resources, in hope to convey the concept of resources
conservation and environmental protection to guests.

During the year, the water consumption in total of the Company
totalled 31,040 m® (2019: 34,012 m?®) and The decline was
mainly attributable to the closure of hotels during the epidemic.
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Consumption of Other Resources and environmental impact

52

The company enacted the “Implementation Plan for Separation,
Classification and Reduction of Domestic Waste” to refine the
implementation measures for the separation and reduction of
domestic waste, to standardize and to improve, to supervise
and to guide various departments and subordinate enterprises
to carry out domestic waste classification.

The Company tries to save the use of paper by advocating
“paperless office”. Moreover, we reduce the use of disposable
stationery, print both sides of paper, and deliver waste paper to
the environmental recycling company for disposal.

The hotel reduces resource consumption by reducing guest
supplies, minimizing packages and preventing the use of
disposable tableware.

The new energy industrial park in Danzao, Nanhai is under
ground surface levelling, and a total of 610,000 cubic meters
(2019: 240,000 cubic meters) of soil was used during the year.
In particular, the Company Reused the 10,000 cubic meters
of waste soil that needs to be treated from the excavation of
the project and negotiated with the persons in charge of the
neighbouring properties under construction and factories,
and collected silty sandy and clayey soil excavated from the
basements of the projects as part of its endeavours to reduce
damage to the afforested hills and mountains, the impact on the
ecological environment and the pollution and emissions caused
by long-distance transportation.

By internally employing a method of hierarchical utilisation
of food raw materials and providing catering customers with
packaging and wine storage services, the hotel also minimised
the consumption of food raw materials and significantly reduced
the production of food waste and other wastes.
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The non-hazardous wastes produced during the production and
operation of the hotel are mainly household garbage and kitchen
waste. The hotel has established a garbage house which meets
the standards of the Star Rating and Assessment on China Tourism
Hotels ((P Bl 8 1& 2 AR 22 BL5FE )) . All these non-hazardous
wastes are collected and treated by the environment and hygiene
management agencies designated by the government. Kitchen
waste is processed mainly to animal feeds and composts. Therefore,
it is considered as zero emission of harmless waste and the impact
on the surrounding environment is minimized.

In relation to the Hotel Business nature are not manufacturing,
Company do not use any packaging material. Except for the
abovementioned, Company’s business activities do not make any
significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

In the spirit of a good corporate citizen, the Company actively
participates in various activities with regard to caring community,
fundraising for poverty and environmental protection, tries to be a
conscientious enterprise, offers all-round security to our employees,
and makes due contribution to building a better community.

During the year, in response to the “National Consumer Poverty
Alleviation Year”, we actively participated in the purchase of poverty
alleviation products in Yanan, Liangshan and Yunfu, and completed
the purchase of poverty alleviation products totaling RMB30,000 for
the year.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR

In order to promote employees’ sense of belonging to the Company,
the Company launches various games for employees every vyear,
including simulated ball game, outdoor activities, etc. In addition,
the Company tries to promote employees’ job skill and sense of
superiority by instruction, activities, skill competition and other
trainings.

The Company has set up the Employee Manual, wherein all articles
and the formulation and release procedures of the Employee Manual
meet relevant legal requirements. The Company has established a
trade union to offer guidance to employees.

BEEEREEBETFIEENESERY
EREENRKRE BIERAED(F
[ Ak 22 B I5 2 AR B 3 B2 ETE ) AR & RV LR
B FrABEEEERYHHBUFIEENIR
EHEEERBETRE RIE HHREE
FREEN WD ER i Ko 3R BE > RIUE > I 1R A T HEIR
REBBRENEERD TRENREE

MBS EBRIFEEEZRBE ATTE
ERIERBEMEL o MERAI LF > A F)
ZEBERHUBHRERRAERBEEAT
2=,

TEERE

AABDRARFEELARBH  RIHE2H
BEHEFAETE HKBEEHENRENEE F
RUOGE BREEZ2HUSIRE BER
FEFMHERE—D -

RERNAEZETZBEHEHEE)  BIE2HE
EZ RN EFEBEHEES 2ETMIE
BB E R AR30,0007T

BER% T

HIEBEIHNARTNEBR  ~RBEF
ERETENKEES QRENELE P
SNEBF IS ARBBBEER ETK
KREGBESFHIISREAE T TIFREREH-

AT BHIEE LTR) > 2 BB A HIET
HMEFHTEEBEIEER - TAHETE
YRE HmETRMIES -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 $

53



54

BOGE ~ tE RETRES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Company treats each employee equally, and recruits,
compensates and promotes employees according to the same
standards irrespective of their ethnology, race, nationality, sex,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction, marital status and
other social identities.

The following is the employees distribution information as at the end
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of the year. ¥l o
2020 2019

—E_THF —E-NF

Number of employees BT A# 527 197
Male employees/% BMHET 5L 389/74% 114/58%
Female employees/% ZHET 5Lt 138/26% 83/42%
Below the age of 30/% FEEEMN B0k, 1hEL 40/7% 40/20%
Between the age of 31 to 50/% FW315RE508%, 1L 388/74% 119/61%
Over the age of 50/% FE B RIB08%,1h B 99/19% 38/19%

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is dedicated to providing employees with a safe
working environment, trying our best to prevent work from bringing
any risk to the public, and paying attention to employees’ health.
The hotel compiles the company’s “Safety Production Management
System Documents” in accordance with the national “Safety
Production Law” and the local government’s safety production
regulations, and strictly abides by it. The orientation training of the
hotel employees includes the labor safety course, so as to promote
employees’ safety awareness and self-protection capacity. We have
worked out safe-operation procedures for each job that may bring
about any risk. In addition, we carry out daily safety supervision and
monthly safety check.

In respective of the pandemic prevention and control, the company
established a epidemic prevention and control leading group,
formulated plans and guidelines, strictly implemented relevant
requirements, promptly purchased pandemic prevention materials,
and conducted pandemic prevention publicity and education.
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During the year, the company organized two firefighting evacuation
drills and provided follow-up training for 8 security personnel of
operating units, management. Consultant was engaged to conduct
18 special give safety inspections, and rectified, followed up and
supervised the hidden dangers.

Tiannuo emphasizes on the importance to safety in production.
During the year, safety inspections were conducted on the
production process 15 times, 47 hidden dangers were found,
and rectification has been carried out. It also provided 12 relevant
training sessions for employees with an average attendance of
155 person. In addition, a total of 303 people participated in
the employee safety knowledge assessment, all of them passed
with merit. Tiannuo also used promotional posters, slogans and
educational videos to enhance employees’ safety awareness.
Furthermore, Tiannou organized a number of emergency response
drills including fire, explosion, flood and production accidents. A
total of 251 people participated in 7 emergency drills to enhance

employees’ ability and respond to disasters.

During the year, the company have no death or serious injury at
work.

In addition, we provide all employees with free professional health
check every year.

TRAINING AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT

The Company invests sufficient resources in employee training and
development, so as to maintain the competitiveness, professional
level and moral standards of employees. All new employees must
receive training of industry knowledge, health and safety and job
skill.
we continuously offer expertise and skill training to employees every

Furthermore, guided by Annual Employee Training Program,

year, so that they can possess a high professional quality, maintain
their competitiveness, fulfill their duties and reach the highest service
standards.

The company provides online training for each middle and senior
management team each year, with an average of 54 class hours per
person this year. In addition, the company also provides:
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14 financial trainings with an average attendance of 10.6 people and
an average of 24 hours of training;

5 external management trainings with an average attendance of 1.2
people, and an average training time of 100 class hours; and

6 professional human resources and administrative trainings, with an
average attendance of 3.3 people, and an average of 52 hours of
training.

The hotel maintains training course for each employee. The training
hours for senior and mid-level management are 24 hours, and the
training hours for basic staffs are 33 hours.

LABOR REGULATIONS

With regard to labor standards and human right policy, the Company
strictly abides by relevant laws. The internal labor policy formulated
by the Company contains a strict ban on child labor or forced labor.
In each of the previous years, we smoothly passed the annual check
of labor supervision by relevant government authorities.

PRIVACY POLICY

The hotel aims to safeguard the personal data and information
of all stakeholders basis by formulating strict privacy protection
policies and complying with internationally recognised standards to
the greatest extent. The privacy policy of the hotel applies to the
data and information on its guests and other individuals who have
business contacts with the hotel, as well as the management of
such data and information in electronic or written form. The hotel
is committed to the safe personal information collection, personal
data processing, personal information use, personal information
disclosure and daily record management. All business activities are
in compliance with relevant national laws and regulations as well as
internationally recognised privacy protection standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The supplier management of the hotel is always an important link
of quality control system. The hotel has worked out strict purchase
control measures, so as to ensure the quality and safety of all
purchased raw materials. All food suppliers must provide inspection
and quarantine certificates issued by the government authorities of
hygiene and disease control. Materials supplied by other suppliers
must also have national quality and safety (QS) certificates. The
hotel has formulated and implemented a strict cargo receipt and
inspection system, ensuring the quality and safety of all materials
(including raw materials) purchased by us, local environmental
protection was focused on during the year, especially the water
quality and cleanliness of the river. It spent RMB3,000 to participate
in the cleaning of the river and protect the water resources, and the

voluntary work hours were 16 hours. ¢

PRODUCT LIABILITY

In the opinion of the Company, products represent the core
competitiveness of an enterprise. In order to practically improve
product quality and ensure customers’ rights and interests, we
have taken an active part in the event of “Brand Creation Year”
organised by the local government, formulated and implemented
the standardised management procedures of product quality, and

successfully applied for a brand enterprise.

A total of 37 service complaints in Hotel were received this year, and
all complaints were responded to in a timely manner. All complaints
will be reasonably compensated if any loss is caused to guests.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company carries out a zero-tolerance policy toward any act
of bribery, fraud or money-laundering. Both the Employee Manual
and Financial System formulated by the Company contain control
procedures for preventing bribery, fraud or money-laundering
from occurring. Moreover, the Company has set up a reporting
mechanism, through which employees can report any surreptitious
irregular act.
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The Company has a working group to carry out supervision and
inspection, to enhance awareness of accountability, to strengthen
efforts in cleaner governing organ building, safety production,
environmental protection, etc., and conducted comprehensive
integrity risk investigation and control, aiming to ensure the healthy
and stable development of the Group as a whole.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

For many years, the hotel has been helping local student
groups through cash donation, material donation and employee
participation, so as to meet our commitment to community service.

In addition, the hotel always pays high attention to the impact of
our operation on our community and environment, and tries to
minimize such impact, so as to fulfill our obligation as a member
of our community, local environmental protection was focused on
during the year, especially the water quality and cleanliness of the
river. It spent RMB3,000 to participate in the cleaning of the river and
protect the water resources, and the voluntary work hours were 16
hours.
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161 & 66 47 H TR 4 3]
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T L BUE 18198 KA K 15481501-8%
Tel B Hh: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {5 (852) 3104 0170

E-mail % #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
FERXZERERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 75 to 273,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter: Impairment of finance lease receivables
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Refer to Notes 6 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the impairment of the Group’s finance lease receivables
as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, and the use of judgement by the management
in evaluating the recoverability of finance lease receivables.

The carrying amount of finance lease receivables is HK$1,787,039,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$1,262,855,000),
contributed to approximately 29% (2019: 25%) to the total assets of

which

the Group. In determining the impairment for finance lease receivables,
the management considers the credit worthiness, past collection
history, subsequent settlement of each finance lease customer, and
also relevant deposits received, value of leased assets pledged and of
the guarantees. As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised an
impairment loss allowance of HK$17,452,000 (2019: HK$1,913,000).

As set out in Notes 6 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, management measures expected credit loss (“ECL”) for
finance lease receivable by using a provision matrix. In determining
the impairment of finance lease receivable, the management
considers internal credit rating which reflect shared credit risk
characteristics, historical past due information and lessees’
creditworthiness for different groupings of finance lease receivable as

parameters of the ECL models.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of finance
lease receivables included:

- understanding of the key controls over the granting of the
finance leases and management’s impairment assessment in
relation to the recoverability of finance lease receivables;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology for finance lease receivables based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information;

- assessing the credit profiles of the related borrowers based
on the external evidence and factors to determine the internal
credit ratings;

- evaluating the reasonableness of management’s determination
of the estimated loss rates based on internal credit ratings;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of finance lease receivables in Notes 6 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of investment properties and
PRC hotel properties

MBEAEER  REVERPEBENEDN
{8

Refer to Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
and PRC hotel properties are significant to our audit because
the determination of fair value of investment properties and hotel
properties is based on several key inputs that require significant
management judgments, assumptions, estimations and other inputs.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
the investment properties and the PRC hotel properties are
HK$350,058,000 (2019: HK$313,415,000) and HK$115,000,000
(2019: HK$115,000,000) respectively as at 31 December 2020.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties and PRC hotel properties included:

- assessing the valuation methodologies used by the external
valuer;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

- evaluating the independent external valuer’s competences,
capabilities and objectivity; and

- considering the appropriateness of the resale values estimated
by the external valuer based on the recent transaction prices in

the PRC and Hong Kong's property market.

Based on available evidence we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.

Key Audit Matter: Revenue recognition
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Refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$293,555,000
(2019 (Restated): HK$161,065,000), representing the gross amounts
received and receivable for revenue arising on big data business, civil
explosives business, hotel operation, wellness elderly care business,
sales of properties, goods sold by the Group to outside customers
less return and allowances, gross rental income, interest income
generated from financial leasing, consultancy fee income provided
to outsiders and others during the year. The Group adopted HKFRS
15 to consider the revenue recognition and significant judgements
and estimates were required to be made by the management. The
significance of the amount of revenue, the diversification of the
sources of revenue, and the extensive adoption of HKFRS 15 made
us identify revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

B2 RAEMBRRMET

EEBEWA AL BIE293,555,00070 (Z &
—h4E (7)) : B1161,065,00070) > J5i5
FRHAMBER RABFERER BIE
EE - ARBEEEER HEYE -LFEEDG
SHNARAZAHEERABREERITN A
ABEBEFEEZBERREKRZ WA BRI E
MEmMEEZFMBEWRA B RIBHEHR
BERAUKREMBALRZE BEEENR
BERMBREELF155REERARIKRE
AHEMEATEEZEEEFUER WA
THEZEEM - WAREZZHEL URE
B REELE155 Y B2 EREERM
BEWABSABEETEE-

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 $

63



64

NI AZ BT S

Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

- evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition;

- obtaining the ledgers and selecting samples to review
whether the management had made correct judgements
on identifying the contract, identifying single performance
obligation, determining the transaction price and other aspects.
Recalculating the accuracy of the progress of performance of
the contracts; and

- selecting samples of the contracts and inspecting the original
contracts, evaluating whether the management had made
reasonable estimates on transaction price (estimated total
revenues), obtaining evidence to confirm the degree of
completion of related service and comparing with the progress
of performance recorded in the Group’s ledger.

We found that the amount and the timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE »

Key Audit Matter: Accounting for interests in associates
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Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s associates operate in the PRC. The Group’s share of
profit of associates for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group’s interests in associates at that date are significant in the
context of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The financial information of associates is prepared in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards in the PRC which may differ
in certain respects from HKFRSs.

Converting the financial information of these entities into HKFRSs
for the purpose of equity accounting involves management making a
number of adjustments some of which are complex in nature.

We identified the accounting for interests in associates in the PRC as
a key audit matter because of the material impact that these entities
have on the consolidated financial statements and also because of
the complex nature of certain adjustments made by management
which we consider increases the inherent risk of error.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANBANARERRENEE

Our procedures to assess the accuracy of the accounting for
interests in associates included:

- performing an audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the PRC based associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company
Limited*, in accordance with the requirements of HKSAs;

- evaluating significant adjustments made in respect of the
associates to align their financial information in accordance
with HKFRSs by comparing the adjustments to underlying
documentation or by re-performing the calculations on which
the adjustments were based; and

- assessing whether the financial information of the associates
after the adjustments made by management was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We found management’s accounting for the associates after the
adjustments are supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.

Key Audit Matter: Impairment assessment on interests in
associates
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Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has significant interests in associates, which are
accounted for under the equity method. As at 31 December 2020,
interests in associates amounted to approximately HK$569,674,000
(2019: HK$651,873,000).

Interests in associates is subject to impairment assessments when
there is an indication of impairment.

Management analysed the associates’ cash flow and operating plan
and no abnormal items were found. Management concludes that
there is no impairment of interests in associates.

*

For identification purpose only
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on interests in
associates included:

- analysing associates’ cash flow and operating plan;

- assessing the identification of CGUs based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

- assessing the competency, objectivity, capabilities and results
of the work of independent professional valuer who was
appointed by the management and assisted management to
determine the recoverable amounts of relevant CGUs;

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology;

- assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions including
growth rates and discount rate, based on our knowledge and
understanding of the business and market;

- verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cashflow model
used; and

- testing input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and available market data, and considering the
reasonableness of the budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessments to be supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R | mENHEN S

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

On 24 August 2020, the Group had completed acquisition of an
additional 2% equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited (formerly known as “Guangdong Tiannuo GCivil
Co., Limited”)* (“Tiannuo”), in accordance with the terms of the
acquisition agreement. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
shareholding of Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage Investment Holding
Limited* (“Nanhai Canmanage”), a subsidiary of the Company, in
Tiannuo was changed from 49% to 51% and the Group had control
over Tiannuo.

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) of the subsidiary
acquired in the current year for impairment testing. Management is
required to assess at the end of the reporting period whether there is
any indicator that goodwill may be impaired.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

B 2RARGMBRRMEE20
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RRXAERERRAR FIBIERAERIER
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BEERAR (MEEEE) FEXRENKER
49% 18 E51% (AT EVIS K56 BV HI#E o

BREBAHERBHNBEEESEEWRENTF
AEZzREEEEMN ((REEEBEM) (FE
FEZAEAR BEEBREERSHRT
GHELANRETHEREFERE-

BRAONEANAREMARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on goodwill
included:

- Assessing management’s determination of the Group’s cash-
generating units based on our understanding of the nature of
the business and the economic environment in which the cash-
generating units operate.

- Based on our knowledge of the business and industry,
challenging the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and data used in the cash flow forecasts
(including revenue growth rate, operating profit, and discount
rate used).

Based on our procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to goodwill are supported by plausible
evidence.

*

For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

REESEE BARENAR
RMEENMLE

HmZE

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has invested in certain financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with fair value of HK$77,524,000 (2019:
HK$54,757,000) as at 31 December 2020.

These investments were all measured at fair value using level 3
inputs which were not based on active market prices, nor based on
observable market data.

Management assessed and measured the fair value of FVTPL using
particular valuation techniques, with assistance from an external
appraisal firm. The valuation process was highly judgmental due
to its reliance on management’s assumptions such as discount
rate, volatility and probability weighting, liquidation and redemption
scenarios, etc.

The determination of the model adopted and key inputs required
management’s significant judgment or estimation. The prescribed
value of the FVTPL is significant to the financial statements. In view
of this we have identified this as a key audit matter.

B 2RGREMBRRNE23
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARESTEIE @

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRANEANARERARENSTE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial assets at
FVTPL included:

- Understanding and evaluating the internal controls relating
to management’s model used, development of significant
assumptions and estimates, and major data inputs related to
the fair value measurement;

- Obtained the calculation of fair value estimation of financial
assets at FVTPL, evaluating the appropriateness of the model
used and testing the accuracy of the calculation;

- Evaluating the independent external appraisal firm’s
competence, capability and objectivity;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies and key
assumptions adopted by management including expected
revenue growth rates, expected profit margins, discounted
rates and volatility and reconciling the input data of expected
revenue growth rates and expected profit margins to
management’s forecast of future profits, strategic plans and
business data.

Based on available evidence we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
(“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing, the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibilities towards or
accept liabilities to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

ZHEMM Bt E B R ERRAE
NEE®

— HEEFEFRAGHEROEEMER
EH s Ast MERKEENNGE
Mo

- HEFHAFACEGHERNBE
MEAE A 5R o IRIRPTIS BB 5H/REE 2 R
EREFREHEEAUBEREBRNERKN
THEEM MAEN SEEFECE
BEENRBAMEREE - WREMBHF
EERTREEN  RIA L EZERHETR
ERRFEAENERMBRETHN
RRAREE T - REARMNE
BERAE IRMAHAIFERERR
RZBETRE - HANEREEREE
ZEENER S B IEPREVS BB ST/RE - 24
m: AREREHRERAEEN S&EH

B EIEE -

— EERVHBRENERIRLSA B
BAOAD SRNEERN UREEM
BREESANRMIZFMEIER-

MERPERNEF TN B ERIERT
D BEENETEER UREEYBRRE
KRR -AMEEEE BEENRTEES
steRFIEARMNBERERKESE-

RPEGEEBR T8 NETEE FRE
R BEREBSAEHEEFR OERMAETE
ST HA RS 3851 P9 BB 4% I AU (£ (7T 2 K EARE o

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 $

73



74

NI AZ BT S

Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Fai Fiona

Practicing Certificate Number P0O4986
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z - ZHF+_H=+—HI1 Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—EITHF “E-NEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5k BT BT
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FBRIRE 2 ¥
Revenue A 7 293,555 161,065
Cost of sales and services & K ARTE AL AN (137,763) (90,784)
Gross profit EF 155,792 70,281
Other operating income H &S WA 9 110,493 97,038
Selling and distribution costs HE RDHBEX (9,049) (4,349)
Administrative expenses THHAX (148,689) (116,351)
Share of profit of associates FEILERE A B B 21 67,897 84,354
Increase in fair value of investment KEWMEZ A NEL
properties 18 49 4,618
Increase in fair value of financial assets SFABRZEMEEY
at fair value through profit or loss NAEIE 20,094 41,015
Impairment loss on property held for sale  FHEYEZ FHEE K% (1,598) -
Gain on write-off of other payables B rEEREZHt
legally time barred and lapsed FE A =R O] W 25 - 78,819
Net loss on step acquisition DR ZIFIEL 42 (5,667) -
Loss on early redemption of RAEL MR RE
convertible notes Bx 33 - (991)
Loss on the disposal of subsidiaries and HERB AR KIIA
an asset classified as held for sale FHEEEZEX 22a (89,177) -
Impairment loss on an asset classified JAFHEEEZ
as held for sale EAEESES 22 - (28,838)
Impairment loss on finance lease MEEERKRIEZ
receivables EAEESES 27 (14,589) (1,009)
Impairment loss on other receivables HMEWRRIEZ
EAEESES 29 (38,033) -
Finance costs M 10 (123,696) (109,032)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRIRAT (B518) & A (26,173) 115,555
Income tax expense PR = 11 (39,333) (34,127)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing &K E 2 KREE
operations (B548) /BH| (65,506) 81,428
Discontinued operation BARIEEE 7 #55
Loss for the year from discontinued BERIERE XK
operation KEERE 12 (530) (1,516)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (58 B 13 (66,036) 79,912

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 202

0

75



76

S e T B HAth 2= [ Y Am 2%
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z-_ZHF+_"_F=+—HIL Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
> Jal> <3 5 Z—NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Other comprehensive income/ Hit 2wk~
(expense), net of income tax () > F?*ﬁ?ﬁ
Items reclassified to profit or loss: BEMDEEEm L
EH :
Exchange difference upon deemed RARBE—FEEH
disposal of a foreign associate BEABZ
HNFE ZEEE = 231
Release of exchange reserve upon BHH—BEEE
step acquisition from an associate NEE—EE
to a subsidiary ’ATZ 3 IS
ik 42 5,688 -
Release of exchange reserve upon T u“_n ﬁ ERBA
disposal of subsidiaries and an KB AR ﬁ’i
asset classified as held for sale BEEZERHRE 22a 21,231 -
Item that will not be reclassified to FEEMHEERDZ
profit or loss: EHH
Surplus on revaluation of hotel properties  &/E ¥ ¥ &L R i 4,894 4,694
Items that may be reclassified BISEERT 74 E
subsequently to profit or loss: EmZEH
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETSE
translation of foreign operations EEZINEEEE 110,877 (15,863)
Gain on partial disposal of interest in tlj’i—F? M@ A El
a subsidiary D
Hﬁz - 8,927
Share of exchange difference of FELEE AT
associates INEEZEER 21 33,654 (15,436)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) EFEWJ%E
for the year, net of income tax s, X
HIBREF 2R 176,344 (17,447)
Total comprehensive income for the year  FE 2 E U B %8 110,308 62,465
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (518) &BH
attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company KRBVEB A (83,871) 68,612
Non-controlling interests JEER R 17,835 11,300
(66,036) 79,912
Total comprehensive income FEZEWRERES -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KREVEE AN 39,191 58,213
Non-controlling interests JEVER R 71,117 4,252
110,308 62,465
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z - ZHF+_H=+—HI1 Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—EIEHF —ZT—hHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
IS BT BT
(Restated)
(BE%)
(Loss)/earnings per share s (5518) &BH 17
From continuing and discontinued FERKERBERIEREE
operations E¥
Basic BN (HK4.90 cents) HK4.01 cents
(& %54.9011) 4.0
Diluted s (HK4.90 cents) HK4.01 cents
(7 #&4.9011) BE4.011
From continuing operations FRERE 2 X
Basic B (HK4.87 cents) HK4.10 cents
(B ¥54.871L) 4101
Diluted E (HK4.87 cents) HK4.10 cents
(B #¥4.8710) BE4101
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R -FF+_F=+—H As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—E-THE —E-NEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT BT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties KEYE 18 350,058 313,415
Property, plant and equipment ME--BRERZE 19 1,216,148 510,091
Goodwill mE 20 132,151 -
Interests in associates ﬁ?Hﬁ*M’\TZ%“ 21 569,674 651,873
Financial assets at fair value BARES AEBR
through profit or loss TREE 23 13,643 14,318
Finance lease receivables MEEEE W 27 1,348,274 739,311
Rental deposits HE®E 4,821 4,842
Right-of-use assets FREEE 24 1,014,500 988,067
Deductible value added tax FIRNEER 28 50,416 -
4,699,685 3,221,917
Current assets RENEE
Properties held for sale HEYME 25 6,500 8,098
Inventories FE 26 5,257 529
Financial assets at fair value BARESAEBRZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 63,881 40,439
Finance lease receivables A& TH & UK 27 438,765 523,544
Trade and other receivables FEHKEE R LAt FE UL
ES QL] 29 66,585 79,440
Tax recoverable AUkl 18 967 -
Pledged bank deposits BIRHIRITER 30 25,468 32,958
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 30 798,263 1,028,396
1,405,686 1,713,404
Asset classified as held for sale JAFHEEE 22 - 212,345
1,405,686 1,925,749
Current liabilities mEBaE
Trade and other payables FETERR &Hﬁﬂ
ENE S 31 94,576 54,502
Tax payables FEMIR & 28,988 31,442
Deferred income iR JE U 2 37 312 -
Deferred tax liabilities LR IBE(E 34 44,118 -
Deposits received from customers BWEFREE 3,207 13,076
Lease liabilities HEa® 24 50,675 17,427
Borrowings & 32 1,250,142 1,303,788
1,472,018 1,420,235
Net current (liabilities)/assets T (BR) EEFE (66,332) 505,514
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRSHERE 4,633,353 3,727,431
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RIE-ZF+"HA=+—H Asat 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% BT BT
Capital and reserves AR
Share capital fig 2 35 171,233 171,233
Reserves (B 973,164 933,973
Equity attributable to owners EATEE AEG#ER
of the Company 1,144,397 1,105,206
Non-controlling interests JEYERG HE 38 843,935 600,764
Total Equity R 4EEE 1,988,332 1,705,970
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings EE 32 1,305,803 846,249
Convertible notes ARG AR 33 122,565 113,453
Deferred income iR SE U 2 37 81,960
Deferred tax liabilities ELEIRIEE (S 34 17,559 10,558
Deposits received from customers BEWEFEE 75,133 43,798
Lease liabilities HEas 24 1,042,001 1,007,403
2,645,021 2,021,461
4,633,353 3,727,431
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 273 were SH75HEF273BZHMBRERENVN T —
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 F=H=+HESEZgH FREETE T
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: HUTEERRSEE !
HE XIANGMING HUANG ZHIHE
fAIF1ER =EM
Director Director
o )
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAFRE ARGER
Hotel
property Convertible Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation Exchange note equity ~ Capital ~Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve*  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests equity
EENE TRREE
Bx  RAEE EEAR  EftHE EREG ERRE BELEE  E5EG  REE @it EEREE BERNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
ARTn BETR ARTrn BNTn B¥Tn A¥Tn BETn ARTn BETR ARTn BA%Tn  BRTR
THE GROUP HE@
At 1 January 2020 RIEZ5E-F-H 171,233 725,199 143,162 8,927 52,505  (170,627) 56,616 - 118,191 1,105206 600,764 1,705,970
(Loss}/profit for the year REE (BB /B = - - - - - - - (83871) (83,871) 17,835  (66,036)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEMZE B/
income for the year Wi
- Surplus on revaluation of hotel —EENEERRE
properties - - - - 4,894 - - - - 4,894 - 4,894
- Release of revaluation reserve —BEYEER
of hotel properties HEER - - - - (2,035) - - - 2,035 - - -
- Release of exchange reserve -RiE-BHEAFE
upon step acquisition to —EREARZSA
a subsidiary SREZEREE - - - - - 5,688 - - - 5,688 - 5,688
- Release of exchange reserve -RUHENBAAR
upon disposal of subsidiaries JIABHEEEZ
and an asset classified as held ERE
for sale - - - - - 21,231 - - - 21,231 - 21,231
- Exchange differences arising -REENEBREE
on translation of foreign ZHEER
operations - - - - - 57,595 - - - 57,595 53,282 110,877
- Share of exchange difference of ~EEHEAT
associates (Note 21) MNEERE (Hzk21) - - - - - 33,654 - - - 33,654 - 33,654
Other comprehensive Income EEHM2ENRE
for the year - - - - 2859 118168 - - 205 123062 53282 176,344
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EEERE R/
income for the year WHEE = - - - 2859 118168 - - B183%8) 39191 T417 110,308
Upon step acquistion from an B-EREARI-H
associate to a subsidiary (Note 42) ~ HBAZZAFWE
(&42) - - - - - - - - - - 183771 183,771
Dividend paid to non-controling HEERERSAZRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - M) (11,17)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATAR - - 212 - - - - - (20,212 - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZEE
+ZF=+-H 171,233 725,199 163,374 8,927 55,364 (52,459) 56,616 - 16,143 1,144,397 843935 1,988,332
* ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss * FrEEMDEEERZIER
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Attributable to owners of the Company

SroRET AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

RARER NS
Hotel
property Convertible Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation ~ Exchange note equity Capital  Retained controling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve’  reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
BEENE TRRE
BR  RAGE AEAR  EMEE EEEE ERHE BsEE ErEE  REET B EEREE  ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKEO00  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTn BETn ABTn BETn E%Trx A¥Tn BTrx A¥Tn ETn EETn BETn E¥Tre
THE GROUP HE[@
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-B-H 171,233 725199 117,838 - 49,845 (151,513) 34,700 3,079 42,734 993,115 338205 1,331,320
Profit for the year rEERF - - - - - - - - 68612 68612 11,300 79912
Other comprehensive income/ EEEMEZENE/
(expense) for the year (B2
- Surplus on revaluation of hotel —EENEERRE
properties - - - - 4,694 - - - - 4,694 - 4,694
- Release of revaluation reserve —BEYEER
of hotel properties HEED - - - - (2,034) - - - 2,084 - - -
- Exchange differences upon —RIEHE-R 75‘%
deemed disposal of a foreign BEANT
associate f@#%ﬁ - - - - - 231 - - - 231 - 231
- Exchange differences arising -REENEBREE
on translation of foreign ZHEER
operations - - - - - (8,815) - - - (8,815) (7,048)  (15,863)
- Gain on partial disposal of -HE-HNBATZ
interest in a subsicliary PrkmzWE - - - 8,927 - - - - - 8,927 - 8,927
- Share of exchange difference of ~EEHEAT
associates (Note 21) SNEZER (zE21) - - - - - (15430) - - - (1543) - (1543)
Other comprehensive income/ EEEMZENE/
(expense) for the year (B) - - ST 2600 (24020 - S om4 (0399 (048 (17.447)
Total comprehensive income/ EEERANE/
(expense) for the year (@) 8 - - ST 2600 (24020 - S 70846 58213 4250 60.466
Acaquisition of additional interest in —EREAFZ
a subsidiary BIMER - - - - - - - - - - 1,178 1,178
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ FEER R FE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 175985 175,985
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BEHERBAT - - - - - - - (3079 - (3079 3,079 -
Divicend paid to non-controling BFEREES RS
interests - - - - - - - - - - (1,621) (1,621)
Deregistration of a subsidiary FH-HREALT - - - - - - - - - - (993) (993)
Transfer upon early redemption of ~ RERIBERAHRREE
convertible notes FEd - - - - - - (34,700) - 30,13 (4,565) - (4,565)
Recognition of equity component of B EIAREEZ
convertible notes (Note 33) BRI (HzE33) - - - - - - 56,616 - - 56,616 - 56616
Partial disposal of a subsidiary E-RNBARZ
Baem - - - - - 4,906 - - - 4,906 80,679 85,585
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELENR - - 2534 - - - - - (25324 - - -
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NF
+-B=1+-H 171,233 725199 143,162 8,927 52,505 (170,627) 56,616 - 118191 1,105206 600,764 1,705,970
* ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss * TEEMNEERZZER
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SEEEHEHESR
Consolhidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2020 2019
—ETHE —NnF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M =E BT BET T
Operating activities RS RE
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB /B (66,036) 79,912
Adjustment for: MU TIEEEHRAE .
Bank interest income IRITH B A (14,524) (14,515)
Finance costs B 123,742 109,032
Income tax expense 8B 11 39,333 34,127
Increase in fair value of investment KREWMEZ RNAE
properties 1 18 (49) (4,618)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate {84 & — R Ht =
NEZ W 9 - (4,400)
Gain on write-off of other payables BRrEEREZ
legally time barred and lapsed LA FE 1 7 o] 4
W25 13 - (78,819)
Increase in fair value of financial assets AR TR/
at fair value through profit or loss BEZRANE
=Rl (20,094) (41,015)
Interest income from financial leasing REMBEHREN
FIBUA 7 (90,123) (47,849)
Interest income from rental deposits HEZEZ
FE WA 9 (217) -
Share of profit of associates B = A BB F 21 (67,897) (84,354)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE
plant and equipment B R & EEE 13 33 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERANES A
at fair value through profit or loss mZEMEERE 9 (1,620) -
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BE&
equipment MEITE 19 21,796 16,006
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEERNE 24 31,082 25,566
Provision written-back on trade and FE W BR TR
other receivables HMEWERIEZ
BB [B] 5 29 (15) ()
Impairment loss on asset classified IRFHEBEZ
as held for sale PEAEEEES 22 - 28,838
Impairment loss on finance lease MEHEERERZ
receivables EAEREES 27 14,589 1,009
Impairment loss on other receivables HMEKERRZ
PEAEREES 13 38,033 -
Impairment loss on properties SEWMEZBEEK
held for sale 13 1,598 -
Loss on early redemption of IR EE [ A A R R &
convertible notes ZiBK 33 - 991
Loss on acquisition of additional interest ~ IEE—EREB AT Z
of a subsidiary EIMER 2 B518 - 2,378
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries and HEWB AR KRIA
an asset classified as held for sale FHEBEZEX 22a 39,177 -
Net loss on step acquisition DEUNEEZIFIEKL 42 5,667 -
Rent concession %ﬂ%ﬂz S 24 (5,085) -
Net exchange (gain)/loss = (&) 18k
JFRE (17,308) 5,194




OB ER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% BT BT
Operating cash flow before movements in & E&E&EEF 2
working capital KEIHB MBS 32,082 27,482
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (g 1,785 (149)
Decrease in properties held for sale FEYERD - 30,902
Decrease/(increase) in rental deposit in FREEEZHAE
respect of right-of-use assets L, () 2,472 (19,626)
Increase in deposits received from BINEF&EI1gm
customers 21,466 35,559
Increase in finance lease receivables 74 & A & R YRR 0 (438,639) (674,622)
Increase in trade and other receivables FE U AR 1 e EL At
& WL RR TE B 0 (2,738) (54,376)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FE AT BR TR R E A FE A
other payables M, Ol) 41,603 (7,491)
Increase in deferred income 3% SIE WA 2 12 0 76,108 -
Cash used in operations KEMHIRE (265,861) (662,321)
Interest income from financial BUCREREREN
leasing received B A 84,777 44,708
Tax paid EfNRE (40,392) (30,264)
Net cash used in operating activities (E&EFE2RE
Pk b & 12 (221,476) (647,877)
Investing activities KREIEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEBEY% K E
R 1E 19 (449,701) (129,586)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERANET AR
through profit or loss Z2EMEE 23 = (6,756)
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE 18 - (200,145)
Proceeds from partial disposal of interest HE—RERBATZ
in a subsidiary EB DRI 2 FT 1S RN IE - 94,512
Acquisition of additional interest WiE—RHNERBE 2
in a subsidiary EIMER = (1,200
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits REARZIEARBA
with more than three months to —BEZEHRER
maturity when placed B () 55,928 (1,115)
Capital injection to an associate m—EREABIEE 21 - (45,352)
Dividend received from an associate Bk e —HEEE QT
R E 21 - 46,889
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEIZA BT AEBE
at fair value through profit or loss ZERBEZE
ig 8,529 -
Net cash inflows from step acquisition H—EEE s E—E
from an associate to a subsidiary M B A Bz WS
Z FriSRIE$ &8 42 50,135 -
Net cash inflows from disposal of HENB AR KR EA
subsidiaries and an asset classified as FHEEEFEE
held for sale 22a 154,729 -
Payments of deregistration of a subsidiary ¥ 85— /B A S
FIT {3 #0158 - (993)
Uplift of pledged bank deposit BRI FE IR 7,490 44,797
Interest received BYF 2 14,613 14,402
Net proceeds from disposal of property, LENE-BER
plant and equipment REBEPTERIBEEE 18 14
Net cash used in investing activities KREGSHZRE
TR PR (158,259) (184,533)
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SEEEHEHESR
Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—B_F “ZT-hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT BT
Financing activities LB EEY
Capital injection from non-controlling JEERERTE
interests - 175,985
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A JEIERRE R L (TS (11,717) (1,621)
Payment of handling fee BENFEE 10 (9,526) -
Payment of loan arrangement fee ENERZHE 10 (3,140) (3,359)
Interest paid on borrowings ENERFE 30(b) (52,001) (38,768)
Interest paid on convertible notes B RKREENE 33 (3,325) (3,325)
Repayment of borrowings BEEM; 30(b) (818,914) (394,185)
Payments of lease liabilities ER=R=RETTENE/ O 24 (42,029) (14,077)
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEMIE 30(b) 1,097,897 929,780
Net cash generated from RMEEE RS
financing activities MAHER 157,245 650,430
Net decrease in cash and cash HERAETZEEY
equivalents BB (222,490) (181,980)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—HzHREK
1 January REEFEY 972,468 1,166,858
Effect of foreign exchange rates EXEHzEE
changes 48,285 (12,410)
Cash and cash equivalents at B+ZB=+—HZ2
31 December RERREEFEY 798,263 972,468
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERREL%EY
cash equivalents, being: EBRAWAHAUT
EHEHERK :
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRES 798,263 1,028,396
Less: time deposit with maturity o BE=ERZ
over three months EHER - (55,928)
798,263 972,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is
Prize Rich Inc, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the ultimate holding company is Guangdong
Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd, which was incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group are big
data business, civil explosives, property development and
investment, financial leasing, hotel operation, investment
holding and wellness elderly care business. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
described in Note 44.

T-Box® business was discontinued on 1 July 2020. Details
of which are set out in Note 12. Accordingly, the comparative
figures at the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been restated to reflect the discontinued operation.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

b

RAB R EREZMAILAEERR
BERAB ERONREBHERZFE
PRAB (THsZFR)) TR e HEZE
KRABAREBREZESE (HBRY
B¥ 5 1) s WAL L Z Prize Rich Inck H &
BRERRABIARPEARSEME (T
B MR zEREEEREER
RABl - ANBAMMBEERFETELE
BRI H AR ER TA B E R 5 &
T

FEEME AEBZZE2EH /R
BEZ RABEREB WMELEREK
RE-RMEHEHE - BELE KEER
RABEREBERF -FABREWEA
8 (TAEH) 2TB2XHBEHNWEE
440

T-BOXCEFH LN _E_ZTFtH—H
BIb-BRIGFEMIINMIEE12 1L
BHE_ZS—-hE+_-_RB=+—HIE=E
EzReEnkEMmE2mlaiza
EBEHFELER  URMZEFR K
ko

MERETNEE

AEENSERNUBREAMBIER
DERAZEREEMENIEZLEIR
IBPAEANER (G StE 4R
GBMBRRILUBE (TBK) 258
EREARABNIMEEEREEENE

7 et o
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

GOING CONCERN

Notwithstanding that the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$66,332,000 as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2020 have
been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the liquidity of the Group can be
maintained in the coming year after taking into consideration of
the following matters:

Included in the current liabilities are obligations under
borrowings — due within one year (the “Borrowings”) of
approximately HK$690,935,000 with the repayment on demand
clause which were classified as current liabilities in accordance
with HK' Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and are
not repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period according to the repayment schedule. The Directors
are of the opinion that the Borrowings will not be required to
be repaid in full within a year under normal circumstances and
when the monthly instalments are paid according to schedule,
which the Directors are confident that they could achieve.
Taking this into consideration, the Directors consider that the
liquidity position of the Group would be positive.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are or
have become effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on 1 January 2020:

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19 Related Rent

Concessions (Early adopted)

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material

Revised Conceptual Revised Conceptual Framework

Framework for Financial Reporting

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

FE R #hs] R R8T B BRI 55
ﬁ%%’;ﬁﬂu (TEREMBREE
Al

RAEE AEEBR _ZE-_ZF—H—

HRGEIZENHTBHFEEBRRAS

BEHMAGEMZ THRKBITEE

MRS 2R .

SEVBREEL EBNTEE
B3 (85])

EAEMBRELEL FERBEERE
FI EBUH

REEREHE K
EAGHEBER
£5395%
EEMBREENE  COVID-1918R8E
165% (1B85]) TRE (REIE
)

BHEGENEIR BEMNTR

BETBLSHER BIIMBEREHS

R

RMEEI BB BREEINHEA
538 1 & 5t A FﬁZﬁ%lﬁﬂ“&ﬁﬁ*}R
WEBRATE -RILBAMBEEZSHH
EEHAEE -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective. The Directors of the Group anticipate that the

application of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have

no material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16

and HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 17

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018 — 2020 cycle?

Reference to Conceptual
Framework?

Interest rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments?®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Process before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2028.

4 Effective date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs), the collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“cQ”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties, financial
instruments that are measured at fair values and assets held
for sales that are measured at fair value less costs to sell as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost are
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

4, BEEE

sHER
AR

FEMBRRDREEZEIAMAE
(TEBEERAE)) BHRZAEER
EEUBREER (EBMBREE

Al  BREFEBERZERNEEBMBR
SEABRGHERZERR UL
SR BV BRREAMIAES £
mRA (TEHRA) REBRABEA
(TRBMRAL) RENBRWEERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities (including structured

entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies to
be in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination

Acquisition of business, other than business combination
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value if the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after the reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
(which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts

information obtained during the “measurement period”

and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
the interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments/
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets and liabilities at the
respective fair value, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on step acquisition from
an associate to a subsidiary is described in note 20.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The
financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments/
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

i.

Hotel properties

Hotel properties are stated at revalued amounts, being
fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
impairment loss. Fair value is determined with reference
to appraisals by external professional valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of hotel properties
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are accumulated in the properties revaluation reserve
in equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decrease has previously
been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase
is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of
the increase dealt with in other comprehensive income.
A decrease in net carrying amount of hotel properties
arising on revaluations or impairment testing is recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the properties revaluation reserve
relating to the same asset and the remaining decrease is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

ii.

iii.

Property, plant and equipment (other than Hotel
properties)

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
properties) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

2% to 10%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings
Furniture, equipment and
leasehold improvements
10% to 30%
15% to 30%

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when it is completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Assets held for sale

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of interests, in an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment (or
a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and right-of-use assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significant reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGFEE @

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERMIA =
Financial assets (Continued) ETHEE (B)

EHEENTERAETE (B

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income i B R A B WA
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest MEWARMEBILEHEN AT E

method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

ii. Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables and finance lease receivables) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to twelve-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

4. EEEHEHEEK &

EWMIA (&

THEE (F)
EAEE R E ()

. EEREBRKXBIEIN GE

LHR FEEERRESKIE
EmEgERETIER !

— EMIEINE WA) AR
EEFRNERNIBHREK
=16

— EERERNINRHISIERN
EXBE ANEERERXN
B0 ;

- TEHREREHABTHE
BEENED KRB TENE
B MBRAEERINRE
SRR EE

- EBAKERENERARE
HEABL &

- EBEREHBABTHEHEE
BIBE I KRIB N EBIEFHAPR
EEE KB ARMREN
BRREEXRTH &S -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4

115



116

e A5 AR B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGHBE @
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIA &
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (B)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events of default that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-

impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
iii.  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the Probability
of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure at
default. The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between a contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instruments level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status; and
° Nature, size and industry of debtors.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

ii.  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
from hotel operation and finance lease receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its consolidated statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In such cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for a financial
asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Convertible notes

The component parts of the compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. GEHHER &

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Other financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of each reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows
a 5-step process in accordance with HKFRS 15:

1. I[dentifying the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3.  Determining the transaction price

4.  Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction
price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. g5tHE @

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) ks ()

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income AEEKZ REMKRERN G5 IK

recognition policies are as follows: R ELZHMETIUWT -

(i)  Hotel operations, wellness elderly care business and () BIEEE ABEEEEBRLA
big data business BIFEFE
Revenue arising from hotel operations, wellness elderly BERE - KEREEEBERK
care business and big data business are recognised when HBEEB WA FIREEBRE
the relevant services are rendered. PR SR ©

(i) Sales of goods (i) BYHE
Sales of goods other than properties are recognised when BRMENZEYIBETIRERBE
goods are delivered and title has passed. MEEIR R E R I T AR o

(iii) Sales of properties (i) HEYE
Revenue from the sale of properties are recognised when HEMEZ IWATRSTREEELY
goods are delivered and title has passed. RNZENRERESYE

BRERFIBERESD o

(iv) Interest income from financial leasing (iv) KEHEZHENFEMKA
Interest income from financial leasing including handling FEREHENFEKRA EF
fees (if any) represents interest income from financial BIEFEE (WER) KKRTHE
leasing business, is allocated to accounting periods so as HEXZETPNAERA > 20
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s B HEURMAEEREE
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. ZHRHERENEERIHREK-

(v) Consultancy service income from financial leasing (v) KEREFHERZHRFEBA
Consultancy service income from financial leasing is REMEBEENEBARE AT

recognized when the services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vi)

Rental income

Rental income arising from properties let under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

(viii) Dividend income

(ix)

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount

of revenue can be measured reliably).

Operating income from big data business

Operating income from big data business includes

providing business IT management, design,
implementation and support services under fixed-price
contracts is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting period
as a proportion of the total services to be provided
because the customer receives and uses the benefits

simultaneously.

Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling
price.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(x)

Income from construction of platform and technical
service from big data business

Income from construction of platform and technical
service from big data business is recognised over time
as the Group creates or enhances an asset or work
in progress that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to transfer

services to a customer for which the Group has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer. If the considerations (including advances received

from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date

under the output method then the Group recognises a contract

liability for the difference.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income or a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Government
grants relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from
the related expenses, other government grants are presented
under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangement, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
and over the lease terms of the relevant right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(“ORSO Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
scheme are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts
for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both:

i) periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

ii) periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

In assessing whether a lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a
lease.

Lease are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the statement of financial position
as finance lease receivables. Any unguaranteed residual value
is also recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference
between the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and their
present value is recognised as unearned finance income.
Unearned finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The non-lease components are accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s policies.

For determination of the lease term, the Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that:

i) is within the control of the Group; and

ii) affects whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an
option previously included in its determination of the lease
term.

At the commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability under the lease contract.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

For determination of the lease term, the Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that:

) is within the control of the Group; and

ii) affects whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an
option previously included in its determination of the lease
term.

At the commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability under the lease contract.

Leases liability

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured by (a)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGFEE @

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases liability (Continued)

Where, (a) there is a change in the lease term as a result of
reassessment of certainty to exercise an extension option,
or not to exercise a termination option as discussed above;
or (b) there is a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset, assessed considering the
events and circumstances in the context of a purchase option,
the Group remeasures the lease liability to reflect changes to
lease payments by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate. The Group determines the
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease
for the remainder of the lease term, if that rate can be readily
determined, or the incremental borrowing rate at the date of
reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be
readily determined.

Where, (a) there is a change in the amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee; or (b) there is a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or a rate used to determine those payments, including
a change to reflect changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged
discount rate, unless the change in lease payments results
from a change in floating interest rates. In such case, the
Group uses a revised discount rate that reflects changes in the
interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases liability (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if both:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

Lease modifications that are not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group, at the effective date of the lease modification:
(a) allocates the consideration in the modified contract; (b)
determines the lease term of the modified lease; and (c)
remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that
rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost comprising:

i)

amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. These costs are recognised as
part of the cost of right-of-use asset when the Group
incurs an obligation for these costs. The obligation for
these costs are incurred either at the commencement
date or as a consequence of having used the underlying
asset during a particular period.

After initial recognition, a lessee shall measure the right-of-

use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and

any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any

remeasurement of the lease liability.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles and offices that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

4. EBE

TR &

A (&)
FEFEBEMA (E)
201977 2 il i & R IS 1R 1 £ Bl %2

ME01GMBEBRFFRBEEEER
MEENEERMEMS > HASUTPR
BiRtt xEEEEERBATRES
ERHEEEEHESBAEET !

— HEMRNEEEEERNEBEFRR
B M RN BREERE
A EENBARER > DR
ZEREFHEENRE

— MHEMRNEAROEZERE
HERA T —FAB=+H%
ZHEIBINR &

— RENEMERREETEEE
8o

ERAZATEERZENAEBARMES
HREEENBENREFHAANALK
A BEAARMEHIIFEEETH
BRT BRAEAMBRSERH165E
REBARPIAN S AR - BEMR
NRENBERIESAIEEETMAK
HEAEEEETURABURRERL N
HEMNEER URZEHFEERBIRE
g A EREE o



e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

ii. the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vili)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity, and include:

(a)

(b)

(©

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts or bank loans, if
any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of an enterprise’s cash managements are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that management has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed that
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. Moreover, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is lower than acquisition cost. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on change in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
incomes taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Deferred taxation on hotel properties

By comparing the initial cost and the revaluated value of PRC
hotel properties of the Group, the Directors considered that
no capital gain is generated and does not constitute a timing
difference and do not expect there will be any tax liabilities.
Therefore, deferred tax has not been recognised in respect of
the valuation surplus relating to hotel properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the higher of fair value of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets less
costs to sell or the value-in-use calculations. An impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported no
impairment loss for property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (2019: Nil).

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified
external valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the
qualified external valuers’ findings to the board of Directors
of the Company every semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6, 18 and
19 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and hotel properties

The Group’s properties were revalued as at 31 December 2020
based on appraised market value by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimate of fair value, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties in the same location and condition
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amounts of investment properties and hotel
properties at 31 December 2020 were HK$350,058,000 and
HK$115,000,000 respectively (2019: HK$313,415,000 and
HK$115,000,000).

5.

BERGHHAEREBERETE
AEZNFEKRKE @

EEHEMBEERBRZAAE (@)

A% BIRA O 1IN T RE DR
828 B 2 B A MEETE P 2 15 1 B £
HETESMTAZ ARE- W6
18RI EE S EEERAES A
AERAA GERN BABRTE
B> HBER -

EEREMERBENEAAE

RIEERARBEMEEER AEEBEE EE
BIZREUNE - R EENY
X2RITHME TERFEREERS
HRzmREEZBR -EEMERZ
ZTEF+ZA=+—BEBIUIEE
EEEMPET L 2 HEETEM - BB
BENREBEE TERRET WEFNEL
HERNEZEXNEHERERBEERE
o

RIEZEE+_A=+—HEREY
ERBEEMEZERRESNABE
350,058,0007T Kz 7 #115,000,0007T
(ZZE—NF : #B¥313,415,0007t &
##115,000,0007T) ©

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4

149



150

/> # =3
Gro A R b R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and finance
lease receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss allowance for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables by assessing the ECLs, which requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Assessing the ECLs requires
the use of a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, general conditions, internal credit
ratings and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
allowance of ECLs is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECLs and the Group’s impairment
loss allowance regarding trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in Notes 6, 27 and 29.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or
upward revision of discount rate, an impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$132,151,000 (2019: Nil) net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$Nil (2019: Nil). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 20.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in the
PRC and Hong Kong and accordingly are subject to special
considerations and several risks.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Majority of the Group’s operating income and costs are
denominated in RMB. In the business operation of the Group,
foreign exchange fluctuation of income and costs would be
mutually offset. However, as the Hong Kong-based Group
has invested substantial borrowings into domestic wholly-
owned subsidiaries in the PRC whilst owning substantial RMB
denominated monetary assets, an exchange gain or loss will be
recorded due to the appreciation or depreciation of RMB. The
Management expected that RMB will be immensely affected by
any change in the Sino-US trade war and epidemic dynamics
in the short term, therefore the trend of RMB is unforeseeable
in the short term. In the long run, RMB’s exchange rate will not
fluctuate drastically and will not bring material adverse foreign
exchange risk on the Group. Therefore, the Group currently
does not have any specific foreign exchange risk hedging need
for this matter.

Besides, parts of the Group’s bank balances and borrowings
are denominated in US dollars. The sensitivity of fluctuation
in US dollars exchange rate is considered insignificant as the
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars based on The
Linked Exchange Rate System.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

6.
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At 31 December

®w+ZA=+—H

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BHEF T

Assets BE
Denominated in Renminbi AREEH 2,627,153 2,306,049
Denominated in US dollars ETEHE 84,440 85,972
2,711,593 2,392,021

Liabilities afE
Denominated in Renminbi AREEH 2,003,034 2,421,361
Denominated in US dollars ETEHE 697,826 701,010
2,700,860 3,122,371
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 6. MEREREIRE &
Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued) ShEERE ()
The following shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase/ TRETARERBEAE HZE
decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars. The sensitivity N RED T - ZBREDTEBITFIU
analysis includes only RMB denominated monetary items and ARBFENERIER REALREA
adjusts their translation at the year and for a 5% change in REEXEHNMAERRE -HWAR
RMB dollars rates. If there is a 5% increase/decrease in RMB R BEAHE ZE% AHFEER
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar, the effect in the mAFEENT
profit for the year is as follows:
At 31 December
w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—_ v —_= E 3 _j-LEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Increase/decrease in profit or loss for the year FEEB@ LM, 6,127 8,126
Capital risk management BERGEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEENETEEBRRERRELAER

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity

holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank loans, Asset-backed Securities and convertible
notes) and equity attributable to owners of the Company
(comprising issued share capital, share premium, reserves and
retained earnings).

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueq) 6. MEREREIRE &
Capital risk management (Continued) BERBER (&)
The Directors monitor capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This EENEEABILEAREERITER.
ratio is calculated based on total debts dividend by equity plus ZEEEDBaEEEE ﬁ?b(%“)ﬁ'ziéi%“
total debts. Total debts is calculated as total interest-bearing BMoMAHE BEEBLEFEER
borrowings and debt component of convertible bonds. PR ESNEaRE D -
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as RBEHFR BEEABLEZWT !
follows:
2020 2019
—ETEHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
HET T BT
Total debts (Note 1) aEREE (fisE1) 2,678,510 2,263,490
Equity (Note 2) e (fYsE2) 1,144,397 1,105,206
Equity and total debts HmEBEUREELE 3,822,907 3,368,696
Gearing ratio HEABMEIX 70% 67%

Notes:

1) Total debts comprises long-term and short-term borrowings and
debt component of convertible notes as detailed in Notes 32 and
33 respectively.

2) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
floating interest rate from borrowings (see Note 32 for details
of these borrowings). The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continueq)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from
the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2019:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease by HK$11,364,000 (2019:
profit decreased/increased by HK$5,719,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with
the board of Directors. In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

6.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MEREREIRE &
Liquidity risk management (Continued) TBESREKER @&
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current liabilities RZTEZEF+_"_HA=+—H ' &&
amounted to HK$66,332,000 (2019: net current assets E 2 mEaE %584 #1566,332,0007T
amounted to HK$505,514,000), current ratio (being current (ZE—NF RHEEFEABE
assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately 0.95 505,514,0007t) » mBILLE (BB E
times (2019: 1.36 times), while total current assets amounted ERAEBAERE) N50.95F (ZE—N
to HK$1,405,686,000 (2019: HK$1,925,749,000). The Group F11.361F) MR EERLBANRE
manages its liquidity risk to ensure that entities in the Group #1,405,686,0007T (ZE— 5 | B
will be able to continue as a going concern. Details of going 1,925,749,0007T) c &AEBEEERH
concern of the Group are set out in Note 2. YRR UERASEENEREENITE
TG o RERFEKE Z BN s
2o
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into AEBZEMEBERERN T ZEHH
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period REHRREZEENEBBEAHEERH
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity PEETRDOM -MTIRZEREHIRE
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BHARTRZRERSINE
undiscounted cash flows:
2020
—7—7E
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
i FAERRE
TR = EEX —ENA —-E=F —Eif RENE mERE BIREE
% HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables ERIK
HitETE - 94,576 - - - - 94,576 94,576
Borrowings e 4.77% 824,245 518,545 903,481 327,091 234,642 2808004 2,555,945
Lease liabilties HESE 5.00% - 50,675 105,259 109,149 2,121,907 2,386,990 1,092,676
Convertible notes issued on RIB-NE
23 May 2019 EA-+=H
BEfT
EEES 10.64% = 10,080 23,607 132,545 = 166,232 122,565
918,821 579,300 1,032,347 568,785 2,356,549 5455802 3,865,762
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

ontinue . b=
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued 6. MZERAREIE ®
Liquidity risk management (Continued) TBETRERER (&
2019
ZZ-NF
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted carrying
interest rate On demand Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
mi FERRE
TR % EEZR —ELR —E=f ZERE AELE HERE AREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
Trade and other payables 3 ﬁ,ﬂﬁ%’ﬂ&t
e }ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ#ﬂlﬁ - 54,502 - - - - 54,502 54,502
Borrowings 15% . 4.74% 841,504 631,985 507,768 251,494 106,513 2,339,264 2,150,037
Lease liablties BRAR 5.00% - 17,427 9,383 102218 2079628 2004686 1,024,830
Convertible notes issued on A E?jﬂj}gﬁ
23 May 2019 7
TREER 10.64% - 9,103 33,683 103,446 - 166,232 113,453
896,006 658,515 636,834 477,158 2,186,141 4,854,654 3,342,822
i i A — = — =4+
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31 B EE+RA=1+—R BE
; : « - S [ 1T (R Eh (gl [H £ = TE <
December 2020 are included in the “on demand” time band REBERVEEFA LRTEER]

BEREBAN RZEZZEF+ A
—t+—H BENREEANER
796,216,00070 (ZE— N F : B
802,706,0007t) ° st K AR E B B F AR T
FAEEERERNEER EFLAF

in the above table. The carrying amount of the borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$796,216,000 (2019:
HK$802,706,000) as at 31 December 2020. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position and assets pledged

for the borrowings, the Directors did not believe that it was os T A BT RE RS R EE
probable that the lenders would exercise the discretionary TAOEEEM?%%E% EEEEIRE S
rights to demand immediate payments. The Directors believed SRR IBME IS R E BT kB,
that the borrowings would be repaid in accordance with the iﬁiﬁﬁ,ﬁggggg%,\\qgm§824,245,000
repayment schedules set out in the loans agreements. The 7o (ZE— N4 B 1841,504,0007T) ©
total undiscounted cash flows of the borrowings amounted HIEEN TR

to approximately HK$824,245,000 (2019: HK$841,504,000).
Details of which are set out in the table below:

Maturity Analysis - Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause

HBB L -REXREADRHES

Total Total
Within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
RERRE
—ENR —-EZ§ =Eif RENE e BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BT 8T BT BT AET T
As at 31 December 2020 “ZTERE+CR=1-H 120,556 682,465 8,790 12,434 824,245 796,216
As at 31 December 2019 “Z-nE+ZR=1+-H 758,931 34,590 12,658 35,325 841,504 802,706

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ Bl 23 2 B A BR 23 =)
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4

157



158

e A5 AR B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties equals to the carrying amount of respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its city ledger from hotel, which belongs to trade
receivables, and finance lease receivables. Apart from the
other receivables in Note 22a, credit risk on other receivables
is limited because there was no historical default record has
been made during the year and the Directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly changed for
the 12 months after the reporting date. Details of impairment
assessment of the other receivables are set out in Note 22a.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determining of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts (please refer to Notes 27 and 29). In addition, the
management of the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment loss is made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group applied the simplified approach to measure ECL
on its trade receivables from hotel operation and finance
lease receivables. Under the simplified approach, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

To measure the ECL on trade receivables from hotel operation,
based on forward-looking economic information through the
use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement as well
as past experience including historical credit loss experience
and current expectations, the Group has collectively used a
provision matrix with 5% ECL rate on total carrying amount of
trade receivables from hotel operation, without distinguishing
different ECL rates based on different customer segments nor
past due status.

To measure the ECL on finance lease receivables, finance
lease receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has collectively applied another
provision matrix with two different ECL rates, which, in other
words, classified the credit risk regarding finance lease
receivables into 2 grades. ECL rates of the Group’s finance
lease receivables, which represent internal credit risk ratings,
are based on qualitative (such as lessee’s operating conditions,
financial positions, usage of finance lease assets, etc.) and
quantitative factors (mainly include past due information of
the finance lease receivables). The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk of finance lease
receivables and the provision matrix showing the ECL as at 31

December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEREREIRE &
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&
Adjusted
carrying Impairment
ECL amount loss
rates (Note ) allowance
HEEHN
FHHEAZ A IREE4EE pEA I
B/RE (MI5E3) BREHE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
Internal credit ratings A EB1E B 5T 4k BT T BT
As at 31 December 2020 R_EZE
+ZBA=+—H
Grade 1 - Low risk F— R — 1K R
- Government related (Note 1) — T (FEE1) 0.5% 643,050 3,215
Grade 2 — Low risk B —1EER
— Others (Note II) —Hh (fF5E2) 1.3% 1,095,053 14,237
1,738,103 17,452
As at 31 December 2019 RIE—N%HF
+ZB=+—H
Grade 1 - Low risk E—R— R R
— Government related (Note |) — i (fEE1) 0.1% 864,414 864
Grade 2 - Low risk BT — 1R R b
— Others (Note 1) —HAh (FF5E2) 0.3% 349,415 1,049
1,213,829 1,913
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Notes

Grade 1 category is finance lease receivables which are
government related customers. Such customers are determined
to have low credit risk and related lease receivables have no past
due.

1. Grade 2 category is finance lease receivables which are the
customers without government relationship. Such customers are
determined to have low credit risk if the related finance lease
receivables have no past due.

1. The adjusted carrying amount is gross carrying amount of
finance lease receivables after adding finance lease interest
receivables and deducting finance lease deposits received.

At 31 December 2020, the expected credit loss rates for
finance lease receivables ranged from 0.5% to 1.3% (2019:
0.1% to 0.3%). The increase in loss rates reflects a higher risk
of credit default arising from the greater uncertainty triggered
by the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic.
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HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKREIRE®

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&
Movements in ECL in respect of trade receivables, other BRARWERR S B AR A&
receivables and finance lease receivables are summarised as ERWFNTEREREBLR BB
follows: W
Finance
Trade Other Lease
Receivables Receivables Receivables Total
RMEHRE
FEWERT  HMREWR FE YR 1z
(Note 29) (Note 29) (Note 27)
(B2 (B2 (fzk27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BIETTT BIETTT BIETT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE—-F—H 256 - 934 1,190
Impairment loss recognised HEBLHER - - 1,009 1,009
Impairment loss written back HER KR (1) - - (1)
Exchange difference R E%E (4) - (30) (34)
At 31 December 2019 and RZIE-NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HkK
“EEF-F—H 251 - 1,913 2,164
Impairment loss recognised HEBLER - 38,033 14,589 52,622
Impairment loss written back BERKEE (15) - = (15)
Exchange difference ERER 15 2,170 950 3,135
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+ZH
=+—H 251 40,203 17,452 57,906
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Fair value

i) Fair values of financial assets

QRE

) EHREEZAALME

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREIIRS B EUAQRE

assets that are measured at fair value subsequent to
initial recognition, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the input is observable:

FEZERMEEZ DN LD
B ABBE O BRRESELS—
FE=4

As at 31 December 2020
RZ2Z2H+-HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—k B B Hact
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AT AT AT AT

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Unlisted equity investment
Sale option granted for the

remaining 72% equity
interest in subsidiary

BHAREHE:

BARESABRZ
THBEE !
FEERRBESE
RY—BWBAR

FIBR72% RN
HE R

- - 13,643 13,643
- - 63,881 63,881
- - 77,524 77,524

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ Bl 23 2 B A BR 23 =)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

Fair value (Continued)

i) Fair values of financial assets (Continued)

MERRERE @

ARE #E)

) EHREEZAALMEGE

As at 31 December 2019
RIE-NE+ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—M E_MR FEZH it
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB BB
Recurring fair value REMAARETE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value BARESTABRZ
through profit or loss: EMEE .
Listed equity investment FHERHERE - - 6,879 6,879
Unlisted equity investment FELTRHEE - - 7,439 7,439
Sale option granted for the BB AR
remaining 72% equity FIER72% MR HERY
interest in subsidiary HE R - - 40,439 40,439
- - 54,757 54,757
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and REFEAR F—HB F_MKEE

Level 3 during the year.

The Group’s financial assets is measured at fair value

at the end of each reporting period. The following

table gives information about how the fair value of the

financial asset is determined (in particular, the valuation

technique(s) and inputs used).

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 6.

Fair value (Continued)

0

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-S-T&+-g=t—ALEE

Fair values of financial assets (Continued)

e A5 AR B e

R %5 LI

ARE &

For the year ended 31 December 2020

S e IR (2

) EHREEZAALME E)

Fair value  Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
Financial asset Fair value as at Hierarchy  key inputs input(s)
ETHMEE RUTEENARE AREZFE HERTRIEHABE EATTERBABE
2020 2019
—TZ% —NE
Listed equity - 6,879 Level 3 Income approach - discounted - Discount rate: Nil (2019:
investment B=MR cash flow analysis 13.80%)
FTHRGBEE WAE—RRIRIRE — Discount for lack of
MEN marketability rate: Nil
(2019: 18.31%)
- BRX . ®ECE2-NE:
13.80%)
— E?ZI_'E BT E
X ®E(CE-NE:
18.31%)
Unlisted equity
investment
FLEMROEE
-Financial asset A 1,034 1,055 Level 3 Asset approach - The attributable net asset
—EHEEA B BEDITE value
— EEEEZE
-Financial asset B 8,306 6,384 Level 3 Asset approach - The attributable net asset
—THMEEB B4R BEEDNE value
— BEEEZE
-Financial asset C 4,303 - Level 3 Income approach - discounted - Discount rate: 11.56%
—SREEC B4R cash flow analysis (2019: Nil)
WAZE—IRIREREDT - Discount for lack of
marketability rate: 30%
(2019: Nil)
— BAIRE 1 11.56% (ZF
—NE &
— BZzH ’/ﬁmlL&?ﬁugz :
30% (ZE—NE &)
Option granted for 63,881 40,439 Level 3 Binomial pricing model - - Volatility, determined by
selling the 72% B this approach, certain reference to historical

equity interest
in a subsidiary
to the non-
controlling
interest

BY—RNBEAR
HETFIFER
T 72%E R
At

parameters determined by
management are input into
the binomial model to derive
the valuation of the option.

“EACERE-FALSE
BEEEENAE T2
AZIENER DUES AR
BhfE -

Certain parameters include:

- Risk-free rate: 2.70% (2019:
2.75%)

- Volatility: 29.57% (2019:
27.92%)

%:F@%(@%
EREHNZE270% (ZF
—NF 1 2.75%)

— HIE29.57% (ZZ—NEF .
27.92%)

volatilities of companies
operating in the same
industry

— K@ %%%%IE%%@E?&

WE BT

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

0

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HFERREIR =
Fair value (Continued) DA (E)
Fair values of financial assets (Continued) i) ZTHEEZAALE (B
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements BoRMAABHEZHIR
2020 2019
—EELHf — N
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT 5T
At 1 January t—H—H 54,757 7,598
Additions iz - 6,756
Additions upon step acquisition from H—REE AT E
an associate to a subsidiary —EREARZ
o WS 2 g 5,012 -
Disposal HE (6,909) -
Increase in fair value of FFABRZ R
financial assets at fair value BEZANE
through profit or loss (Note a) 120 (ska) 20,239 41,015
Exchange difference BE D =28 4,425 612)
At 31 December R+ZH=+—H 77,524 54,757
Note: B 5E
(a) Total fair value changes of financial assets at fair (a) REAARESAEZZEME

value through profit or loss of HK$20,094,000 (2019:
HK$41,015,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year, which the fair value

gain attributed to Level 3 financial assets amounted to
HK$20,239,000 (2019: HK$41,015,000) and the fair value
loss attributed to other payables (details please refer note

43(F)) amounted to HK$145,000.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAKRERE®=

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category BENESZEHMEEREGBHRE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and rEENGEEARIZcMEERE
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period are BEREEYRUTEINE D M TA
categorised as follows. See Note 4 for explanations about PDEHHBHEZ X ERBPAI2HMN
how the classification of financial instruments affects their 5F4o0

subsequent measurement.

2020 2019
—_TFF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Financial assets ETMEE
Financial asset at fair value BAREFAEBRZ
through profit or loss ETMEE 77,524 54,757
Financial assets measured BEERATEZ
at amortised cost: ETRMEE
Rental deposits HE®RE 4,821 4,842
Trade and other receivables FE W BR R R EL A
FE W R I8 41,771 17,142
Finance lease receivables FEEFEE W 1,787,039 1,262,855
Pledged bank deposit BIRRIRITER 25,468 32,958
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 798,263 1,028,396
2,734,886 2,400,950
Financial liabilities TRAaRE
Financial liabilities measured BEIEM A E
at amortised cost: TREE:
Convertible notes Al B 122,565 113,453
Lease liabilities HE&E 1,092,676 1,024,830
Trade and other payables FEE A BR R B EL A
NERE 58,206 31,574
Borrowings & 2,555,945 2,150,037
3,829,392 3,319,894
CHINA INVESTMENTS TIOLDINGS LIMITED  #1[ BU 3 9% 1 5 152 43 7
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

REVENUE 7. IRA
Revenue represents the gross amounts received and receivable WATHIEFRHABIEXET ERIBEIE
for revenue arising on big data business, civil explosives mMEBVEEEE -AKBREEEER
business, hotel operation, wellness elderly care business, AEEBBIAZERHESERINBRRE
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less return and I -HEWABBRRESE 2 EWR
allowances, gross rental income, interest income generated R ZWA HREBREFREEZFE
from financial leasing and consultancy fee income provided to WA R EINFRIBEFBHRFBEWA -
outsiders during the year.
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised FREERATRINZSBEEERR
during the year is as follows: HEEEAOT -
2020 2019
—ETHE —Z—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FBEREZER
Revenue from contracts with customers ﬁ’:‘%—ﬂ%%ﬁ?ﬁ BEFR
recognised at a point in time: EHZ AT !
Consultancy service income from financial MBEHEAE
leasing ARFBUTA 68,479 32,682
Food and beverage BER - 4
Logistics income from civil explosives business & & VE @£
EmA 3,129 -
Operating income from big data business REUREZEEWRA 7,886 2,724
Other income from hotel operation BIEEAEE WA 902 1,050
Sales of emulsion services explosives and HEFEIEEM
and industrial detonating cord TEBER 82,792 -
Sales of properties HEYE - 30,378
Service income from wellness elderly KEFEEEELRRS
care business LON 1,928 7,407
165,116 74,245
Revenue from contracts with customers WE—EKEBKRBAXE
recognised over time: EHZWATESR :
Construction of platform and technical service AEIEEFBETS
income from big data business B #2107 BR 75 WL A 18,023 16,157
Logistics income from civil explosives business R FRIEIERERS
EHUA 363 -
Service income from hotel operation BEZEEWA 5,062 7,651
Service income from property investments MEREEFHERBWA 947 -
Service income from wellness elderly care KEEREEER
business AR F5 U A 379 470
24,774 24,278

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. RA @
2020 2019
a3 5 —E2—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BEFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue from other sources: HhUg A ZRIE :
Rental income from hotel properties BIE S WA 4,233 4,814
Rental income from investment properties and BB % RiGEY %
properties held for sale BEWA 9,309 9,879
Interest income from financial leasing REREREN
FIBWA 90,123 47,849
103,665 62,542
293,555 161,065
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. NHEH
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised AEEEN AEERFESASEAR
into six operating divisions — big data business, civil explosives EEBDE-REEER RABIES
business, financial leasing, hotel operation, property X - REHE - BAEER - WERE
investments and wellness elderly care business. These MABEEEEB AEAULES
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary BAEEESREFEDHEN -
segment information.
CHINA INVESTMENTS TIOLDINGS LIMITED  #1[ BU 3 9% 1 5 152 43 7
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Principal activities are as follows:

Big data business industrial internet project platform

construction, smart city
construction and big data
operation and management
Civil explosives — manufacture and sale of emulsion
business explosives and industrial
detonating cord

Financial leasing

provision of finance lease consulting
services and financing services in
the PRC

Hotel operation — hotel ownership and management

Property investments holding investment properties,
properties held for sale and
investment in the development

and construction of industrial park

Wellness elderly care comprehensive elderly care services

business

For the property investments, the management reviews the
financial information of each property investment, hence each
property investment constitutes a separate operating segment.
However, the properties investment possess similar economic
characteristics, and are with similar development and selling
activities as well as similar customer bases. Therefore, all
property investments are aggregated into one reportable
segment for segment reporting purposes.

T-BOX® business was discontinued in the current year. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amount for this discontinued operation, which is described in
more details in Note 12.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information about the continuing operations is

presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

8. NEEN @

EMRERERNBCEZEB Y
RN :

Segment Revenue Segment Result

DEBA DEEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEE —NE —ECEE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Big data business REBER 25,909 18,881 1,907 29
Civil explosives business RERIBIERER 86,284 - 663 -
Financial leasing RERE 158,602 80,531 81,111 35,457
Hotel operation BIE X 10,197 13,519 (7,898) (5,504)
Property investments MEKE 10,256 40,257 (32,467) 4,246
Wellness elderly care business ABEEEZER 2,307 7,877 (2,979) (3,051)
Total 4t 293,555 161,065 40,337 31,177
Bank interest income RITFEUWA 14,510 14,501
Finance costs (excluding interest on B (FEFEHEES
lease liabilities) Bz E) (72,659) (66,974)
Gain on deemed disposal of an RAEHE—HBHEATZ
associate W= = 4,400
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERANEFAEBEZ
fair value through profit or loss TREBEEZWE 1,620 -
Gain on write-off of other payables B TrEEREZ
legally time barred and lapsed LA FE {9 R B 8 U - 78,819
Impairment loss on an asset classified FAZFHEEEZ
as held for sale RERK - (28,838)
Impairment loss on other receivables — E A& U TRIB BB % (38,033) -
Increase in fair value of financial STABRZEMEEY
assets at fair value through ARAEEM
profit or loss 20,094 41,015
Interest income from wealth REENERNFEKRA
management product 418 1,206
Loss on early redemption of RABLOITHREREZ
convertible notes FEES = (991)
Loss on the disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAB KRI AR
and an asset classified as HEBEZIBX
held for sale (39,177) -
Net central administration cost FRRITERL AR 4B (28,359) (29,945)
Net exchange gain/(loss) W (518) $58 17,308 (5,138)
Net loss on step acquisition NEWEZFEER (5,667) -
Professional fee HEER (4,462) (8,031)
Share of profit of associates FEHE AR BA) 67,897 84,354
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRiRET (518) /&F) (26,173) 115,555
Income tax expense FTiSifEs (39,333) (34,127)
(Loss)/profit for the year A (E518) /BF (65,506) 81,428
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED Fiv[3 B 4% B3 45 I 43 )
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment sale in the current year (2019: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, finance
costs (excluding interest on lease liabilities), gain on deemed
disposal of an associate, gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, gain on write-off of other
payables legally time barred and lapsed, impairment loss on
asset classified as held for sale, impairment loss on other
receivables, increase in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, interest income from wealth
management product, loss on the disposal of subsidiaries and
an asset classified as held for sale, loss on early redemption of
convertible notes, professional fee, net central administration
costs, net exchange gain/(loss), net loss on step acquisition
and share of profit of associates. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s management for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

Note: Certain reclassification have been made to the prior period to
conform with the presentation of the segment result for the
current year.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. FEEN @
Segment assets and liabilities NEHEERER
2020 2019
—EEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BEFIT
(Restated)
(E7)
Segment assets DHEE
Continuing operations FERE X
Big data business REIEET 12,871 11,998
Civil explosives business EREIERER 410,302 -
Financial leasing FEAE 1,801,201 1,271,502
Hotel operation EE TS 146,978 150,063
Property investments MERLE 2,169,339 1,600,868
Wellness elderly care business ABREEEER 12,201 10,144
Total segment assets Moy IEE 4,552,892 3,044,575
Pledged bank deposit BIRIFRITER 25,468 32,958
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 798,263 1,028,396
Interests in associates REE R B 2 = 569,674 651,873
Financial assets at fair value BANES AER
through profit or loss TRHEE 77,524 54,757
Asset classified as held for sale TNATHEEE - 212,345
Other unallocated assets HEMAkpicEE 81,429 122,435
6,105,250 5,147,334
Assets relating to discontinued operation B#RIFEEEEFF
BE 121 327
Consolidated assets REEE 6,105,371 5,147,666
Segment liabilities nHa’E
Continuing operations FRERE XK
Big data business REIERET 14,537 5,777
Civil explosives business ERBIERER 131,688 -
Financial leasing MEHREE 1,275,786 1,016,572
Hotel operation EE TS 4,455 4,523
Property investments MERLE 1,645,418 1,198,044
Wellness elderly care business ABREEEZER 2,112 1,909
Total segment liabilities oI adE 3,073,996 2,226,825
Convertible notes B 4 fg FR 48 122,565 113,453
Borrowings (=N 886,216 1,044,693
Other unallocated liabilities HthxnAi&aE| 33,163 56,322
4,115,940 3,441,293
Liabilities relating to discontinued BARILREXE Y
operation afE 1,099 403
Consolidated liabilities REafE 4,117,039 3,441,696
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. FEEN @
Other segment information Htho SR &R
2020 ZTTEF
Continuing operations FERE X
Wellness
Civil elderly
Big data  explosives Financial Hotel Property care
business business Leasing operation investments business Total
REABER AR
RYEER £% MEHE BELY MERE BEXEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT AT BT BT AT
Depreciation of property — #E - BRE Kk
plant and equipment REmE 367 4,115 862 9,276 3,359 1,192 19,171
Depreciation of FEEEERE
right-of-use assets - 58 - - 31,024 - 31,082
Additions to property, LIER V%&
plant and equipment RERE 1,778 5,899 232 163 437,708 3,921 449,701
Additions to property, H—EEE AR
plant and equipment —F'EJ HWBARZ
upon step acauisition */FHW%Z#’/Z%
from an associate to BEREERE
a subsidiary - 233,720 - - - - 233,720
Loss on disposal of HEME BEX
property, plant and REZBER
equipment 3 29 - 1 - - 33
Impairment loss on finance FAEMAEEWIEZ
lease receivables RERK - - 14,589 - - - 14,589
2019 (Restated) = —NF (B
Continuing operations HERE XK
Civil Wellness
Big data explosives Financial Hotel Property  elderly care
business business Leasing operation  investments business Total
RRGFD KRR
REFEE £% MERE BIEEH MERE BEEY &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Depreciation of property ~ ¥1% BRE R
plant and equipment RENE 201 - 719 9,152 2,279 233 12,584
Depreciation of FHREBEERE
right-of-use assets - - - - 25,566 - 25,566
Additions to investment BB ERE
properties - - - - 200,145 - 200,145
Additions to property, LER V%Ez
plant and equipment RERE 348 - 744 88 121,923 6,440 129,543
Impairment loss on finance FAEMAEEWIEZ
lease receivable NENEEEES - - 1,009 - - - 1,009

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Geographical segments

The Group’s big data business, civil explosives business,
financial leasing, hotel operation, wellness elderly care business
and others are located in the PRC, other than Hong Kong.

Property investments are located in both the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operation and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

DEEE @

R E D EE R
AEETARBELE RRBEIL
HORMENE EEYRMAREEE
LR EMB N DR FEESE.
WS S (R T E R B o
AEME G E D U R R

BEDRHEFRBEEREENES
DZER AT -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*
SEERZHERE FRBEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
ket 3 3 —NE k-t 3 “E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T BEFT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&B51) (E75)
The PRC s 293,314 160,352 1,475,941 729,025
Hong Kong a5E 241 713 19,506 19,508
293,555 161,065 1,495,447 748,533

Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, goodwill,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance lease
receivables, rental deposits, right-of-use assets and unallocated
non-current assets

Information about major customers

During the year, HK$83,383,000 out of the Group’s revenues
from continuing operations of HK$293,555,000 arising from
civil explosives business were contributed by a customer.
which accounted for nearly 29% of Group’s total revenue.

* QFML@JQET BERBEQARZE
CBE RBAABESAEBERZER

ﬁ% REAERRS - HERS ®
RREEREMARDEIFRSBEE-

FEEXREH

RERN> REEB293,555,0007T
REFERE ZEHFNEEERIK
ARBERRERABIEREBNAER
83,383,000Tc M AZRBER —IEF >
HAFEENWRAGREER 2 SX5ERE
3T29% o
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HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. HME&EZEWA
Other operating income included the following items: HME&EWABIEUTIER
2020 2019
—EIEHE Z—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT T
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FERE X
Bank interest income RITH S WA 14,510 14,501
Compensation and government subsidies B Wi 4 18 Bz BT 47 B
received
- Direct government grant — T B R 21,746 74,288
- Recognition of deferred income — PR R RN s FE B 47,736 -
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RAHE—ME
BN E 2z Wm - 4,400
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERARERTA
at fair value through profit or loss BonzEsMEEZ
W 1,620 -
Interest income from rental deposit kEHEEREN
FIE WA 217 -
Interest income from wealth management RBEMERDN
product FEWA 418 1,206
Net exchange gain PE S U /5 &R 17,308 -
Rent concession &R E 5,085 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B4 N
2020 2019
a3 5 —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BEFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FERE X
Handling fee FEE 9,526 -
Loan arrangement fee ERTHE 3,140 3,359
Interest on: TAEBEZFE
- Bank loans —RITENR 39,096 40,785
— Convertible notes — AR R 12,437 15,612
— Lease liabilities —HEas 51,037 42,058
- Loan from an associate Hﬁ%%@jzg% 782 435
- Loan from an immediate —EREERRAE
holding company =N 2,745 2,737
— Loan from a non-controlling interest —JEERER
B™; 922 -
— Other loans —HMMEM 4,011 4,046
123,696 109,032
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIEHRAX
2020 2019
—ETHE —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Continuing operations TIRIRE 2 ¥
Tax charges comprise: RIEMAZ B4 .
Current tax: KERIE :
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TSR
B (34,323) (31,778)
Over/(under) provision in previous year: BEEEBEREE
(BELAD
Hong Kong Profits Tax SAERER - 2
PRC Enterprises Income Tax FE > ZEFTIER 573 (36)
Deferred tax (Note 34): RIEFRIE (MY5E34) -
Temporary differences arising in current year ~ &mEZEREER (5,583) (2,315)
(39,333) (34,127)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2019:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year, except
for the first HK$2,000,000 of a qualified entity’s assessable
profit which is calculated at 8.25%, in accordance with the

new two-tiered tax rate regime with effect from the year of

assessment 2018/2019.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the

Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% for the year ended 31 December 2020. (2019: 25%)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

11.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FRiFIRZ @)

RipGmGREmkEMEERRER FA
MIAST HP] B @A H AR > WHMWMT

2020 2019
ZEZEHE Z—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&B7))
(Loss)/profit before taxation brfAT (B518) & A (26,173) 115,555
Tax at the rates applicable to profit in the RERERNBRAIES
countries concerned ZHREFHEZRE 2,755 (27,311)
Tax effect of share of profit of associates FELBE RBI B 2
M E 7,568 8,630
Tax effect of non deductible expenses AHRASRZZ
MBEE (66,772) (45,940)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue FFERRBAZ
M5 & 29,656 33,600
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised KERMIBEEE
MBTE (13,619) (3,072)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PRC EFHEMB A2
subsidiaries MBERER 506 -
Over-provision of previous year WBEFEZBREEG 573 (34)
Tax effect for the year KEEZRBLE (39,333) (34,127)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. BRIEREZ X

The outbreak of COVID-19 has impacted the operating

environment of the Group’s T-BOX® business. In this regard,

the Board resolved to cease the Group’s T-BOX® business

(“discontinued operation”) on 1 July 2020 after considering the

difficult operation environment.

The results of the discontinued operation included in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash

flows for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below.

MERERBHZIFIREHT-BOX®F
BIRBERTE-FUILME > TR

BNCERE EFTREN

—E—=

R =

FtHA—HRIEAREBRNT-BOX®XET

(TERIEEEZEF)) -

HEZEC
[ERE PN =xi=F

PE+-A=+—BLF
SREMBERERR

EERERBRIORIEREER Y

FEHIN T
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. 2

The comparative loss and cash flows from discontinued
operation have been re-presented to include those operation
classified as discontinued in the current year.

RIS 7 2 @)

RECRIEEEEB ZEBBEENR
EREBEEERY) IRZEXEBDES
FEEERIEKEER-

2020 2019
—_— 7 —_ E 2 _j-LE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Revenue WA 16 42
Cost of sales HHE A (1) (41)
Gross profit EH 15 1
Other operating income Hnag = A 60 14
Administrative expenses TRz (559) (1,631)
Finance costs M= (46) -
Loss before taxation from B IERE 2R
discontinued operation PRI AIES I8 (530) (1,516
Income tax expenses FriSiR R - -
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI RE X
operation and attributable to owners KEEBER
of the Company KRB ER AEG
E518 (530) (1,516)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation include the ERILREEBRAFESFEBEEEUT
following: BIE .
2020 2019
—ETHE “E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT

Auditor’s remuneration Z BN &
Depreciation of properties, ME- R R
plants and equipment REBITE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (cContinuec) 12. BRUEKEZEH @
Cash flows from discontinued operation BRIEREEFRRE R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Net cash outflows from operating activities RELEEHRE
TR AR (608) (2,394)
Net cash inflows from investing activities REREEHRE
AR ER 980 -
Net cash inflows/(outflows) WERA (R
PR 372 (2,394)
None of the assets or liabilities related to the discontinued BRI EEFHECEEN BB
operation was classified as held for sale. REDEATHE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. ZFE (518) B

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations RHEREZER
(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at KEE (BB /B
after (charging)/crediting: B @0 A
Auditor's remuneration ZEEE &
Audit service B AR (1,700) (1,650)
Non-audit service FEE IR (494) (994)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME-BEREEITE (21,796) (16,008)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHESENE (31,082) (25,566)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BRERK
plant and equipment B P LS (33) -
Gain on write-off of other payables B EEREZ
legally time barred and lapsed HL 8 £ 3R B U e = 78,819
Net loss on disposal of properties held for sale HERFEMEZFIBL - (524)
Net exchange gain/(loss) ERWE (BX) F5 17,308 (5,138)
Operating lease charges REMERME 64 30
Provision written back on trade and FE W AR AR R EL At FE L
other receivables FRIEZ BB O] 5 15 1
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables MBEHERKRZ
VEAIEEES (14,589) (1,009)
Impairment loss on other receivables HAnEUW AR
HERE (38,033) -
Impairment loss on properties held for sale HEYMEZAERK (1,598) -
Cost of properties held for sale recognised BRARSZZ
as expense HEMEME - (30,902)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAEI2EERAN (41,876) (1,755)
Total staff costs BE TR
Directors’ remuneration (Note 14) EZRME (isE14) (7,603) (8,072)
Other staff cost Hit8 TA (69,446) (35,930)
Retirement benefit schemes contributions HtE T 7RI
for other staffs BRI B R (6,348) (1,778)
Termination benefits BIEEHNER (11,341) (338)
(94,738) (46,118)
Gross rental income from investment properties LEMEZRETIRA 9,309 9,879
Less: e
Direct operating expenses from investment FRNERSWAZ
properties that generated rental income BREMEZ
during the year EREKER% (89) (18)
Direct operating expenses from investment FARBASWAZ
properties that did not generate rental SEMEL
income during the year EERELER% (867) (803)
8,353 9,058
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

14. EFREIME

a. EZEMS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight ENHEMN\GE (CE—NEFE N
(2019: eight) Directors were as follows: 2)BEEEAZMESOT
2020 2019
a3 5 —E2—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fees wE BETIT BT T
Executive directors WITES
Mr. He Xiangming frImBRESE 120 120
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) B2 F
HB HBED 90 120
Mr. You Guang Wu BEERSTE 120 120
Mr. Huang Zhihe =EMELE 120 120
Ms. Wang Xin F Rt 120 120
Independent non-executive directors EiIJEMITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai BRED RS E 120 120
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PRIE R ST E 120 120
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R fE 120 120
930 960
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14. EERETIMNE @

184

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEMs @)
2020 2019
- Jan 3. 5 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries and other benefits HFEREMBEFR BETIT BT T
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Xiangming frImBREE 600 600
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) RZ2ZE=F
NBEHBHD) 450 600
Mr. You Guang Wu EER A 600 600
Mr. Huang Zhihe =EMAEE 420 420
Ms. Wang Xin T mMz* 420 420
Independent non-executive directors EiIJEMITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai BREIR A - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PRIE R ST E - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R aE - -
2,490 2,640
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14. EERETIMNE @

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

a. HEEM=E &

2020 2019
—EEF —NnF
Performance-based or BRBEH HK$’000 HK$’000
discretionary bonus B915 8% hi 2 TE4L BT T BT 7T
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Xiangming {a] (&) BB 4t & 936 936
Mr. Lin Pingwu MIERTE
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) RZ2-=4F
NWBEHBHD) 701 936
Mr. You Guang Wu EERSTE 936 936
Mr. Huang Zhihe =HEMEE 655 655
Ms. Wang Xin F Mt 655 655
Independent non-executive directors MBIIIEHITES
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai BRED RS E - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PRIE R ST E - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R FRE - -
3,883 4,118
2020 2019
—ETHE — N
Retirement benefits HK$’000 HK$’'000
scheme contribution BRIAEF T EI R BETT BT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming {a] (&) BE 4t &= 63 75
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L
(Resigned on 5 September 2020) (G
B ABHBE&T) 47 75
Mr. You Guang Wu EER ST E 84 74
Mr. Huang Zhihe BEMEE 53 65
Ms. Wang Xin F Mt 53 65
Independent non-executive directors JBIIJEHITES
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PRED R E = -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BeR3E AR ST - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping B R T - -
300 354
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Group. No directors had waived any emoluments
for both years. Save as disclosed above, no other
emoluments were paid or payable to any director.

During the year ended 2020 and 2019, no emolument
had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest-paid individuals referred to in (d) below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests, transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance
to which the Group as a party and in which a director
of the Group had material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors

No loan, quasi-loan and other dealing in favour of
directors of the Group or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continuead)
d. Five highest-paid individual

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 14a. No
individual other than the directors has been included in
the five-higher-paid individuals.

15. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme which is available to Hong Kong permanent employees
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. This
retirement scheme is administered by independent trustees
with their assets held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions under the staff retirement scheme for each
year are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.
The total contribution to the scheme amounted to HK$49,644
(2019: HK$45,738) for the year and has been charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Forfeited employer contributions in
respect of former employees from the staff retirement scheme
before vesting period may be used by the Group to reduce
its ongoing employer contributions. There is no forfeited
contribution utilised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no balance of
forfeited contributions available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

EERETME »

d IHESHEMAL

RER ZEBLARSHMA
ITAEE HMEEWE14an
frefRTEEZH REEFEM
AETWAALRERSHIA L

15. [ESRAKEHE

REBRBEBERAKTIRONATE
KARERBREMRE TIRIKETE
RERFHE T 2EEHBILGERAE
BoRAAEECEESHFR -BIR
KetBZHANDBREEEREEF <
ZEEESEHE UERGEERE M
Hth2mWam RNk SFZE 2
MM A B4 6447 (CE—NE .
B45,73870) » HMERGGEBmRHA
el ExANk-AItETIEREE
BRSEI 2 HERN R BRI BR MR
BUZ @®F0 T HAEBERALUREERE
HR-AERFERN WEBEHZRK
T/\T)\"

PR & BRI AS SR B > I S AROR WA RS
% TR LU SR F Z IR AR -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15.

16.

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF Scheme with Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited effective 1 December 2001 to provide an
MPF Scheme to all employees. The contributions borne by the
Group are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly
contribution is limited at 5% of HK$30,000 for each eligible
employee) as calculated under the MPF legislation. During
the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the MPF Scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$81,050 (2019: HK$79,989).

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share is based on the loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$83,871,000 (2019: profit
of approximately HK$68,612,000) and on the number of
1,712,329,142 ordinary shares (2019: 1,712,329,142 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year.
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BE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE

17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 17.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

=i (518) B @
TSR 2
AAREE NG SRELRBE

(F518) /BRI ZHEHER TIH
7’

2020 2019
—_ v —_= E = _j-LEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(E%)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FE (B8 &7
owners of the Company HEARNBEA A (83,871) 68,612
Add: o
Loss for the year from discontinued operation P B 4% L4 & % 75
#5185 530 1,516
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic BRErEFERE
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share from ZBRELRK
continuing operations B (518 B (83,341) 70,128
Number of shares BHEE
2020 2019
—ETHF —E-NEF
’000 000
T g TR
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of R FEERER
basic (loss)/earnings per share (18 &’Fz
TEREE 1,712,329 1,712,329
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above FrERAz D8R EXFEERERER

for both the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no

dilutive potential share as the exercise of the convertible bonds

would have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings

per share.

(B518) /B A)Frstat & EE o

BE_T_TER_FT-NAF+A
=t+—HLEFE UEBEEHEKR H
SERTEIRREERESRESR
(B8 B EERBETE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From discontinued operation

Basic/diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
is HK$0.03 cents (2019: loss HK$0.09 cents per share) per
share, based on the loss for the year from discontinued
operation of HK$530,000 (2019: HK$1,516,000) and the
denominators details above for both basic and diluted loss per

17. S (5518) BH @)

RECRIEKEER

EBRIEKSEBSRELR HHEEE
AFRABECMI(ZE—HAE &
FERSIBEIL0.001l) > IR ERBEL
IERE = E5 188 15530,0007T (ZF
—NE  BH1,516,00070) R ERER

share. R EEEmEMER s D EFE-
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. IREYE
In the PRC  In Hong Kong
held under held under
medium-term medium-term
leases leases Total
R EY REBU
PHAEANRR FHIRAEE Ha%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT REMEZARE
PROPERTIES
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-hE—HB—H 210,706 19,500 230,206
Additions nE 200,145 - 200,145
Transfer to property, EEEYE -BERRE
plant and equipment (115,918) - (115,918)
Increase in fair value recognised in REBERERZ
profit or loss AR 4,618 - 4,618
Exchange difference ERELE (5,636) - (5,636)
At 31 December 2019 and NW_E—hE
1 January 2020 +_ﬁ =+—HB%
—E-ZF¥—HF—H 293,915 19,500 313,415
Transferred from construction HERIRESE
in progress 17,446 - 17,446
Increase in fair value recognised in REBERBERZ
profit or loss NAEEN 49 - 49
Exchange difference ERELE 19,148 - 19,148
At 31 December 2020 N_EBEEFE
+ZA=+—H 330,558 19,500 350,058
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

During the year, an investment property was transferred from
construction in progress amounting to HK$17,446,000.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounting to
HK$312,114,000 (2019: HK$293,915,000) have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted
to the Group.

Investment properties were revalued at their open market value
at 31 December 2020 by Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers
Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuers, on an open
market value basis. The valuation gave rise to a revaluation
surplus of HK$49,000 (2019: surplus of HK$4,618,000), which
has been recognised in profit or loss.

Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd is a member of
the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

18. IREYE »)

FEBRMARFAEURNESZHIFER
BERRZYERZHURAARBERI
SR UDBRARSKEDE-

RER > HBHE17,446,000 02 B %
EHEEIRE&EA

S EYEZ BREE R ET312,114,000
7T (ZZE— N4 . B¥293,915,0007T)
ERFAUERETAER L —RIET
AR B M HR RN o

REYMENR_Z_TE+_A=+—
AEBUSEEGEEMPBEERIAE
TREAFTEEMEEIE B
FEEGERFHBIE49,000TE 5t AL
clEaXR (TE—IF BHABE
4,618,0007T) °

BB EENRBETARARARTEM
EMREEE UHEGBERKAEL
MRt B GEELMEZER -5
MEENERBRGEZENRSER
LMERZHEREE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REWE »

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties were classified under level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

Valuation
Techniques Significant unobservable inputs
faERS TRRNUBRZEE

Commercial unit
located in Hong Kong

Direct comparison method  Estimated market unit sale price
per square feet
IR BB ZBHEEN BB

e mBENGTHRER

Commercial units
located in PRC

Direct comparison method  Estimated market unit sale price
per square metre
(YN EIPAEE A BB

B HEEASTARER

Industrial units
located in PRC

Direct comparison method  Estimated market unit sale price
per square metre
IR ARElZ THE BB

B HEEASTARER

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

tFEEERZEESANEERNRELE
H-EEENENARER  BRIER
MENRBSRRERSR -

FEBZREVERDERAANESE
BB MR-NEANLEBEATEANE
HE=M-

TERAEHUAFEREMEZ LR
BEH BRZ2EERERERZHA
B) URRBEAREHUEREED
BEAARENETEHRAANBESTRESR
(FE=M) -

Relationship of unobservable inputs
to fair value

BUBRZYEAQRENRE

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale price
would result in an increase/decrease in the fair
value of the property

MG B EERIEN, B DTSR ER B
SR

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale price
would result in an increase/decrease in the fair
value of the property

TIREHE RN,/ H T ERYELAEEM
e

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale price
would result in an increase/decrease in the fair
value of the property

TIREHE RN,/ T ERYELAEEM
SR



19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. ME - -BEKRKE

BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 itk 7
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property inHKand  Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
REBR R
REEFHEZ HEREZ RiER HER
BENE THREF EEIR BERE HE HE Hm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
COST AND VALUATION F &R fiifd
At 1 January 2020 RIEZZE
—-A-H 115,000 228,694 119,252 65,266 18,089 3,340 549,641
Additions RE - - 439,915 6,888 232 2,666 449,701
Additions upon step H—REHEAFE
acquisition a subsidiary  —FKBATZ
(Note 42) PEWEZIEM
(Mzx42) - 208,202 4,932 4,440 13,959 2,187 233,720
Transfers o - - (5,069) 700 4,369 - -
Transfer to BRELENE
investment property - - (17,446) - - - (17,446)
Disposals and write off  HERHE - - - (45) @) (21) (70)
Exchange difference EREE - 21,108 31,441 4,385 2,175 367 59,476
At31 December 2020 R-Z-TE
+-B=t+-H 115,000 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,275,022
Comprising: 2h R
At cost PR - 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,160,022
At valuation - 2020 fhE-
“E°%f 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 458,004 573,025 81,634 38,820 8,539 1,275,022
DEPRECIATION ?ﬁé
At 1 January 2020 RZEZE
—-A-H - 12,340 - 20,380 3,655 3,175 39,550
Provided for the year FERE 4,894 5,412 - 8,204 2,990 296 21,796
Eliminated on disposals 7 & R HIRE
and write off ik - - - (19) - - (19)
Eliminated on revaluation R EfhE#E (4,894) - - - - - (4,894)
Exchange difference ERER - 453 - 1,494 396 % 2,441
At 31 December 2020  RZEZZE
+-BA=+-H - 18,205 - 30,059 7,04 3,569 58,874
CARRYING VALUES EEE;%E
At31 December 2020 RZZE”ZE
+ZA=1+-H1 115,000 439,799 573,025 51,575 31,779 4,970 1,216,148
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME - -BERZE @
(Continued)
2019 “E-NEF
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property in HK and Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
REER CLIR
REEFEZ HEREZ FER HER
Y ES THRET TEIR BFEE e HE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT BT BT BT

COST AND VALUATION FiA& R fhifE

At 1 January 2019 RIE—HE
—A—H 115,000 114,974 2,008 55,745 18,594 3,367 309,688
Additions RE - - 120,362 9,221 3 - 129,586
Transfers o - - (1,486) 1,486 - - -
Transfer from HRENEEE
Investment property - 115,918 - - - - 115,918
Disposals and write off ~ HE Kk - - - (142) - - (142)
Exchange difference ~ EREE - (2,199) (1,632) (1,044) (508) 1) (5,409)

At 31 December 2019 RZZ—h&E

+-B=t+-H 115,000 228,694 119,252 65,266 18,089 3,340 549,641
Comprising: 2h R
At cost [ - 228,694 119,262 65,266 18,089 3,340 434,641
At valuation - 2019 fhE-
“Z-hE 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 228,694 119,252 65,266 18,089 3,340 549,641
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RIE—NE
—A—H - 9,266 - 14,483 1,967 3,288 29,004
Provided for the year EERE 4,694 3,149 - 6,316 1,747 100 16,006
Eliminated on disposals 7 & R IR E
and write off 6 - - - (128) - - (128)
Eliminated on revaluation 7 E {4 B4 (4,694) - - - - - (4,694)
Exchange difference ERER - (75) - (291) (59) (213) (638)

At 31 December 2019 RZZE—n%E
+-B=+-H - 12,340 - 20,380 3,655 3,175 39,550

CARRYING VALUES  IRE%(E
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—H%&

+ZA=1+-H1 115,000 216,354 119,252 44,886 14,434 165 510,091
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v |5 8% P2 £ B2 7
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s buildings

The Group’s hotel properties situated in the PRC were valued
on 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 by Associated
Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd., an independent valuer not

related to the Group.

The fair value of the buildings were determined based on the
combinations of direct comparison and income capitalisation
methods that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location and
condition of the buildings under review. There has been no
change to the valuation technique during the year.

The Group’s hotel properties were classified under level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or out of
level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

If hotel properties had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these financial statements at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation of HK$59,115,000 (2019:
HK$61,662,000).

Valuation
Techniques Significant Unobservable inputs
faERS IZRNBRZEE

Combination of direct
comparison method and
income capitalisation

Hotel property in PRC

square metre

method
KB Z BEME ERLEBERIA EEHTREMSTRREEBR
EREES AHmGEASTHAAE

19. ME -BERRZHE @)

EREFOAEE
AEBURTEZAENER —FZ
EFE+_AZ+—BRERZZE-NEF
TRt HHEBIEXEEMD
BEERBETARABEMGE

REMZARERREEBLEER
WA B AL AR S » BB IR B0
RHEK LEBOE BTFRRES
BRI 2 DL 388 » 48 PO (5 A A
E TN

FEBZEHEMNERDBERANES
BB =M-NEANLEEABEANE
HE=M-

R MEZRARER WEZEBSR
RFZBENDNREZRFEE-

W EESEBEYE ABSYER

2 FE S AR A 3T B A B #559,115,0007T

(ZE—HhF : #A¥61,662,0007T) 5t
Nz & HBREK-

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BUBERZBEAQAENRE

Estimated market unit sale price per square The increase/decrease in the market unit rent and
metre and estimated market unit rent per

the increase/decrease in the market unit

hiBEAEAR,/ HEEREMHL
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

20. GOODWILL

20. &

Acquisition of
Guangdong Tiannuo
Investments Co.,
Limited*

(formerly known

as Guangdong Tiannuo
Civil Explosives

Co., Limited*)
WKEEER KA
KREFRXE
(RIBTERXFERIR
BR2E)
HK$’'000
BT 7T
COST D%
At 1 January 2020 R ZEEF—HF—H -
Additions upon step acquisition from H—EBE B2 —ENBARZ
an associate to a subsidiary (Note 42) DH W2 I (EE42) 125,024
Exchange difference bE 52 = %A 7,127
At 31 December 2020 RZIE2EZZ2HF+°"A=+—H 132,151
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REtiRE
At 1 January 2020 N ZEETF—F—H -
Impairment loss recognised during the period PR EEANHESR AR BB % -
Exchange difference PERE%R -
At 31 December 2020 \TETEF+"H=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2020 R_E_EF+_F=+—H 132,151

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

20. GOODWILL (continued)

For the impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combination was allocated to individual business segment that
management considers representing the Group’s separate
cash-generating unit (the “CGU”), which is the civil explosives
business.

The recoverable amount of the civil explosives business CGU
was assessed based on its value in use and was determined
with the assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, and at discount
rate of 11.56% (2019: Nil).
period were extrapolated using a 3% (2019: Nil) growth rate in

Cash flows after the five-year

considering the economic condition of the market. The growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five-
year period do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
industry information and management’s expectation of the
market development including the fluctuation in civil explosives
business in the current economic environment.

Management determines that there is no impairment of the
goodwill at the end of the year since the value in use of the civil
explosives CGU is higher than its carrying amount.

20. HE& )

REAEME  ZEEFGHEENHE
PTEREEEEEI/ARFTEEEEANRE
EEBEM DRABBIERES NEEXR

&R o

EBUSELEMRETEERATHE
T REBBFREFZREELEBUMNITI
EERBR G HIREEREBEZFTEME
EoZBEEANETRERAARREBELSE
EMRRELFRNMBREEKRLU11.56%

(CE-NE 8 INRXAE - LFEHU
BHREREI% (CE—AF B EE

TRE LR EEHRBCENENEER
o HEHILB B R & R BT 2 1
EXFGRBITENEMTHEES.

HtARAEEREENTIERR I RERE
HEREREANNRESRAS TG ZTE
DERITEENREEBHHBXENH
2 EEENCERETEABERERN
E o

BEERD ARRARIFREBNRTE
FENUZEREBEESNHEKREE AL &
BHEERTEFEREERS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES . REE R B S

The movements in the Group’s interests in associates, KREEBRAEEMGHERATD 2R
(including goodwill), during the year are analysed as follows: (BEEE) E8omAT .

Guangdong

Tiannuo

Investments

Co., Limited*

(formerly

Nanhai known as
Changhai Guangdong
Power Tiannuo Civil

Company Explosives
Limited* Co., Limited®) Total Total
BRX#E
BRERRAF
mERE (FifBIER
BE RERIE
BRAF BRAF) st M
2020 2020 2020 2019
- 3 ZTZTHE ZTZTHE —ZT-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BB
At 1 January n—B—H 469,125 182,748 651,873 821,682
Additions Hrig - - - 45,352
Share of post-acquisition profits EEKERRT 67,716 181 67,897 84,354
Share of exchange difference FE(LEE R =50 32,833 821 33,654 (15,436)
Distribution from WERZREDE
post-acquisition profit - - - (46,889)
Reclassified to asset classified ENokEATHEEE
as held for sale - - - (241,183)
Deemed disposal of HALE—BKE
an associate (Note (a)) AE (%) - - - 3,993
Step acquisition from an A—ERE Qa5
associate to a subsidiary —ERBARZ
(Note (b)) BT UWHE (F5E(0) - (183,750) (183,750) -
At 31 December K+ZR=+—H 569,674 - 569,674 651,873

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

T3

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) . RBEARERE @

Details of each the Group’s material associates at the end of REEESHRAAEEZERBZENE) G

the reporting period are as follows: 1BUWT -

Proportion of Proportion
Principal Class of ownership of voting rights
Form of Place of place of shares interest held held by Principal
Entity Name the entity incorporation operation held by the Group the Group activities
&R
PSR FEEFE
BRELE BEPL st 2 TREEME FERNER 4] FRELLA) TBREH
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-%F _Z-NE ZBIEF "ZT-NE

Nanhai Changhai Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% Generation and sale
Power Company of electricity and
Limited* (Note (a)) heated steam

MEREEE AL FEAR FEAR Zak BREREERAN
BRAF #HE HMNE fitfe
(r&E(a))

Guangdong Tiannuo  Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary - 49% - 49% Manufacture and
Investments sale of emulsion
Co., Limited* explosives
(formerly known and industrial
as Guangdong detonating cord
Tiannuo Civil Co.,

Limited* (Note (b))

BRRFRERR  HAHT FEAR FEAR BBk RERHEACIFE
AF FEER HE HiE MIXERR
XEREBRAF)

(M 3E (b))

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [0 U £ 1 £ BR 23 ]
ANNUAL REPORT 202

0

199



200

e A5 AR B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

*

On 18 March 2019, the Group entered into a capital increment
agreement with another existing investor in which the registered
capital of Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (“Nanhai
Changhai“) would be increased from USD31,132,460 to
USD32,235,446. The transaction was completed on 11 October
2019. The Group did not subscribe for additional shareholding
and accordingly, the equity interest held by the Group in Nanhai
Changhai decreased from 32.636% to 31.875% after completion
of the transaction. Deemed disposal of an associate amounted
to HK$3,993,000 is recognised in the Group’s interest in Nanhai
Changhai as at 31 December 2019.

On 24 August 2020, the Group has completed acquisition of
additional 2% equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited* (formerly known as “Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Co.,
Limited”)* (“Tiannuo”) in accordance with the terms of acquisition
agreement (“Step acquisition from an associate to a subsidiary”).
Upon completion of the acquisition, the shareholding of Nanhai
Canmanage in Tiannuo increased from 49% to 51% and the
Group obtained control over Tiannuo. Tiannuo, the former 49%
associate of the Group became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

All of the investments in these associates are accounted
for using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

For identification purpose only
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(@)

AEEmS &

A ZE-NAF=RB+N\H &x&EH
NEERESZEEARAA (MER
B1) ZEMEARKHS1,132,4605% 7T
8 f1%32,235,44655 T B —EIRE
KREET U TEERZ LR N T
T-—NE+A+—HEM AEEL
FREBEEEEIMG R > UL R B3R 5 FE AR
BOAEEREEREMEEZRE
FH32.636% FPEZE31.875% R4
7B 13,093,000t iR A H & — R B
ENBRR ZE—NF+A=+—
BrAEEREBERSZ #m T UE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s

. RBERTERD @

ERA-EBRZBERARN U BERE
SHEINM T -UTHHEMEEZZ5)5
BMEANDZMBRERZEER BERRE

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. B R G ERRH o

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* EERBEERRAT
2020 2019
—EZTHF S
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT 7T
Current assets MBEE 1,006,635 1,038,363
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,562,036 803,857
Current liabilities mEIAaE (375,365) (374,436)
Non-current liabilities JEREHaE (409,806) (50)
Net asset value BEFE 1,783,500 1,467,734
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue ON 1,248,277 1,396,531
Profit for the year KEEREF 212,442 229,700
Exchange difference for the year FEERER 103,005 (25,401)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEMWmAREE 315,447 204,299

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cContinued) . REFEATERE @
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (Continued) HEREXTAERAT &)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to R BERRPERHEE AR
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised ZEREEH B E R B HR

in the consolidated financial statements:

2020 2019
—E-EHF —Z2—hF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BETT BT T
Net assets of the associate & AT 2 B EFEE 1,783,500 1,467,734
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in A& & * ﬁ5’1§§5§
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* BERRER
HEEETR FETE
ERES 31.875% 31.875%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in rEEREERS
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* BEBRQE
(Note) w2 REE
(M55 569,674 469,125
Note: B 5T
On 22 March 2019, the Group’s shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai RIZE—hWEF=BZ+H ~&EEIRFESE
Power Company Limited* decreased from 32.636% to 31.875%. RBEBAEMRAR ZREHI2.636%H D E
There was undistributed profit prior to the dilution of the Group's 31.875% HRAEBERHEERSHEEER
shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited*, therefore REIZREREFEEBERDIREF > A
the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Nanhai Changhai Power It » $%@E"ﬁ@§ﬂ§§* EERAB Z#m
Company Limited* as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 cannot be N_EEFRZE-—NF+ZA=1+—
directly calculated by multiplying its net assets with the percentage of HZEREEFA ET&LLH@EE@E@ (EES
the Group’s ownership interest. REBBEREERB DERAH

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

22. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Referring to the circular dated 31 October 2019, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with Foshan City Nanhai
Ltd.”
(“Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech Holdings”), pursuant to which

Financial Hi-Tech Zone Investment Holdings Co.,

Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech Holdings has conditionally agreed to
purchase 25% equity interest in Guangdong Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd* (“Guangdong Financial Leasing”). The Group’s
interest in Guangdong Financial Leasing was reclassified as
asset held for sale on 31 October 2019. As at 31 December

2019, the Group recognised an impairment loss for the

22,

NAGHESE

BRMAAEBRHPEAZE—NF+A
:+—E|2Lu’$$%§5i@%umi%;
THEMeREERERLAR (ImE
SENIUTHE RS BLtEES
EERGRREEERENRERE
BRRE (TEERER) 225%K &

EERERENZETR _F—-NF
TRA=+—HIRFHEEE-R=F

—hE+ZR=+—H F~&£BMIS
FHEEEZRBAMBEQAER D

subsequent write-down of asset classified as held for sale to EMAERIHERL
fair value less costs to sell.
The disposal of the asset classified held for sale was N_E-EF+HA=+—HERMRH
completed on 31 July 2020. Details are as follows: ENATFHEBEE FEHIWT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
Asset classified as held for sale JAGHEERE BT BT
At 1 January *—H—H 212,345 -
Reclassified from the Group’s interest in REAEERERER
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* MEHEBREAE
R ot B 13 - 241,183
Impairment loss recognised MR EE L - (28,838)
Disposal during the year (Note a) FARHE (fista) (213,299) -
Exchange difference bE 5t %R 954 -
At 31 December “+—RA=+—H - 212,345

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

22. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 2. IAFHEEE @

(Continued)

Note: MEEE -

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries and an asset classified (a) HEMBARDKRIAFHES
as held for sale =3

Referring to the circular dated 31 October 2019, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech
Holdings, pursuant to which Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech Holdings
has conditionally agreed to purchase 25% equity interest in
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Limited* (“Guangdong
Financial Leasing”).

RRAAEEHRAS-TE-AETA
=t+t—HZER ZS?%@&%EE@%E
STUTHERR  BIitmesREARK
HrREREERENRERERRA
B (TERER) 225%M 1

The total consideration, the net assets of Disposal Assets and an
analysis of cashflows as at the date of disposal were as follows:

REEH AEBRE HEEENZE
EERREDTAEFFERINOT

HK$’000
BT T
Total cash consideration and receivable: B ERARIE48%E -
Cash consideration RERE 154,735
Consideration receivable I ETEN 38,033
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZREAREEEY (6)
192,762

Asset classified as held for sale I ARFHEEE 213,299
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 6
Other payables H e RIB (2,597)
Net assets of Disposal Assets HEEENEEZE 210,708
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries and HENBREKRIAFHEEEZIBX

an asset classified as held for sale (39,177)
Cumulative exchange difference in (SEPNEI-2IPY S Hj’iéﬁﬁ’]@él@%&

respect of the net assets of subsidiaries and KREZEF BB MDEEER

an asset classified as held for sale reclassified [E R Z%8

from reserve to profit or loss on loss of control

of the subsidiaries and an asset classified as

held for sale 21,231
Total consideration received and receivable B ERA B4R 192,762

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of RELEEEZFRERMA
Disposal Assets:
Cash consideration HeERE 154,735
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERREEEY (6)
154,729
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED #[5 $UE P2 8% 47 B 43 7
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22. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

Disposal of subsidiaries and an asset classified
as held for sale (Continued)

The transaction was completed on 24 August 2020 at
the net consideration of RMB171,564,000 (equivalent
to HK$192,762,000). The loss on the disposal was
HK$39,177,000, which was included in the loss for the year from
continuing operations in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company
considered that the consideration receivable was uncollectible in
full and hence an impairment loss of HK$38,033,000 were further
provided and included in the loss for the year from continuing
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Details please refer to Note 29.

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

22, 5 A& %

HEEE @&

Mzt : (48)

(a)

HEMBRAGBRIATLESR
E (&

REVR_ZEZEFENAZI+HEHRE
B FREAARK171,564,0007T
(3T & #9381£192,762,0007T) ° HE
%ﬁéza‘ﬁ%ﬁ%%m:sg 177,000t E &
EreBakAtMEERERZR
%%ﬁz%%mﬁﬁﬁgﬁmo

RIEZEF+/A=+—8B &2
BEEIRANERERANELZER
[B] (&It 3 — R SRR (B ES IR A B IS
38,033,00070 THERNGEEEBER
Hih2mRE R ZIFELE 22BN
NEEBEA FIEAE2EM 290
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23. B ARETAE

W E A

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =5
2020 2019
—ECEF — N5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Analysed as: DR
Non-current e B
Listed equity investment (Note a) EHRMNEE
(Mfzta) - 6,879
Unlisted equity investments (Note b) FELTROEE
(Mf5ED) 13,643 7,439
13,643 14,318
Current Yk
Option granted for selling the 72% equity EY—HERBRE
interest in a subsidiary to non-controlling HE T IEER
interest (Note ¢) Bm72%REN
HAtE (MdsEce) 63,881 40,439
77,524 54,757
Movement of financial assets at FVTPL is analysed as follows: BARBFAEBGZEHEE 2 EE)
wr
2020 2019
—EIEF —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB T T BT
At 1 January nw—A—H 54,757 7,598
Additions Hig - 6,756
Additions upon step acquisition H—EEE QB E
from an associate to a subsidiary —EREREZ
U 2 18 0 5,012 -
Disposal during the year FARAHE (6,909) -
Increase in fair value of financial nJrJK?E i BB E
assets at FVTPL ZARABEIR N 20,239 41,015
Exchange difference IE/FE%??E 4,425 612)
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 77,524 54,757

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

The fair value of the financial assets was approximately HK$77,524,000
(2019: HK$54,757,000) as valued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers.

a. The equity investment represents investment in equity security
issued by a listed entity in PRC. On 27 November 2020, Zhong
Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) Investments Company Limited*
(“Zhong Chuang Xing Ke”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into equity transfer agreement with Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Limited* (“Nanhai Holding”), a controlling
shareholder of the Group’s immediate holding company, Prize
Rich Inc, in relation to dispose of its interest in the equity
investment at a net cash consideration of RMB7,592,000
(equivalent to HK$8,529,000), which was based on a valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer, resulting in a
gain on disposal of approximately RMB1,442,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,620,000).

b. The unlisted equity investments represent equity interests issued
by unlisted entities in the PRC.

(i) On 30 October 2019, the Group acquired 33% equity
interest in Foshan Baihualin Investment Management Co.
Ltd.*, a company established in the PRC and engaged
in providing capital investments and funds management
services. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the
equity investment was approximately HK$1,034,000
(2019: HK$1,055,000).

(i) On 22 November 2019, the Group acquired 12.6% equity
interest in Shenzhen Waicheng Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*, a company established in the PRC
and engaged in investment holding. As at 31 December
2020, the fair value of the equity investment was
approximately HK$8,306,000 (2019: HK$6,384,000).

*

For identification purpose only

23. BRARESABRHZEMEE
6=

Bt

Ry

SHEEZAAEHBIUSEGEM SR
FEAERA B GEELNEE77,524,0005T (Z
T— R E  BH54,757,0007T) °

a. EROBEREEREFE LT
BRETHRAZE RITEFE
+—BAZt+tR AEEZE2ENE
NEFRRIER CRY) BEBRAA
(ThBl A BERmEEREE
BREAD (TEEZER)) EBZERA
BlPrize Rich IncZ ¥ERRAZER) S55T MR
EEER S CSRBB I (G EMET
ZHEEZRENEBIBENAARE
7,592,0007t (8 B 4974 1£8,529,000
70)  HEZRMIRE - LR F R
HE W ma AR 1,442,000t (HEE
493 #1,620,0007T) ©

b. ZIFLHROKREERENETTEIF
EHZERETHREES

i) WZIZE—NAF+B=+H'XK
ERKBEOEMEEEERR
AB) (—ER BRI A B
ﬁéiﬁfﬁémﬁéﬁgéﬁﬁ
BR75) Z33%MIRR A HE %5 o
:;ﬁ_%fﬁ—%—_ﬁz-{——a’
ZROEEZ ARBEAHHNBE
1,034,0007¢ (Z B — N5 | B
1,055,0007T) °

i) MZETE—NAEFE+—BZ+=
B> AEBKRBE RN T ERE
EEBE BREE (—ER
FEAT REBEREZERNA
Bl) Z12.6%MREER - HE
=+ "A=+—8>
ZROEEZ ARBEAHNBE
8,306,0007C (Z B —F 4F © g
6,384,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
b.  (Continued)

(i)~ On 31 August 2020, the Group acquired an additional 2%
equity interests in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co.,
Limited* (formerly known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil
Explosives Co., Limited)* (“Tiannuo”), an associate of the
Company. Upon the completion of acquisition, the Group
has controlling power on Tiannuo. Thus, Tiannuo is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Tiannuo held 7.16%
equity interest in Guangdong United Civil Explosives Co.,
Lid* (BERBERBEERLE), a company established
in PRC and engaged in agent services for the sale of
emulsion explosives and industrial detonating cord. As at
31 December 2020, the fair value of the equity investment
was approximately HK$4,303,000 (2019: HK$NIil).

C. This represents the Group has the right to sell the partial or all
of its equity interest held in a subsidiary, Guangdong Sino Rock
Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* (ERPERBEXREBERAT),
to the non-controlling interest at any time. As at 31 December
2020, the fair value of the sale option was HK$63,881,000
(2019: HK$40,439,000).

Details of the fair value measurement of the financial assets for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 6.

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

23. BRARESABRHZEMEE

#
MizE : (48)
b. (#)

iy MRZBEZZFENB=+—H>
AREBWE—HHEAEER
XEREBRAR FIRBITER
XEREBEBER2BL (TR
BIN2% B B o SE AR B R UK RE
B> AEBMBISRENEHIRE -
RIEKXERABEEBNIFEEE
FRE - REFRBEERGS
IZRERAE (—KEFBEAKLIIL
RERBHEILIEEKREIR
HHAT) 7.16%MI R A E o
BE_ZZHFE+_RB=1+—
B RABDZZ ARBEHNBE
#4,303,0007c (ZZE— N5 :

) -

c. GEREAEEEAHEFEOIFERER
HEEFE—HHBRAEERE+ ES
BERBRABZEMAEIRE-
HE_Z-_ZF+-_B=+—H 'H
EHEZ N A E 5B 163,881,0007T
(ZE—HHF : B1£40,439,0007T) °

BE_T-_THE+_RA=-+—HILHF
E:REEZAAGHEZFHEHRT
FPEE6 ©



e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 24. FRAEEEKRTAESRE

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE
2020 2019
a3 5 —E2—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January w—A—H 988,067 148,255
Additions Frig - 879,246
Addition upon step acquisition from H—EEE Qs E
an associate to a subsidiary —ERE ARz
pap i -l 312 -
Depreciation provided during the year FRETRITE (31,082) (25,566)
Adjustment on rental deposit HEEEE
EHBIREEE (1,952) -
Exchange difference bE R =% 59,155 (13,868)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 1,014,500 988,067

ERAREERAEBRRBELEEHNER
FREEHAEERERBEEME
R HU AR RSHTE R REHRIE
BE (AMERNEEEEERFTETU
R FBR o

The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to
use underlying leased premises under operating lease
arrangements over the lease terms, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ Bl 23 2 B A BR 23 =)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

24.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 24. FREBEEREGEGE @
LIABILITIES (continuea)
Lease liabilities HEaR
2020 2019
—ECIEF —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Maturity analysis BT
- Contractual undiscounted cash flows: SHRBRBERE
Within one year R—FR 50,675 17,427
Over one year but less than two years B —F BN mE 50,994 47,422
Over two years but less than three HBiEmEEDIR=F
years 54,265 47,961
Over three year but less than five years B =FELI0REF 109,149 102,218
Over five years BidhE 2,121,907 2,079,628
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at REFXRZKMBHEEERS
the end of the year 4878 2,386,990 2,294,656
Less: total future interest expenses B RRA E R ARER (1,294,314) (1,269,826)
1,092,676 1,024,830
Analysed as: DER
Current BNEA 50,675 17,427
Non-current JERNHA 1,042,001 1,007,403
At 31 December R+_-_B=+—H 1,092,676 1,024,830

The Group recognised rental expenses from short-term leases
of approximately HK$64,000 (2019: approximately HK$30,000)
during the year.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

24 FHEEERAEESR @

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEaR @E
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of RSB NN £EE
financial position
2020 2019
—EITHF —Z2—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January W—B—H 1,024,830 150,430
Additions i - 861,045
Additions upon step acquisition from an H—EBEATE—/~
associate to a subsidiary B ARz T WEZ
10 385 -
Interest charged to profit or loss SAEZAE 51,037 42,058
Payment during the year KEBNR (42,029) (14,077)
Rent concession HEHE (5,085) -
Exchange difference fERZE%R 63,538 (14,626)
At 31 December B+_B=+—H 1,092,676 1,024,830

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [0 U £ 1 £ BR 23 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 24. FREBEEREGEGE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEeEasE @
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit RirSBmREMEm K R ERZ
or loss and other comprehensive income E]
2020 2019
a3 5 —E2—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEsEZHE 51,037 42,058
Depreciation e 31,082 25,566
Rent concession &= 5,085 -
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of RS R ENERERZERE
cash flows
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB T T BT T
Total cash outflow for leases MEZRESMLARLE 42,029 14,077
25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 25. HEME
Properties held for sale are stated at net realisable value. They FEMETD U ZET R ZEY
are held under medium-term lease in the PRC. EARAPEUPRAENFSE -
There was no cost of properties held for sale incurred and I -ZEF+"“/=+—H1L
recognised as expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 FE CUEEDSAAZILFT ARSE
(2019: HK$30,902,000). ZHEMERE (ZTE—HLF  BE

30,902,0007T) °
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27.

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

INVENTORIES 26. 78
2020 2019
—ETHE —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At Cost B s
Emulsion explosives and industrial HAEVFERBIRER
detonating cord 1,209 -
Food, beverages and hotel supplies B AR
HAE® 907 497
Health smart devices RS 34 32
Raw materials for transportation EwmBEME 77 -
Raw materials for manufacturing emulsion HAEVFERBIRER
explosives and industrial detonating cord £ ERREME 3,030 -
5,257 529

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of sales amounted to HK$41,876,000 for the year ended

31 December 2020 (2019: HK$1,755,000).

BE_ZT_TE+_A=+—HILF
£ > Eﬁééﬂ%ﬁﬁii%ﬁ\ﬁ&ﬁi$zr
B A AB1E41,876,0007T (Z T —

& 1 B¥1,755,0007T) ©

The Directors considered the provision for inventory REFEETABENFTELEER
obsolescence is not required. (2019: Nil). 2EESRAEESR (ZE—Hh=E
%) o

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. BB R
2020 2019
—_= —vﬂE ;<_j-L£E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT TT

Analysed as: DA

Current RED 438,765 523,544
Non-current e B 1,348,274 739,311
At the end of the year REX 1,787,039 1,262,855
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Minimum lease

27. MMEHERKE @

Present value of

payments minimum lease payments
RIEEEAR RIEHEMRZRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-% —NE —E-% —NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BBFIT AT BB
Finance lease receivables comprise: ~ BiEHEEINREIE
Within one year R—ER 542,618 590,252 438,765 523,544
Over one year but less than BB —FEFBEWF
two years 502,756 362,137 425,779 324,936
Over two years but less than BEmEENBBAE
five years 1,030,475 448,150 939,947 416,288
2,075,849 1,400,539 1,804,491 1,264,768
Less: Unearned finance income B RBREF) WA (271,358) (135,771) N/A N/A
Present value of minimum lease U REREMNRZRE
payment receivables 1,804,491 1,264,768 1,804,491 1,264,768
Less: Impairment loss allowance B REBKER
- ECL allowance —TEERE B ER (17,452) (1,913) (17,452) (1,913)
1,787,039 1,262,855 1,787,039 1,262,855

Movements of impairment loss allowance on finance lease

MERERRRZ REBRKXEGNE

receivables are as follows: B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF 5T
At 1 January Bw—B—H 1,913 934
Impairment loss recognised W ZIREEK 14,589 1,009
Exchange difference ERER 950 (30)
At 31 December ®+=ZB=+—8 17,452 1,913

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-S-T&+-g=t—ALEE

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases
ranged from less than 1 to 5 years (2019: 1 to 5 years). The
effective interest rates of the finance lease as at 31 December
2020 ranged from 5.30% to 10.40% per annum (2019: 5.30%
to 10.40% per annum).

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements
that needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.

The finance lease receivables are secured by the leased assets,
mainly plant and machinery, as at 31 December 2020. The
Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals of the
finance lease receivables without consent from the lessee in the
absence of default by the lessee.

Estimates of fair value of collaterals are made during the
credit approval process. These estimates of valuations are
made at the inception of finance lease, and generally not
updated except when the receivable is individually impaired.
When a finance lease receivable is identified as impaired,
the corresponding fair value of collateral of that receivable
is updated by reference to market value such as recent
transaction price of the assets.

Security deposits received from customers as at 31
December 2020 represent finance lease deposits received
from customers, which will be repayable by the end of the
lease period of the respective finance leases. Deposits of
HK$78,340,000 (2019: HK$56,874,000) have been received
by the Group, in which deposits of HK$3,207,000 (2019:
HK$13,076,000) were classified as current liabilities and the
balance was classified as non-current liabilities, based on the
final lease installment due date stipulated in the finance lease
agreements. All deposits are non-interest bearing.

None of the finance lease receivables at the end of the
reporting period is past due. Details of impairment assessment
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 6.

27.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

il E TR B R UK

FTERENUARKESE FTIIME
HMEZHEBARNF IR —EFEEZR1E (T
E—HE—FERF) R_ZT_ZTF
+ZRA=1+—H RMEREZEREF
KNF530%F10.40% (ZEBE—NF :
FFIE5.30%ZFE10.40%) ©

()

RS TEARREREZ N
WA E LR Z RIERFERBEEARK

ATECRFTRA=+—H ®MEM
BEREHRUBEBEEFRE TEZHM
FERhi%a EABALEENNBR
TOREEABARE AEBTRFEE
HBERERREEERERZERGRG-

REEEHBEF HIEWRZANE
Rt e ZEMEZ AT R
EHEREL WEETEEHN FRIF
& WRR I L 3R B B R (E B AR B 5 © E R
ERERUGRIR B R E R > Z B
THERRNEEAAERZETE
BE WMEBELRXZER) Bffe

A — =
i

“EFF+ZA=+—8 BUK¥
FREREDIEEREFMERER
RN EMERERPEREEEZ
AEEB WIS B1E78,340,0007T (=
%—nfﬁ'%m%fssmoooﬁ) He®

BE LA BES,207,000 2% E (Z
% NE A H13,076,0007T) THER
EREEERETFIBECEREE
DENMMEBEHYEARBAEER Hi
BRENEAFERBEE ZEREAT
=X

RE|BEHR PRERERE BRI E
B -BE_ZT_ZTF+_A=+—H
LRy B EHE S BRI EE6 -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

28.

29.

DEDUCTIBLE VALUE ADDED TAX

Deductible value added tax (“VAT”) mainly represents the input
VAT relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment,
which is deductible from output VAT. These deductible VAT did
not expected to be deducted within one year.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The Group allows an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade and
other receivables after deducting the impairment loss allowance
presented based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting
period:

29.

HIEIEER

FHRNEERTEEIANENHEER
RERNERBEYNFE BEKRRHEN
EIRIRER - ERFIENIBERRAS TS
E—FMIED-

WSt Bl R e L FE W RR IR

PR E R BERBAMRIN AEEA
ERZRBHEREBUCEEET &KE

EiGTHERTH0RZEEH-

AERRRSHRREZZAHZY
Z FE WS BR AR R EL At & W R TR AE H R (B
BREHZREDNINT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BIETIT
0-60 days 0&60H 21,429 4,269
61-90 days 61290H 894 1,769
91-120 days 91£2120H 838 93
Over 120 days #BiB120H 670 4,853
Trade receivables FE W BR TR 23,831 10,984
Other receivables (Note a) HhpE U skIE (ffska) 42,754 68,456
66,585 79,440

Note: MsE -
a. It includes deductible VAT, interest receivables, and a. Hoh G FEal R NgER > B E X

prepayments. IR

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit REBW MM ZELFRT AT AIKFT

enhancements over these balances.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

29.

The Group’s largest trade receivables balance amounted to
HK$19,712,000 (2019: HK$9,346,000) at the end of the year.
None of the remaining trade receivables balance represented
more than 5% of the total trade receivables (2019: None of the
remaining trade receivables balance represented more than 5%
of the total trade receivables).

At as 31 December 2020, trade receivables over 90 days
amounted to HK$1,508,000 (2019: HK$4,946,000) were past
due but not impaired as the balances were related to debtors
with sound repayment history and no recent history of default.

An aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not

PR LSt B oK T L At R Wi vk T

RER REBZRAERERRERS
B#19,712,0005T (ZE— L5 B
9,346,0007T) © &R T BY & UK AR TR I fE 45
BRIGARRES U E (T2 —NF B TH
WA BR R I 48 45 BRAG 4B BE5 % UL F) o

RIEZEF+ZHB=+—H B8
90 H B9 FE YL BR TR 58 78 15 1,508,0007T
(ZE—NEF : B¥4,946,00070) 5
B BERERAEHEABREZAR
SC 8% R AT BB 4 B 0 50 8% o BRI SR 1 R
EE

BHRERBE Z EUERRBVERES I T :

impaired:
2020 2019
—EEH —hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT 5T
91-120 days 91£2120H 838 93
Over 120 days Bi’120H 670 4,853
1,508 4,946

Movements of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
are as follows:

EWERMR 2 R EIRREFHNEEHNT

2020 2019

—EEHE “T-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT T

At 1 January wn—B—H 251 256
Provision written back on trade receivables T HE WRR I8 2 R B (O] 5 (15) (1)
Exchange difference EREL 15 (4)
At 31 December R+-A=+—8H 251 251
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29.
(Continued)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited as most of the customers settled the amounts after the
reporting date.

As at 31 December 2020, none (2019: Nil) of trade receivable

over 120 days was impaired.

Movements of impairment loss allowance on other receivables
are as follows:

PR LSt B oK T L At R Wi vk T

T E RUAR B AT R U M B > AN
%FEH&Z%?X%T%‘ZE%%&%&@

nNER Eﬁé%&i H 1&1 f-r)\IE 1:.‘§ﬂ
fEREERR

RIEZEF+ZRA=+—H LEB
BI20EIEWERR (ZE—HhF © )
RIEHR B EZERE -

HMEWERR Z R EEKLEFNEH
mr

2020 2019

—ETHE —E2—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETIT BT T

At 1 January w—A—H - -

Impairment loss recognised (Note a) BEBKRHER (Mska) 38,033 -

Exchange difference b 2 = 28 2,170 -

At 31 December ®+ZBA=+—H 40,203 -
Note: BT -

(a) This represents consideration receivables in relation to the
Disposal Assets that management consider was uncollectible.
Details please refer to Note 22a.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables were not past
due.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in Note 6.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

(@) GEEREEEEIAENLUEBEEZR
BRERREZEHENE FIBEFSE
My 5t22a 0

HEWRUEZ ARE(E I AR -

BE_Z_EZF+_RBA=+—HLE

s BR TR e L 1t & U 7R TE BY IR (E ST (4 5F
TBE I EEE



e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30. REKREEBYREEF
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS RITFE™M

a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERREEEYEIE:

2020 2019

—EEH —E-N%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRIREMEER 823,731 910,657

Time deposit with bank IRITERAER - 150,697

823,731 1,061,354

Less: pledged bank deposit B BIRIRITER 25,468 32,958

Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 798,263 1,028,396

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand held by the Group and bank time deposits.

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in the Hong Kong and PRC, and the
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances
range from 0.02% to 2.63% per annum in Hong Kong
and from 0.30% to 2.19% per annum in PRC. (2019:
0.30% to 3.30% per annum in Hong Kong and 0.30% to
2.75% per annum in PRC).

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$25,468,000
(2019: HK$32,958,000) have been pledged to secure
a bank borrowing and is therefore classified as current
asset.

ReRBEESEYEELAEEFRRN
FIRTTRIBE RIRITEMF™R

RITEBRLESERTEZEN
ERMESE  MAEEIRTHE
BHNERFMNEAETEN TF0.02
EZE2.63E  THRENF0.30E
E2190B (ZE2E—hEFE EEAEN
F0.30EE3.30E > T HENF
0.30EZE2.75F) °

E%&#ﬁﬁﬁr RIS IR T IRI1T L
NERTAEERRTMEZE
%‘ﬂ » #) 7B 1£25,468,00070 (Z &
— N £ B132,958,0007T) BITF
MEEARITEENIEIT FIt
DHEARSEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30. RERIRNEEEMREIEH
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) RITER =
a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued) (a) RERREEEBMEE: (B

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

RERRESBEYRRE S
T EEEHE !

2020 2019

—EITHF —Z2—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T BT 5T

Hong Kong Dollars o 21,665 15,720
Renminbi AR 717,596 953,939
United States Dollars ETT 59,002 58,737
798,263 1,028,396

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$781,062,000 (2019: HK$976,133,000) were placed
with banks in the PRC which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market. The government of
the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the
PRC.
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continuead)

b)

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. REXRREZEEBYREIE

IRITER =

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEBEZEBFREENEEHIEE
activities
Interest
on  Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
fam ER ) AR EE HEaRE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AETT BRI AETT AR AETT
At 1 January 2020 RZ_E-_EF—-F—H 2,150,037 9,235 113,453 1,024,830 3,297,555
Changes from financing HERSRES !
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans  $R{TEXFTERUE 888,908 - - - 888,908
Proceeds from asset-backed BESFHESFMERE
securities 208,989 - - - 208,989
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER (791,803) - - - (791,803)
Repayment of asset-backed BEEEZRESME
securities | (27,111) - - - (27,111)
Interest paid BHFE - (52,001) (3,325) - (55,326)
Interest element of lease BENREREZH S5
rentals paid - - - (42,029) (42,029)
2,429,020 (42,766) 110,128 982,801 3,479,183
Other changes: Hitneg) .
Additions g - - - 385 385
Acquired through step-acquisition ZEB7 & I ES
from an associate to
a subsidiary 58,245 - - - 58,245
Elimination on step-acquisiton ~ FA—EKE AR E—/E
from an associate to MWBATZALWE
a subsidiary HH (26,966) - - - (26,966)
Exchange difference ERER 95,646 - - 63,538 159,184
Rent concession HERE - - - (5,085) (5,085)
Interest expense FEHY - 47,602 12,437 51,037 111,076
At 31 December 2020 RIE-TEHE+_A
=+—H 2,555,945 4,836 122,565 1,092,676 3,776,022
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continuead)

b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

30. REXRREZEEBYREIE

IRITER =

(b) RMEFBFIEENGEHEK (@)

Interest
on Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
BN BIFE TR EE HEaf 4z
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2019 “2-hE—-F—H 1,634,787 - 152,226 150,430 1,937,443
Changes from financing REREREH .
cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings from  B—EH#E AR Z &
an associate FriSEa 27,211 - - - 27,211
Proceeds from new bank loans  $R{TEMFTEE 901,589 - - - 901,589
Proceeds from non-controlling AIEERERENRE
interests HE 980 - - - 980
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (394,185) - - - (394,185)
Interest paid ERFE - (38,768) (3,325) - (42,093)
Payments of lease liabilities HEaBMIHE - - - (14,077) (14,077)
2,170,382 (38,768) 148,901 136,353 2,416,868
Other changes: Hitn2g) .
Additions g - . - 861,045 861,045
Early redemption REHER - - (160,676) - (160,676)
Interest expense FEHEY - 48,003 15,612 42,058 105,673
Issuance of the BETRKRER
convertible notes - - 109,616 - 109,616
Exchange difference ERERE (20,345) - - (14,626) (34,971)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA
=+—H 2,150,087 9,235 113,453 1,024,830 3,297,555
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. FEH R R HMETFRIE

The credit period granted by the Group'’s suppliers range from AERRFHEBZEEHNFI0H
30 days to 90 days. FO0H-

AEERBEHR RERQRETZ
EARMZREDFMT

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period:
2020 2019
—EEF “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
HET T BT T
0-60 days 0Z60H 6,668 1,423
61-90 days 61ZE90H 249 4
91-120 days 91%F120H 34 12
Over 120 days Bi’120H 73 3,857
Trade payables FETBRFR 7,024 5,296
Other payables HMEARIE 87,552 49,206
94,576 54,502
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £2 188 75 i 24 )
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 31.

Other payables included the following items:

FE A+ iR R e L At FE 1 7R IE

HtEMRREETHIER !

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BIETIT
Contract liabilities (Note b) aHaE (Mizb) 4,224 293
Other tax payable HMEMRIE 20,671 12,569
Staff salaries and welfare BT #HETKAER 23,449 11,108
Provision for termination benefits BIEENEF B E 11,876 -
Others (Note a) HAth (FzEa) 27,332 25,236
87,552 49,206

Note: MisE -
a.  Others include amounts received from staff on equity a. HUgiEcoWwEa TRERRKAREM

investments and other temporary receipts.

HR ©

b.  Movements of contract liabilities are as follows: b. &HNEEEtNT:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
At 1 January w—HB—H 293 4,768
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FNERUWERER
recognising revenue during the year that afa|ERD
was included in the contract liabilities RHEFE A
at the beginning of the period BHEE (182) (4,746)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year ~ FERERELEEEM 3,884 296
Exchange difference PERE%E 229 (25)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 4,224 293

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

224 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS 32. fa:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Asset-backed Securities (Note a) BEZFES (MsFa) 192,246 -
Bank loans (Note b) IR1TEE (FIsEb) 2,128,019 1,953,911
Loan from an associate (Note ¢) BERNBIZEM
(Mf5Ec) - 26,846
Loan from immediate holding company E#ZIZEKR AT 2B
(Note d) (Fy5Ed) 90,000 90,000
Loan from non-controlling interests R ERER
(Note e) (Ff15xe) 61,565 -
Other loans (Note f) Hna R (fesEs) 84,115 79,280
2,555,945 2,150,037
Secured BiLE 2,027,069 1,953,911
Unsecured g 528,876 196,126
2,555,945 2,150,037
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZEREE !
Within one year R—FR 1,250,142 1,303,788
Over one year but less than two years BB —FELBiB
M E 463,974 280,400
Over two years but less than five years B#@EWEBRBHE
BE 636,046 468,534
Over five years BlAaE 205,783 97,315
2,555,945 2,150,037
Analysed as: DEEA
Current FIARBEEZ
I8 1,250,142 1,303,788
Non-current FIAERBEELZ
RIE 1,305,803 846,249
2,555,945 2,150,037
During the year, the Group settled borrowings amounting to REFR AEBCEEBEERASBE
HK$818,914,000 respectively (31 December 2019: bank loans 818,914,000t (BEZT—NF+=
amounting to HK$394,185,000). B=+—H: &M% %394,185,000
JT) °©
CHINA INVESTMENTS TIOLDINGS LIMITED  #1[ BU 3 9% 1 5 152 43 7
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

In September 2020, the Group issued an Asset-backed
Securities (*ABS”) by Greengold Leasing, a subsidiary of the
Company, in the aggregate principal amount of RMB186,000,000
to qualified investors in the PRC. The ABS has a fixed coupon
rate of 6.071% per annum and a maturity term of 5 years. The
investors may exercise early redemption rights or resell rights
in respect of such securities at the end of the 3rd year (i.e.
September 2023) during the term of the ABS.

On 6 December 2017, the Group obtained a loan facility from
a bank for which a controlling shareholder has provided the
necessary corporate guarantee as security. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group has an outstanding loan amount of
USD90,000,000 (equivalent to HK$697,826,000).

On 16 April 2018, the Group obtained a loan facility of
HK$40,000,000 (loan facility 1) from Hang Seng Bank. Since the
facility limit would be reduced by 10% of the facility amount each
year, it became HK$32,000,000 during the year. On 11 April
2019, the Group obtained another loan facility of HK$52,700,000
(loan facility 2) from Hang Seng Bank. These two loan facilities
were secured by the Group’s properties which are situated at
Unit 01, 14 and 15 on 5th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and 17th Floor, Sing-Ho Finance
Building, Nos. 166/168 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong. As at 31
December 2020, the total outstanding amount of the loans was
HK$76,350,000.

On 24 September 2019, the Group obtained loan facilities
of RMB200,000,000 in total from Guangdong Nanhai Rural
Commercial Bank. The loan facilities are secured by the Group’s
investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
entity interest of a subsidiary. The interest rate of the loans
are floating interest rate plus a premium calculated at 15%
above the prevailing RMB benchmark rate published by The
People’s Bank of China. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has an outstanding loan amount of HK$131,829,000 (2019:
HK$124,161,000).
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

On 15 July 2020, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with China Development Bank for a loan of RMB285,000,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has drawdown a
total of RMB102,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$121,461,000). The interest rate of the loan is floating interest
rate plus an interest spread not lower than 5BP above the
benchmark rate. The loan was secured by rental receivables of
residential and commercial housing and carparks.

During the year, specifically for the operation of financial leasing
business, the Group obtained additional loans from Guangdong
Nanhai Rural Commercial Bank, Bank of DongGuan, China CITIC
Bank, China Everbright Bank Co., Limited and Hang Seng Bank
(China) Limited amounting to RMB645,858,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$767,052,000) in total. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate amount of the loans for the financial leasing
business that are interest bearing at floating rates ranging from
4.55% to 6.50% per annum (31 December 2019: 5.23% to
6.50% per annum) were approximately HK$971,699,000 (31
December 2019: HK$941,454,000), in which approximately
HK$53,444,000 (31 December 2019: HK$100,671,000) of loans
are secured by the Group’s investment properties and property,
plant and equipment, while approximately HK$817,305,000 (31
December 2019: HK$840,783,000) of the loans are secured
by the finance lease receivables of the Group. Such loans are
repayable within 5 years according to their own repayment
schedules.

On 26 June 2019, the Group signed an unsecured loan contract
with its former associate, Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co.,
Limited* (formerly known “Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives
Co., Limited”) (“Tiannuo”) amounting to RMB24,000,000. During
the year, the Group acquired an additional 2% equity interest in
Tiannuo. Tiannuo becomes a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. The loan was eliminated upon step acquisition during the
year.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year loan
amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s immediate
holding company, Prize Rich Inc. which is unsecured and with a
fixed interest rate at 3% per annum. On 3 December 2020, the
Group entered into the Supplemental Loan Agreement with Prize
Rich Inc., in which the loan repayment period for the loan was
extended by two years to December 2022. Interest rates and all

other terms and conditions of the loans remained unchanged.

During the year, the Group acquired two one-year loans, total
amounting to RMB51,838,000 equivalent to approximately
HK$61,565,000 from non-controlling interests. The interest
rate of the loans are floating interest rate with reference to the
prevailing RMB benchmark rate published by The People’s Bank
of China.

In March 2018, the Group obtained two two-year unsecured
loans amounting to RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$83,135,000) in total from two independent third parties,
in which a loan amounting to RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,506,000) carries a floating interest rate
plus a premium calculated at 10% above the prevailing RMB
benchmark rate published by The People’s Bank of China. The
remaining loan amounting to RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,629,000) carries a floating interest rate at
the prevailing RMB benchmark rate published by The People’s
Bank of China. On 26 February 2019 and 27 February 2019,
the Group entered into the Supplemental Loan Agreements
with these two parties respectively, in which the loan repayment
periods for these two loans were extended by two years to
March 2022. Interest rates and all other terms and conditions of
the loans remained unchanged.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

According to HK Int 5, which requires the classification of
whole instalment loans containing the repayment on demand
clause as current liabilities, the Group’s loans with the
aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$796,216,000
(31 December 2019: HK$802,706,000) have been classified
as current liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position and assets pledged for the loans, the Directors did not
believe that it was probable that the lenders would exercise
the discretionary rights to demand immediate payments.
The Directors believed that the loans would be repaid in
accordance with the repayment schedules set out in the loans
agreements.

The total secured bank loans of approximately
HK$2,027,069,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,953,911,000)
are secured by the Group’s investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$534,244,000 (31
December 2019: HK$510,269,000) that is situated at Phase
1 of Guangdong-Hongkong Finance & Technology Park, 6
Jinke Road, Guicheng Street, Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC; Unit 01, 14 and 15 on 5th
Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; 17th Floor, Sing-Ho Finance Building, Nos. 166/168
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong; and Block AB to F, Xianhuwan
Commercial Plaza, No. 3 Yangguang Road, Danzao Xianhu
Resort Area, Nanhai District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC, the pledged finance lease receivables
amounted to approximately HK$1,211,168,000 (31 December
2019: HK$1,136,206,000) and the pledged bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$25,468,000 (31 December
2019: HK$32,958,000).
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BEE  ~EESSRASHEANE
#796,216,0007T (ZE—HhF : Bl
802,706,0007T) 2 EMER A E BT
ERBERARDERARBEE aJrEzZIK
ERVBERAREAEEERRRNE
ER BEUABAERABGITERE
*%EEEE‘?‘IEWE?RO§$m?‘%ﬁ%5ffﬂ?
BREBEMRMEMBZERREE

BRFIRITEMAEE2,027,069,000
T (CE-NAE+ZB=+—8 Bk
1,953,911,0007c) HAEBEZHEY
ERME-BEREZE (URPREER
EHUTEEEERTESHKRE
BERAIEEIE - FENERVIEE
HIB625E K L E #5801 1452 15%F ~
EBELITE166/168REMNHHAE
17TBRTEEREHLUTEERE LT
L4 R 4 FE 1RR & P 6 BR 355 L 40 & 7 22
BEIZABZEFEE) & 4 1534,244,000
T(ZE—-—AFE+ZBE=+—H:
%ﬁ%mo 269,0007T)  BEFRE

EERZTAHEEET,211,168,0007T
(_%—h¢+ B=+—8:8&
1,136,206,0007T) & B IFRITERRA
B 125,468,000 (ZE—HAEF+A
=+—H : A&1§32,958,0007T) Fr ik o
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying
amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate

32. &M @)

HRMRZFEBLREKR
ARERREERES
EFFER1.95EE650E (ZZ2—A

/}IL@JE{E E/]
o ARMEBIREMSE

based on borrowing rates from 1.95% to 6.50% (31 December £ 1.95EXE6.50F) UMIRRERE

2019: 1.95% to 6.50%) and are within level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

AR EBRAREBESTRS

E=#Rko

AERZERUMTHERSHE !

2020 2019

it 3 3 “E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

HET T BT T

Hong Kong Dollars Bk 189,370 192,677
Renminbi AR 1,668,749 1,256,350
UusD x5 697,826 701,010
2,555,945 2,150,037

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#



e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 13 October 2014, the Company issued convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 (the “2014 CB”)
(of which its fair value at the issuance date was approximately
HK$129,270,000) as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Southern Limited. The 2014 CB bears coupon
rate at 2% per annum and is convertible into shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.76 per share at any
time following the third anniversary of the issue date up to
the maturity date on 13 October 2019. At any time prior to
the maturity date of the 2014 CB, the Company is entitled to
redeem in whole or in part of the 2014 CB. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the 2014
CB will be redeemed on 13 October 2019. The 2014 CB bears
coupon rate at 2% per annum, which is payable annually in
arrears or upon the conversion or redemption of the notes.

On 12 March 2019, in accordance with the terms and condition
of the 2014 CB, the Company entered into the extension deed
with the holder of the 2014 CB, Prize Rich Inc. (“Prize Rich”)
to extend the maturity date of the outstanding 2014 CB in
the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 by 5 years from 13
October 2019 to 13 October 2024 (the “Extended CB Maturity
Date”), with all the terms and conditions of the outstanding
2014 CB unchanged. On 23 May 2019, after passing the
ordinary resolution to approve the extension deed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting, the extension
deed became effective. The 2014 CB was redeemed and new
convertible notes with the same terms but the Extended CB
Maturity Date (the “2019 CB”) was issued.

33. MR ERE

A ZE—MNFE+A+=H > AR BET
A AEH166,232,0007T (HARE
R E1THA A B 1E129,270,0007T) Z
AR ERE (T20140] R EE ) 5
WHEBAKBRAR ZEMHE2014
MR EBRREESER2ESNE AP
BN —BFRAAREEEZZE—A
F+A+=BZIPEEMTRER
EFRABEK07T6TEBIAA R AT RGN

F22014 7] B 22 45 5 88 B Al AE A1 B
B AR BEEER2I X 22014
AR ER - BRIESAIE B~ Eia g
BE KRN T20140 B RZEF
N_Z—NAF+A+=HEDB 2014
MR EENEFEB2ESTE AR
SFRNREHEER BRI (T o

RIZZE—NLE=A+IH »B#K2014
AMEERZERRGEG A T8
20140 IR = #R 5B APrize Rich Inc.
STILIEHARR I LI i R EIB R IR AR 2
BZHBHHRZE-AFE+A+=H
EAFE_SNE+A+=08"
FEEZ20140J AR EBEZFTB KR
REHEAZE R E—NERB-+=
H BRERERIFHIASE CEBZER
EEMEERRZER ERZEIELX
HERM2014F P ARG BRI > 3%
TEBHERERRIERETRRKREREE
BBz ER (T20197 G 22
) o
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HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (cContinued)

The 2019 CB in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000
(of which its fair value at the issuance date is approximately
HK$109,616,000) bears coupon rate at 2% per annum and is
convertible into shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.76 per share at any time following the issue date up
to the maturity date. At any time prior to the maturity date of
the 2019 CB, the Company is entitled to redeem in whole or in
part of the 2019 CB. Unless previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled, the 2019 CB will be redeemed on
13 October 2024. The 2019 CB carries interest at a rate of 2%
per annum, which is payable annually in arrears or upon the
conversion or redemption of the notes.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability, and
equity components. The equity component is presented in
equity under heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The
values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the issuance of the notes.

On 23 May 2019, the 2019 CB recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at initial recognition are as

33. Al EE =

& A HE166,232,00075220190]
BRER (EQAABERBTEHAOAE
#109,616,00070) 2 EZ B XR2E 5t
B URETREMAEEEEZHAEH
B RERESRABK.7T6TERS
$@1Hyfﬁ°ﬁ‘2019—ﬁﬁﬁxﬂ<# st
HA{EAER > A BB #ER 2
Z 20197 R ZE ¥k o Bfalz%aueﬁﬁ
[o] ~ B ol B8 B R s 8H » B AJ20190]
RERFR _ZE_NF+A+=HE
[B]° 2019 A I AR TH 12 FF F 2B 5
B AESFHNERZNNBOFE
o

MR ERECEEMBs -—BEREDR
Lo oBmEIBO 2 §'J75A$& 118 T 2 A A
REBEEDFEE 8RO RERE D
E’ﬂ@%@ﬁé%ﬁ%%ﬁ%mo

E_ZE—hAhERB_-+=H>20190
BREBERNSEIREESYHR

follows: TR T -
HK$’000
BT TT
Fair value of convertible notes issued BOAMRERZ ARE 166,232
Equity component e m ZB 1D (56,616)
Liability component on initial recognition LR 8 ESHH5 109,616
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Movements of liability component of the notes for the year are

set out below:

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (cContinued)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
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33. AR EER @

ERAaEHD

RAFZEBEFHSIUT -

2014 CB 2019 CB Total
2014 2019
AR E R B ES =1
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2019 nZZ—h&—B—H 152,226 - 152,226
Interest charged at an effective HERAEI1416E 5t
interest rate of 14.16% BoAEHEX 8,450 - 8,450
Fair value on early redemption NZZE—hFhHA
as at 23 May 2019 - =HiRRIEE
B2 AnE (161,667) - (161,667)
Loss on early redemption Er -l Cli=EN 991 - 991
Liability component on initial A ZE—NFRA
recognition as at 23 May 2019 “+=BHTHER
S =Nk - 109,616 109,616
Interest charged at an effective BERFE10.64E
interest rate of 10.64% STHEZAMEMX - 7,162 7,162
Interest paid BENHE - (3,325) (3,325)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE—HhE
1 January 2020 +-A=+—HxX
—EITHF
—HA—H - 113,453 113,453
Interest charged at an effective HERANZE10.64E
interest rate of 10.64% TEZAMERX - 12,437 12,437
Interest paid BENHE - (3,325) (3,325)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEHF
+-B=+—H - 122,565 122,565
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (cContinued)

34.

33. AR EER @

2020 2019
—_ v 1 E = _j-LEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BB
Analysed as: DER
Amount due after one year shown under ERBEEE NI
non-current liabilities R—FEREHZ
%8 122,565 113,453
The fair value of the liabilities component of the convertible AR EREEaES D2 AR ENRE
notes are calculated using cash flows discounted at market 10.64FE (ZF—NF 1 10.64E) 2™ i5H
interest rate of 10.64% (2019: 10.64%). MEIFRZBEREFTH
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 34, IRIEFRIA
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised UTARERRBEFEZERER
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: ERIBEEELEEH) !
Undistributed Revaluation
profits of an of plant and
associate machinery Total
MEQATZ & B &
ROMEF WaRZEM st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&E—HF—H 8,412 - 8,412
Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) st AEE (HEE11) 2,315 - 2,315
Exchange difference b 2 =28 (169) - (169)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—h&+ZA
1 January 2020 =+—Hk
—E-2F—-A—H 10,558 - 10,558
Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) stAE@ (fFEE11) 6,007 (424) 5,583
Addition upon step acquisition from B—RE S AT 5 —RS
an associate to a subsidiary B AT Z D W
Z8m - 42,162 42,162
Exchange difference bE = = &8 994 2,380 3,374
At 31 December 2020 A EZEE+TA
=+—H 17,559 44,118 61,677
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

34. IREMIE @

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for MU AIRERIBA R 2 DT AER 55

financial reporting purposes: BRIz
2020 2019
a3 5 —E2—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT

Analysed as: DI

Current TRE) 44,118 -
Non-current JERE 17,559 10,558
At the end of the year REXR 61,677 10,558
No deferred tax has been provided in respect of the valuation AREELEBEEYEEBE2GHER

surplus relating to the hotel properties for the year as the
carrying amount does not exceed the total investment cost
and the Directors considered that there is no taxable flow of
economic benefits to the Group.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$54,476,000 (2019: HK$13,288,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, depending
on the nationality and domicile of the foreign investors, a 5% to
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement has become effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to
10%.

BREHREIERR IR T AUBE Y E BV RE
BTEBEBKREBRKREZTI /R
EEMES WERE LAVEE -

A ZEIEF+ A=+ —H AEE
FERIBE 1824 B 1E54,476,0007T (=
T —H 4 1 A1513,288,0007T) B
FAGHEF] o HFL 7R B BRI &R AR B
2 WHER Em R IBE BRI R I
BE-o

RIFEPEGERERE IEARES
MRS & P ERERIININERE
PEAFRTFIIEAZLEENREFR
WE%NZE1I0ONEHABR ZREEZ
ZEENE-—B—HBERRBAR_-E
ZtEF+ZA=+—HBZRBFM -HHEH
BN EEMBZEl A B EER]
MHEERRBHE ERABEZFENRR
Ko REBMNBERAMERS%ET10% o
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities were approximately HK$18,000 (2019: approximately
HK$17,000), relating to withholding tax that would be
payable for undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries, as the
Directors consider that the timing for reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and such temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. The
total undistributed profits of theses PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$177,000
(2019: approximately HK$167,000).

With regard to the Group’s investment properties, as none of
them is held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale,
the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of the investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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ENEBFAER ARBEERS 5
BRIy EEREREERA TS
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He 3 85 o R B Y BB A B B9 R 0 UK )
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SHARE CAPITAL 35. B#&
Number of shares Share capital
IR & E S
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ETHE —E—-hE —ETHE —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Authorised: EERAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREERK0ITZ
ZER 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTRHERE .
At beginning of year and the end EERINEEES
of year 1,712,329,142 1,712,329,142 171,233 171,233
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 36. BB RESTE
A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the KRBRER_E—=ZFEOA =+

Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013
(the “Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remuneration,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants
for their contribution or future contribution to the Group
and to strengthen the many long-term relationships that the
participants may have with the Group. Eligible participants
means any person falling within any of the following classes (a)
any employee; (b) any business associate of the Company or
any subsidiary; (c) any other group or classes of participants
which the board, in its absolute discretion, considers to have
contributed or will contribute, whether by way of business
alliance or other business arrangement, to the development
and growth of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 26
April 2013 and, will remain in force for 10 years.

HEGTZREBFAE LR —BER
festEl (T5t80)) -

SHEEERARBERMEEZ T E A
FT2HEERE RE BN -BERS
B @ URERSEHAEBFHE
R Z B UREE2RERAE
By RERAMG - REER2HEZ
EREER EFERZEHEAENE
BRREZERRE OERSEEY
FEBZEMUARREMKEEZZ
HERAEEZ RPBHRZLOEME T
BERZHEZBNRUTEM—ELEH
ZERAL (FEAEE ;0)EABEHK
EEMBAR ZEMEBBHEAN ()
EFE2RNBERARELART BB
BEGHEANEMETZHNEER
ZERRBRFLEMZEMEMAE
BlEEER 2 EE SRR T —=FN
AZHRBER ERZBE+TFENE
2 o
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10 per cent of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme (i.e. 118,832,914 Shares of
the Company) unless the Company obtain a fresh approval
from the shareholders. The option exercise period should not
exceed a period of 2 years which will commence on the expire
of 1 month after the date which the participants accept the
offer and shall expire on the last day of such period.

No option shall be granted to any participant such that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to such participant under
the Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
shall exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of shares in issue.

Under the Scheme, where the Board proposes to grant any
option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant; (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of the total
number of Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with all connected persons of the Company
abstaining from voting (except that any connected persons may
vote against the relevant resolution at such general meeting
provided that his intention to do so is stated in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer, duly signed by the grantee with the number of
shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within 1 month from the offer date.

The subscription price of share options granted under the
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant in the offer letter and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (b) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent. (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

36. B EETE @)
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37. DEFERRED INCOME

37. IR =

2020 2019

b Jan 3. 5 “E—nE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

AT T BT T

At 1 January n—B—H - -
Additions Hrig 165,388 -

Addition upon step acquisition
from a associate to subsidiary

Recognised in profit or loss (Note a) ﬁ’f? m NFESE (fYsta)
Exchange difference ERE%R
At 31 December R+ZH=+—H
Analysed as: DHEA

Current TREN

Non-current JETRED

Deferred income represents the government grants received
by the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in connection
with  certain constructions and income-generating projects.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attaching to these grants. Deferred income of approximately
HK$89,281,000 (2019: HKS$NIil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and included in “Other
operating income”.

Note:
(a) Included government grants amounting to HK$41,545,000,

which were recognised in the profit or loss as a deduction of the
relevant costs or expenses during the year.
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H—EBE AR —ENE
”ﬂZﬁfHﬁZﬁ%ZiHD 1,728 -

(89,281) -
4,437 -

82,272 -

312 -
81,960 -

82,272 -
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
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38. JEIERR S

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company that has material non-controlling

TRV AEBBEAEAFEREDR
BIFREEZERNB AT

interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Total comprehensive income/
and principal ownership interests voting right held by (expense) income allocated
Name of place of held by non-controlling non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
subsidiary business interests interests interests non-controlling interests
SRR R R FizREE BERIEERERRN
MEARAHE TEELHE P #RELA iR EELA 2EME/ (58) R FERES
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIZE “2-hE k- - ZZ-hE k- - ZZ-hE k- - —2-nEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL  muTn  BETR KT
Guangdong Sino PRC 28% 28% 28% 28% 17,265 (5,019) 311,907 294,642
Rock Tyco
Construction
Co., Ltd.*
BRPERNER  PEARANER
BRAF
Canton Greengold ~ PRC 38.85% 38.85% 38.85% 38.85% 45,266 10,373 338,267 304,718
Financial Leasing
Limited* (formerly
known as Canton
Risen Financial
Leasing Co.,
Limited)*
EBRGTHERE PEARANE
BRAF
(ifEEREER
HEREERATF)
Guangdong Tiannuo  PRC 49% - 49% - 8,686 - 192,457 -
Investments Co.,
Limited* (formerly
known as
Guangdong Tiannuo
Civil Explosives Co.,
Limited)* (Note a)
BRRERE AR AE
BRAF
(FIEERKA
RIEBRAR)
GEZY
* For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 38. JEIEItER @

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s EAERZSEARIEERERNIESR
subsidiaries that have a material non-controlling interests are ENB AR ZHBERBERHIMT
set out below. The summarised financial information below UTHBERBERERFE R FESH
represents amounts after fair value adjustments and before BEeEBANHER S8

intragroup eliminations.

Note: B E -

(a)  On 31 August 2020, the Group acquired an additional 2% @ RIZIZFNBZ+HMH > TZRE
equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co,. Limited* TREXZEEHNERT  KEBRU
(formerly known as “Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Co., Limited”)* ANE16,676,000cNIREHE (HBE
(“Tiannuo”) at cash consideration of RMB6,676,000 (equivalent PRA A7, ,501,0007T) SEAL U BB B
to approximately HK$7,501,000) in accordance with the terms KEREERLE FIBERXER
of the acquisition agreement. Upon completion of the step IBBERAR) (TRK38)) BEIN2%ARHE -
acquisition, the shareholding of Tiannuo held by the Group TREXSTWER AERRFAX
increased from 49% to 51%. Tiannuo became the Group's non- SEPIRRTER49%IE E51% ) KA
wholly owned subsidiary. KEBZIEZEWRBAR -

For identification purpose only
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.*

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. JEEERER @

BRPEHRHNERAMRAE (MhER

(“Sino Rock”) )
2020 2019
—ETHE —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Current assets FEE 770,327 928,852
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,823,859 1,315,903
Current liabilities ER=KE (80,633) (36,016)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (1,399,595) (1,138,921)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AABI#EB A
FE(ERE 802,051 775,176
Non-controlling interests JEPER RS 311,907 294,642
Revenue WA - -
Loss for the year KEEEE (20,747) (5,578)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEEERE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE TN (14,938) (4,462)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock PEZRAZ
R (5,809) (1,116)
(20,747) (5,578)

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (continued) 38. JEIERR R @)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* ERPERHNEZKBRAT (MhER
(“Sino Rock™) (Continued) B @&
2020 2019
—ETHE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other comprehensive income/(expense), Hhzmika,
net of income tax: () BFiRE .
Exchange difference arising on MBEBINESE
translation of foreign operations: EEZERERE:
Owners of the Company KABHEEB A 41,813 (17,601)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock REHRRBZ
JEFER R 23,074 (3,903)
64,887 (21,504)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) EE2EWE,
attributable to: (Bx) 4BxEH S -
Owners of the Company KRBIEB A 26,875 (22,063)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERBZ
JRIER 17,265 (5,019)
44,140 (27,082)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEEHREST/A
operating activities (i) %8 130,391 (237,258)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KRETHIRE
i PR (486,766) (321,101)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEEIRE
MAFER 97,325 192,967
Net cash outflow RS M FEE (259,050) (365,392)

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (formerly

known as Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Limited*)

(“Greengold Leasing”)

A= N g

38. JEEERED @)

BERGEMEVERRAE (FIEE
REBRMMERERMR2E) (Ml

2020 2019

—_ 7 —_= E = _j-L,ﬂE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT 7T

Current assets MENE® 1,069,846 1,223,132

Non-current assets ERESR 1,358,716 748,362

Current liabilities mEIEaE (687,754) (568,890)

Non-current liabilities Bl U=k (870,262) (620,540)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAAFTHEE A

FEAL #E 3 532,279 477,346

Non-controlling interests JEERE D 338,267 304,718

Revenue** U A 181,974 94,681

Profit for the year KEEREF 65,740 32,437

Profit for the year attributable to: FERMES

Owners of the Company KRBVEB A 40,204 18,828
Non-controlling interests of EHEEZ

Greengold Leasing JEFER R 25,536 13,609

65,740 32,437

For identification purpose only

*x

to HK$158,602,000 (2019: HK$80,531,000).

In which revenue from external customers for the year amounted

*k

AEEREIINBERZIN D BB
158,602,0007C (ZZ—hF : Bl
80,531,0007T) °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued) 38. JEIERGE DS @

ERGEMEVERRAE (FIEE
REBRMMERERMR2E) (Ml

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (formerly
known as Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Limited*)

(“Greengold Leasing”) (Continued) &) (&
2020 2019
—E-THE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Other comprehensive income/(expense), Hth2mla,
net of income tax: (B BRRE
Exchange difference arising on MBS ETFEES
translation of foreign operations: EEZERERE !
Owners of the Company KANBHEB A 30,266 (146)
Non-controlling interests of GEHEZ
Greengold Leasing JEER D 19,730 (3,236)
49,996 (3,382)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE2EKE
R .
Owners of the Company KANBHEB A 70,470 18,682
Non-controlling interests of GEHEZ
Greengold Leasing FEERER 45,266 10,373
115,736 29,055
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest BERZ3 F55-20]
i 3=\ 11,717 -
Net cash outflow from operating activities REFTHIRE
TR R EE (164,205) (577,204)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REFHRESTA
investing activities Cm) #2758 1,997 (5,628)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHRE
MAFER 61,566 791,979
Net cash (outflow)/inflow W& Ord)
AP ER (100,642) 209,147

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued) 38. JEIERGE DS @

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly ERXHRERGRAT FiIBERXSE
known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., RIBERAR) (TXK#1)
Limited*) (“Tiannuo”)

2020

—EEF

HK$’°000

BT

Current assets MENEE 137,770

Non-current assets ERMEE 253,731

Current liabilities mEEE (129,176)

Non-current liabilities Bl =K (1,447)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company KNBVEB AEEER 133,048

Non-controlling interests JFERR TR 127,830
* For identification purpose only

** |t did not include the goodwill arising from the Step Acquisition o EAEEE—EHRERER —ENE

from an associate to a subsidiary. NEIND TN EEMELEN l’:ﬂ%E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZZEF+ "B =+—HILFE For the year ended 31

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued)

December 2020

38. JEEERED @)

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly ERXHRERGRAT FiIBERXSE

known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co.,
Limited*) (“Tiannuo”) (Continued)

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the period from 1 September 2020 to 31

RIEERAE) (TX&#E) #)

RoE—FFNF—HE-ZFE_FF
+oA=+—HYEEEREMEEH

December 2020 W 7
HK$’000
BT T
Revenue A 86,284
Loss for the period A HA B 5 18 (3,457)
Loss for the period attributable to: FREREE
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ =N (1,764)
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KepZ IFER SR (1,693)
(3,457)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax: HtemEmlas BRRE .
Exchange difference arising on MEBINEBRES
translation of foreign operations: PERE%E .
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ =N 10,407
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KB ZIEERER 10,379
20,786

*

For identification purpose only

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#




e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (Continued) 38. JEIERGE DS @

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly ERXHRERGRAT FiIBERXSE
known as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., RBERAR) (X&) @)
Limited*) (“Tiannuo”) (Continued)

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RoE—FFNF—HE-ZE_FF
income for the period from 1 September 2020 to 31 +oA=+—HEEEEREMEE
December 2020 (Continued) a7 ()
HK$’000
BETT
Total comprehensive income attributable to: SHEHWRARERE
Owners of the Company KNBEB A 8,643
Non-controlling interests of Tiannuo KB Z IEER#E R 8,686
17,329
Net cash inflow from operating activities &SRB M ASRE 25,171
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREFEHRE ML FEE (5,250)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEHIRE AL FEE (22)
Net cash inflow BEMAFEE 19,899

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group’s rental income earned from investment properties
during the year was approximately HK$9,309,000 (2019:
HK$9,879,000). All of the properties held have committed
tenants 1 to 8 years (2019: 1 to 9 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

39. BEHLAOLHE
AEEAHBAA

FEBRFARLEMERESHESUW
AKIE1£9,309,0007T (ZE—NE . B
#9,879,0007T) ° FRfF &l D ¥ 27 K 2k
—ENFE(CE-NE —ZENEHE
BEIHMEE-

Hﬂﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁﬂ? :

2020 2019

—EEHE —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Within one year R—FR 7,874 7,624
In the second year REZ 3,597 3,485
In the third year RE= 2,917 2,851
In the fourth year REIYE 2,937 2,681
In the fifth year RERF 2,896 2,691
Over five years RELE 5,358 8,631
25,579 27,963

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

40. COMMITMENTS 40. K
2020 2019
—ETHE —nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Commitments for the acquisition of BANE -BEK
property, plant and equipment R RIE 20,307 8,820
Commitments for the investment cost on BRI FREIEER A
establishment of subsidiary ZIRIE 198,275 186,743
Commitments for the development cost of BEAMEXERE
Industry Park in Danzao B A 2 A 539,416 784,249
Commitments for the acquisition cost of W R R EFTA
financial asset at fair value through BmZEMEE
profit or loss KREMA 2 RKIE 2,771 2,610

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o [ B £ B A BR 23 )
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEIRE

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities to the Group or borrowings
of the Group (see Note 32):

AEAENTREENEESBRMPLUER

RYAERN—RIR

NEE (M5E32) :

MENEAEER

2020 2019
ZEZEHE T—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Investment properties in the PRC (Note) Rz &Y
(P 53) 312,114 293,915
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB MR E 222,130 216,354
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRRITENR 25,468 32,958
Pledged finance lease receivables EEFRERE
e 1,211,168 1,136,206
Pledged paid-up capital of BIRIRIELEMNE
a non-wholly owned subsidiary NBZEBHER 241,093 227,080
2,011,973 1,906,513
Note: FMIsE -

A future rental receivable from part of the properties is pledged for a
loan facility of RMB285,000,000 in total from China Development Bank.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#

BOMWENRKRBHRESZEERHE
RAZRT BERRESTBELARE

285,000,0007T °



e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. STEP ACQUISITION FROM AN ASSOCIATE

TO A SUBSIDIARY AND DISPOSAL OF AN
ASSOCIATE

On 22 June 2020, Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage
Investments Holdings Limited* (“Nanhai Canmanage”), a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement with Foshan City Nanhai District Lianhua Asset
Limited* (“Nanhai Lianhua”)
in relation to an additional 2% equity interest in Guangdong

Operation & Management Co.,
Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited (formerly known as
“Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Limited”)*
(“Tiannuo”).

On 24 August 2020, the Group completed acquisition of
additional 2% equity interest in Tiannuo at a cash consideration
of RMB6,676,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,501,000).
in accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement
(“Step-Acquisition”). Upon completion of the Step-Acquisition,
the shareholding of Nanhai Canmanage in Tiannuo increased
from 49% to 51% and the Group obtained control over on
Tiannuo.

Tiannuo had two wholly-owned subsidiaries established in
the PRC, namely Foshan Nanhua Logistics Co., Limited* (“f#%
WLFEEE&BRAE") (“Nanhua”) and Guangdong Nanhong
Chemical Co., Limited* (‘BB 1t THERAF") (“‘Nanhong”).
They are collectively known as “Tiannuo Group”.

On 24 August 2020, the fair value of the interest in
Tiannuo Group held by the Group were estimated by Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision”), an independent
firm of professional qualified valuers, at approximately
HK$183,771,000.

For identification purpose only

42. 1t —E B’

ERBE—HNE
REND T W HE

RIEZEFAZ+ZH HlUmE
BREERERRAR (MEEXE)) »
—BARABZFAR BELUTREE
MEEELSEEERAR (Tmak
E)ME—SKBEEHEMTEN
BRXAREERAR R BEEREX
ERIBARAR) (TR BI2%/#
mEs]IREXZ &R

AZEZEZEFNAZANB IR
TRERZERINERT REBELU
AR #6,676,000cMIRENRE (BE
R4 B 187,501,0007T) SEA% UX BB K55
REIN2%RERE (T H W) c D
WEE EEBRERIFAEXRBNKRE
FH49%1E £51% > R MEF K589 1ZE |
1 o

XEFREMBRPTER LN EZE W
BArw > pRlAaGUELELERBRR
B (Mm1b)) MERMI{ETERAR
(M) " EmEBA I REER] -

RTETEFNRB T+ MHE REFT
HERRAT (DR  —BBIGE
BMHNBEFLAE ArERFGEE
ERAEREEEREZ ANE B
183,771,0007T °
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. STEP ACQUISITION FROM AN ASSOCIATE

TO A SUBSIDIARY AND DISPOSAL OF AN

ASSOCIATE (Continueq)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Tiannuo

Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

42. t—ABE 2B E— B

AN DT WE @
AEERNKEI S JRIEERS
EZAREWT

Fair value
recognised on

the Step

Acquisition

Mo UEE

BRZARE

HK$'000

BT T

Property, plant and equipment BEEEE 233,720

Right-of-use assets EREEE 312

Financial assets at fair value through BAREABRZSHERE

profit or loss 5,012
Goodwill arising on acquisitions of R EETAEEmMEENEE

Nanhong and Nanhua 247

Inventories 758 6,226

Trade and other receivables* FEE LS iR 3R R L A4 FE Wi = 18 56,517

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 57,636

Trade payables and other payables** FE A R 0 R EL th FE (S =R 1B (65,129)

Lease liabilities HE&E (385)

Deferred income IR (1,728)

Deferred tax liabilities RSN EE (42,162)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEZ A #HAREER 250,266

Goodwill arising on the Step Acquisition RAoFZWEMEENEE 124,777

Total consideration HWARE 375,043

# Included a loan receivable from the Group of RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$26,966,000) recognised at the

date of acquisition.

# Included a loan payable to the non-controlling interest of
RMB51,837,700 (equivalent to approximately HK$58,245,000)

recognised at the date of acquisition.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 2 8L 3% £ B 45 BR 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. STEP ACQUISITION FROM AN ASSOCIATE
TO A SUBSIDIARY AND DISPOSAL OF AN
ASSOCIATE (Continueq)

Reconciliation of total consideration calculated by the above
summarised financial information of the fair values of the

42.

N—HEEELATE—HMH B
"TH’JﬁiELI&,Eog)

B LA REEBZARIEERE
B2 RAREBNYHNE  UBAEFE

identifiable assets and liabilities of Tiannuo group to the fair HAEBFENXHEEEGZZAR
value of the interest in Tiannuo group held by the Group: '
HK$’000
BT
Fair value recognised on the Step Acquisition — Ft9 #F IWERERZ AR E 375,043
Proportion of the Group’s previously KEFBR DU ERI U FIFTENRELS
held ownership interest in Tiannuo Group 49%
Fair value of the interest in Tiannuo Group KREBEMEFBEREBEEREZ ANE
held by the Group 183,771

Comparing the fair value on acquisition of 49% of Tiannuo
Group with the respective carrying amounts before valuation
of approximately HK$189,438,000, the fair value loss was
HK$5,667,000 and was recognised in
acquisition” on the consolidated statement of profit or loss

“Net loss on step

and other comprehensive income. The exchange reserves of a
loss of HK$5,688,000 was also released from the consolidated
statement of changes in equity to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and included
in “Net loss on step acquisition” upon the Step Acquisition.

WHEXBEEIONREZ AR ERG
BERAEREHRAAEERSEERTF
8 %5748 1189,438,0007C 8 L
"ME%ESE?%%M% 667,0007c B
FEBEakEMEEBERPERE
F%ﬁu&,ﬂ%z;ﬁa% ot o s NEE
RETHTHEMBLREERRE
ZBRH A BES,688,0000t° ERNSD
TWEERHREERAEHREERS
BakEtEmlak TEERISD
FUREE Z BB N
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. STEP ACQUISITION FROM AN ASSOCIATE 42. f—fEE R E—RHMEB

TO A SUBSIDIARY AND DISPOSAL OF AN YA E’Jﬁ*ﬁ WeBE @
ASSOCIATE (Continueq)
Goodwill of HK$124,777,000 arising from the Step Acquisition RN GE BoF WEmMEED
was recognised based on the Peak Vision’s valuation. For PR A HBIE124,777,0007T  BRAEIE
details, please refer to the below and Note 20. Goodwill arising HE2ELUTRWEH20 A0 P W E
on the Step Acquisition was as follows: E2EEFEUWT
HK$’000
BT
Cash consideration of the additional 2% WHERABEBEBRIMNKREZIRSRE

equity interest in Tiannuo Group 7,501
Non-controlling interests IR R 188,771
Fair value of the interest in Tiannuo group KEBFMFBERGEEEZ 2 AANE

held by the Group 183,771
Less: Total identifiable net assets at fair value & | @A RBE 2 DI # A FEELLLE (250,266)
Goodwill arising on the Step Acquisition DHTWEMEENEE 124,777
Goodwill arising on the Step Acquisition of AWEETAECMEEANEE

Nanhong and Nanhua 247
Total goodwill arising on the Step Acquisition A& W EmEE N E42%8 (I5E20)

(Note 20) 125,024
The Group recognised non-controlling interests in Tiannuo REEZ QA ERDREEEIFE
Group at fair value. It is measured on the basis of its BEm-ERUKRBERERAAEZA
proportionate share in the Tiannuo Group’s total identifiable net AP EEMIBE LA RMETE oIt
assets. None of the goodwill arising from the Step Acquisition Gh s B W A A Y A A TR P

is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4E#
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. STEP ACQUISITION FROM AN ASSOCIATE
TO A SUBSIDIARY AND DISPOSAL OF AN
ASSOCIATE (Continueq)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
Step Acquisition is as follows:

42. 1t —E B’

EATIE—RIM B
AT T UEE @)

BN WHEZREREDHNT :

HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration of the additional 2% WHERFEEE2WREZRENRE
equity interest in Tiannuo Group (7,501)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired T8z RERIREEEY 57,636
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HWEMAFEE
included in cash flows from
investing activities 50,135

At the same time, the transaction costs of HK$215,000
incurred for the Step Acquisition were expensed and included
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Upon the completion of the above transactions, Tiannuo
Group, the former 49% associates of the Group became non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Since the Step Acquisition, Tiannuo group contributed
HK$86,284,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
HK$3,825,000 to the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Had the business combination taken place on 1 January 2020,
the revenue and the loss of Tiannuo Group for the year would
have been approximately HK$205,601,000 and HK$4,194,000
respectively.

RIEER AP WBEMITENR Z A
BEE215,000c ER BN LB EN GRS
BakEtME2mEmERERN TTTEES
pqo

iz 5mmE  REERNAEERE
BA9%RENHE N E A KEEIF
2ERBF AT

BETHOTWREUR REEBHE
_2_%¢+_ﬁ:+—az—%z&%
R B 1E86,284,0007T BY I A R0 7B 1
3,825,000 BN AFERHEN B
FAREIEZZE 2+ A =+—
HIEFENGaBarEMEZENE
R

WEHR_EZEFE—HF—B#£17
AEBIRAFRLRHEEER
HWAFMEKEEBLAD B ALOBIE
205,601,0007c F1#9 7 1#4,194,0007T ©
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HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

A)

B)

C)

D)

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year
loan amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s
immediate holding company, Prize Rich Inc.,
is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 3% per
annum. On 3 December 2020, the Group entered into
the Supplemental Loan Agreements with Prize Rich Inc.,
in which the loan repayment period for the loan was
extended by two years to December 2022. Interest rates
and all other terms and conditions of the loans remained
unchanged.*

which

On 12 March 2019, the Group and Prize Rich Inc. entered
into an extension deed to extend the maturity date of the
outstanding convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$166,232,000 by 5 years from 13 October 2019 to 13
October 2024, with all the terms and conditions of the
outstanding convertible bonds unchanged.*

On 28 February 2019, the Group obtained a loan
amounting to HK$980,000 from non-controlling interest,
T-Box Union (China) Financial Holdings Investments
Limited, which is unsecured with a fixed interest rate
4.65% per annum.*

On 26 June 2019, the Group signed an unsecured
loan contract with its former associate, Guangdong
Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited* (formerly known
as Guangdong Tiannuo Civil Explosives Co., Limited)*
(“Tiannuo”) amounting to RMB24,000,000. During the
year, the Group acquired an additional 2% equity interest
in Tiannuo. Tiannuo becomes a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. The loan was eliminated upon
consolidation during the year.*

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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A)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

E)

F)

G)

*

On 30 September 2019, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech Holdings
pursuant to which Nanhai Financial Hi-Tech Holdings has
conditionally agreed to purchase 25% equity interest in
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd* (“Guangdong
Financial Leasing”) at a consideration of RMB209,837,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$235,773,000) on behalf
of Guangdong Financial Leasing.**

On 25 November 2019, the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd*
(“Greengold Leasing”) (formerly known as Canton Risen
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.*), entered into the Entrusted
Shareholding Agreement with the 8 employees or
directors of the Group for the acquisition of 1.26% equity
interests of Shenzhen Weicheng Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership), the total amount of RMB504,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$553,000).#

On 22 June 2020, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage Investments Holdings
Limited* (“Nanhai Canmanage”) entered into the
Acquisition Agreement with its associate’ shareholder
Foshan City Nanhai District Lianhua Asset Operation
Ltd* (“Nanhai Lianhua”),
to which Nanhai Canmange acquired from Nanhai

& Management Co., pursuant
Lianhua an additional 2% equity interest in Tiannuo,
at a cash consideration of RMB6,676,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7,320,000).
acquisition, Nanhai Canmanage became the holding

Upon completion of

company of Tiannuo (and its subsidiaries).*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

G)

H)

(Continued)

Prior to the acquisition, the existing sales and purchase
agreement involving the sale and purchase of paper
boxes was entered into between Guangdong Nanhong
Chemical Co., Ltd.”
Tiannuo, and Guangdong Nanhai Chemical Factory Co.,
Ltd.* (“Nanhai Chemical”),
Tiannuo, in their respective ordinary and usual course of

(“Nanhong Chemical”), a subsidiary of

a substantial shareholder of

business. Upon completion of the Acquisition, Nanhong
Chemical has become a subsidiary of the Group through
Tiannuo, and Nanhai Chemical has become a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the purchased
amount of the paper boxes was approximately to
HK$4,265,000, which has been included in the sales
and service costs of the Group. The unit price of the
paper boxes was agreed to be in the range from RMB7.5
(equivalent to approximately HK$8.85) to RMB9.04
(equivalent to approximately HK$10.67) which was
determined by the parties after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the prevailing market price of paper
boxes of comparable quality and quantity. #

During the year, the Group acquired two one-year
loans, total amounting to RMB51,838,000 equivalent
to approximately HK$61,565,000 from non-controlling
interests. The interest rate of the loans are floating
interest rate with reference by the prevailing RMB
benchmark rate published by The People’s Bank of
China.*
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

J)

#i#

On 27 November 2020, Zhong Chuang Xing Ke
(Shenzhen) Investments Company Limited*, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into equity
transfer agreement with Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Limited®,
the Group’s immediate holding company, Prize Rich

Investment Co., a controlling shareholder of
Inc., in relation to dispose 5% equity interest in an equity
security at a net cash consideration of RMB7,592,000
(equivalent to HK$8,529,000),
valuation conducted by an independent professional

which was based on a

valuer, resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately
RMB1,442,000 (equivalent to HK$1,620,000).##

43. [ 5 »®

N ZEBEZEF+—HBZ+t8>
AEBZZEWNBABFAIER
CRIN HEBRAR (THa)HE
Bl BEREESEREERTRA
B (MmeZik)) (BEREZERAE
Prize Rich IncZ =R AZER) 25 5T A%
HEZERGR SREBIIGHERM
ETZHEZREREFENS
AR 17,592,0007t (FHE R 4B
#8,529,0007T) > HE — @K K
BEZO5%RE I ZHERT H
EWELIARME,442,0007T (18
E #4978 151,620,0007T) © *

Compensation of key management personnel J) FEEBEASHM

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key EEREMETEEEAEBRNER
management during the year was as follows: ZES

2020 2019
—ETTEHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Short-term employee benefits WHESER 7,303 7,718
Post-employment employee benefits BKRESEF 300 354
7,603 8,072

The remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel is proposed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

The transaction constituted an exempt connected transaction
under the Listing Rules.

The transaction constituted connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EM B A E
Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 FEBEZFERWBRABRZIZZEF
December 2020 are as follows: +-BA=+—H ZE¥‘|‘§ Lol S
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B BETREZYE
WEAR4H] BERY (BER) BARRE BEEAL TEER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
IEI%E “B-0F —B%f “B-0E —8%F “E-0F
Direct subsidiary
EEHBAT
China Investments Limited Hong Kong 200 200 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
TERERHERAT &% #151,0007 7A11,0007 REER
Indirect subsidiaries
HEREAT
Barmax Development Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BEERERAT &% Vet etyam NEEE
Botex Development Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
RELBERAT 55 Vet Ao N£EE
Canton Greengold Financial Leasing PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB 61.15 61.15  Financial leasing
Limited (formerly known as Canton Risen 671,222,179.15 643,589,645.25
Financial Leasing Co.,Limited) (Note 2)
BERHEHEHEARAT HREAR HE &R &R N1 NG REHE
REREERAF (W) 671,222,179.157  643,589,645.257C
Centon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BEERARAT &% Ao Aon N%EE
Charland Investment Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
HEERERAG! &% Ao Alon N%EE
China Alliance Industries Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
ERREBARAR &% Ao Alon N%EE
China Industrial Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
TETXERARAT &% Ao Alon REER
China Select Small Hotel Union Limited Hong Kong 9,720,000 9,720,000 HK$9,720,000 HK$9,720,000 51 51 Hotel management
BXRERIHARAT &% it B EEER
9,720,0007C 9,720,0007
CIH Finance Investments Holdings Limited Hong Kong 4 4 HK$4 HK$4 100 100 Financial Investment
REEESRHEERRERAS &% et et SREE
Greenswood Property Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property investment
BRNEERAS &% et ety NERE
* For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuead) 4. T EMB AT @
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B e v BEIREZHE
WERE%HE EERY (BER) BARRE BREMM TEER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Skt “E2-nF EE=rr 8- k- k52 80§
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB 72 72 Investment in the
Construction Co., Ltd" (Note 2) 910,000,000 910,000,000 development and
Construction of
industrial park
ERPERNERABRAT (H:2) HiE &R TER N AEE BRARREXE
910,000,0007C 910,000,000 k8
Guangdong Sensing Technology Limited PRC N/A N/A RMBS,000,000 RMBS,000,000 100 100 Big data business
(Note 1)
EREERRARAT (1) HiE &R TER N AEE RHBEH
5,000,0007C 5,000,0007
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive PRC N/A N/A RMB9,000,000 RMB9,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive
Health Technology Limited* (Note 1) service elderly care
EREERARRRRERAF (H31) HiE &R TER N AEE BEGERE
9,000,0007C 9,000,0007
Guilin Plaza Hotel (Note 1) PRC N/A N/A - US$10,400,000 US$10,400,000 100 100 Hotel operation
ERELEE (1) HE &R FEE  10,400,000%7 1040000057 BEER
Hong Kong Lanhai Vision Hong Kong 1 1 HK$1 HK$1 100 100 Financial leasing
Investment Limited
FEREESRERRAT &% it b AT BEL
Jofra Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 1,000 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
&% #151,0007 A11,0007 REER
Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng Timber PRC N/A N/A~ HK$81,000,000 HK$81,000,000 100 100 Investment Holding
Company Limited* (Note 1)
BUTHEREAZERAT (1) HE TER TER  A¥81,000,0007  #H81,000,0007 RERR
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage PRC N/A N/A~ RMB30,000,000  RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Investments Holdings Limited* (Note 1)
BUbBEERERRAF (M) HiE &R TBR N AE# NERE
30,000,000 30,000,007
Kingsgrand Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Property trading
BRYRERAT &% #110,00070 #1510,00070 NEEE
Langmax Investment Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BEREERAR &% ek ety NEEE
Lina Development Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BEXRERAF &% Ao ety NEEE
Metropolitan Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
PHERERAT &% ek petya NEEE
Natural View Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$100,000 HK$100,000 100 100 Property trading
XREEERAT &% 100,000 10000070 NEEE

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FEWBE LT @

Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
B e tdive BETREZHE
WEAEAE EERY (BER) BARRE BREMM TEER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Sk “2-nF EE=rr 8- k- k52 80§
Rich Asset Development Limited* Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
AREBERAR &% Vet etcya NEEE
Rich Horn Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
HHERBRAT &% Vet etcya NEEE
Senicon Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
BAREERAT &% ek etysm NEEE
Sabrina Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 1 US$1 US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERECER/ 17T %7 REER
&%
Sino Sense Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
ERYRERAT &% Vet petya NEEE
Southern Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
property investment
AABRAT &% #110,0007 #110,0007 RERRRNERE
Tally International Traders Limited Hong Kong 8,000 8,000 HK$800,000 HK$800,000 100 100 Property Trading
ARERRRERAT &% #8000 76000007 N£EE
Trener Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
EEREERAT &% Ao Aon N%EE
Universal Talent Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property trading
FRERARAT &% Ao Aon N%EE
Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) PRC N/A N/A~ RMB150,000,000  RMB150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Gompany Limited* (Note 1)
REIER (RY) HEBRAR (M) HE TER TER AR AEE RERR
150,000,0007¢ 150,000,00070
Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive PRC N/A N/A~ RMB15,000,000  RMB15,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Health Operation Company Limited* care services
(Note 1)
ERNEARRELELEERAD # &R TBR N AE# BEGERE
LiEa)) 15,000,0007C 15,000,00070
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan PRC N/A N/A RMB100,000 RMB100,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Nursing Home Company Limited* care services
Limited* (Note 1)
BUTHEENEEERERAT HE TER TER  ARK100000%  ARE100,0007 RERARK
Lial)
Foshan City Nanhai District Jiujiang PRC N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Taoyuan Nursing Home* care services
BUFHEENIRERRR HE TER TER TER TER RERARK
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan PRC N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Welfare Center Co., Ltd* (Note 1) care services
BUmEERHNEENTOBRAT HE &R TBR FER TBR BEGERE
(Bzt)
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan Rehabilitation PRC N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Hospital Co., Limited** care services
BUBEERIEREERERAD" h &R TBR TER TBR BEGERE

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

44. FEWB LT @

Place of
incorporation or
registration/ No. of shares issued
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
BLEAEELY BEIREZHE
WERE%HE EERY (BER) BARRE BREMM TEER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z82%% e k3 —82%% 8- k- k33 ZZ-NE
Foshan City Xianhuwan Development PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB I 72 Property Investment
Co. Ltd" (Note 3) 203,000,000 203,000,000
BUHLAEELERAR (i) HiE &R TER N NE¥% NERE
203,000,0007C 203,000,000
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB 51 49 Manufacture and
Co., Limited" (formerly known as 102,040,863 102,040,863 sale of emulsion
Guangdong Tiannuo Civi industrial
Explosives Co., Limited)** detonating cord
BRAERERRAT HiE &R TER N NE¥% RERBELLIEER
(3% ERREREBRAT) 102,040,8637% 102,040,8637C T2EER
Foshan Nanhua Logistics Co., Limited** PRC N/A N/A RMB500,000 RMB500,000 51 49 Transportation and
carriage services
for general and
hazardous goods
HLECEEERAR: HiE &R FEE  ARME500000%  AEH500,0007 EUREBEER
BRENES
Guangdong Nanhong Chemical PRC N/A N/A~ RMB50,000,000  RMB10,000,000 51 49 Manufacture and
Co., Limited"™ sale of emulsion
industrial
detonating cord
BRELLIARAG HiE &R TER AE% NE¥% RERBELLIEER
50,000,0007 10,000,0007 T2EER
Foshan Xianhuwan Hotel Management PRC N/A N/A RMB3,000,000 - 72 - Hotel management
Co., Limited™" (Note 3) and services and
catering
BULHEEEERERAT" (H3) HE &R &R AE# - EEEEREDRY
3,000,0007C
Guangdong Province Fu Neng Power PRC N/A N/A~ RMB20,000,000 - 72 - Generation and sale of
Co., Limited** (Note 3) electricity
BEREMEENERAR (H73) HE &R &R AE# - BERHERN
20,000,0007¢
Note 1: The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprise WEE1 . ZWB AR AR PEAIZINIINGE
established in the PRC. BEhE-
Note 2: The subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity/joint a2 . ZMWBRARRFPEFMAFRIIE
venture companies in the PRC. EVa G
Note 3: The subsidiaries are wholly owned enterprise established in W3 ZMWBRARARPEALINEBE
the PRC. o
# The subsidiaries were deregistered during the reporting period # ZH B AT BRIRE AR EH
* The subsidiaries were acquired during the reporting period * ZBARRREHARUE
" The subsidiaries were set up during the reporting period i ZB AR RS AR

For identification purpose only
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44.

45.

46.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

With effect from 1 January 2021, Mr. Cheng Weidong has been
appointed as an executive director and the deputy managing
director of the Company.

Further details of the appointment are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 4 January 2021.

On 8 January 2021,
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated

Greengold Leasing entered into a

in the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the
ownership of the assets from this company for an aggregate
consideration of RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$143,760,000),
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5 years.

which would be leased back to this

Further details of the finance leases are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 11 January 2021.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

46. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 13 January 2021,
agreements with Hunan Jinneng Technology Co.,
(HmEkERERMHBRAT),

(Contract 1) and other equipment (Contract 2) related to

Nanhong entered into two purchase
Limited*
to purchase main equipment

“Industrial explosives production line and line technical
modification project (procurement and installation of process
equipment)”. The contract amount is RMB24,977,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,664,000) (Contract 1) and
RMB4,695,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,576,000)
(Contract 2). Deposits are RMB2,498,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,967,000) (Contract 1) and RMB497,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$590,000) (Contract 2)
respectively. For both contracts, Nanhong is required to pay
40% of the contract amount within 15 days after signing
the contract; and 55% of the contract amount after the
relevant equipment is shipped to the designated location
and the confirmation letter is issued; the remaining 5%
shall be paid when no quality problem occurred after one
year. On January 2021, Nanhong had paid RMB9,991,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,866,000) (Contract 1) and
RMB1,878,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,230,000)
(Contract 2).

On 3 February 2021,
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated

Greengold Leasing entered into a

in the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the
ownership of the assets from this company for an aggregate
consideration of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000,000),
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5 years.

which would be leased back to this

Further details of the finance lease are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 3 February 2021.

46.

REHEBEE @)

R —F—HA+=H EiEHE
ETRERMERMDERABIERET 7 WD
%AH CIREHB(TEIFEEE: 7%%
ERMNEER (IERBEESZE))
BB ARME24,977,0007c (FHZE
R 129,664,00070) (FE—) RE
R HE AR 14,605,000 (FEER
#78165,576,0007T) (BEZ) < HEIR
HE DA ARE2,498,0007T (FHE
498182, 967,00070) (BE—) R A
K 1497,0007T (1B 714 15590,000
7t) (BED) -MHEEEREEIE
RETEREBISAN XNTEREHE
B40% ; 5 R & 4 & B 15 T #th &5 0 18
ERBLAEIXNE ZNEREHE

B955%; BF FTRISRTERK EHRE —F
NEREULTEHEMBETRMNB -

T2 F—B HUEEZNARR

9,991,0007T (HHEZE L4974 1511,866,000

7t (BR—) R AR®1,878,0007t (16
LR A HIE2,230,0007T) (BRI ©

A —

A\ ZIE I FA-H #=HEH
—BRPERIIZERETLRE (B
UEZH)TUIBERE LERE
AR #130,000,0007t (FBE R LB
156,000,0007T) BEZABWEBEEZ
FrER WEERBRBEFZEAT #
BERRGE RS AF-

ERILRMEEEZE—DF BN
rEBARA T —F"A=HZ

“H
YN
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

46. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

On 7 February 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into finance
leases with three limited liability companies incorporated in the
PRC, all independent third parties, to acquire the ownership
of the assets from these companies for an aggregate
consideration of RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$32,400,000), which would be leased back to these
companies for their own use and possession for a term of 3
years.

Further details of these finance leases are set out in the
Group’s announcement dated 9 February 2021.

On 3 March 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC, an independent third party, to acquire the
ownership of the assets from this company for an aggregate
consideration of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,900,000), which would be leased back to this
company for its own use and possession for a term of 5 years.

Further details of the finance lease are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 4 March 2021.

On 22 March 2021, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
an independent third party, to acquire the ownership of the
assets from this company for an aggregate consideration of
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$71,580,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its own use
and possession for a term of 5 years.

Further details of the finance lease are set out in the Group’s
announcement dated 23 March 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. ZABI BB IR EFEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—EEF —E—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 BT T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 23,607 23,607
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A BB 1,378,713 1,416,707
Pledged bank deposits BIRFIRITER 25,438 27,234
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREEBY 259 228
Other receivables HAthfE W =R IE 224 230
1,404,634 1,444,399
Current liabilities it R=N
Borrowings EEN 697,826 701,010
Other payables Hn (I8 1,780 3,149
Loan from an immediate holding BERERABZER
company - 90,000
699,606 794,159
Net current assets M EEFE 705,028 650,240
Total assets less current liabilities EEE R REI&E 728,635 673,847
Capital and reserves % 75 R k45
Share capital [N 35 171,233 171,233
Reserves s 344,837 389,161
Equity attributable to owners of ZA&AT#EB A
the Company FEfLE 2 516,070 560,394
Non-current liability ERBEE
Loan from an immediate holding BERERABZER 32d
company 90,000 -
Convertible notes ARG B4R 122,565 113,453
212,565 113,453
728,635 673,847
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved EABHBRARERZZEZI—F=
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March R=+tHEEFSHERRETE I
2021 and are signed on its behalf by: BUTESAREE !
HE XIANGMING HUANG ZHIHE
fl /1 BR BEM
Director Director
EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. ZAGI BRI REEE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves EREFEEZES
Convertible
Share note equity Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
BVt
IR E ke REBEE Mt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T
At 1 January 2019 KZE—hE—F—8H 725,199 34,700 (449,151) 310,748
Transfer upon early redemption PRI R BRI D[R ZE
of convertible notes S - (84,700) 30,135 (4,565)
Recognition of equity BRRAHEREE Y
component of R
convertible notes - 56,616 - 56,616
Profit for the year REERF - - 26,362 26,362
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—hE
1 January 2020 +ZB=+—Hxk%
—E-Z25—HF—H 725,199 56,616 (392,654) 389,161
Loss for the year RFEEERE - - (44,324) (44,324)
At 31 December 2020 N_E_ZTHF
+-A=+-8 725,199 56,616 (436,978) 344,837
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48. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and is not distributable but may be applied in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares
or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchases
of shares

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve represents general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund which are set up by
subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC by
way of appropriation from the profit after taxation in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC. The rate of appropriation of the general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund is subject to the decision of the
board of Directors of the individual PRC subsidiaries, but
the minimum appropriation rate for the general reserve
is 10% of the profit after taxation for the each year, until
when the accumulated balance reaches 50% of the
total registered capital of the subsidiary. Pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, if approvals
are obtained from the relevant government authorities,
the general reserve can be used to set off accumulated
losses or to increase the capital, and the enterprise

expansion fund can be used to increase the capital.

e A5 AR B e

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

48. EBZMEEKREN

(i)

(ii)

B 15 i 8

KRosEBERNEZBESEREEZ
BRETROMEEZ HE &
FunBAFTRIK ERRE A H
R&F R B e 4 AT H# U
BRARTEABARRATRRET
ZRETRM

/N

FEEABEEREBEESRBESR
BES EHEFTEMIKEE
ZHWERE > RIEREBRDEHF
BEHRBAT BRKREBERF] P
EREMHRIL - HEESRDE
BERESZBNLEERLHMER S
BB ABSIZEEEET  HHE
HEEZREENLEELEF KR
REBAI0% BEERBEGHE
HZME AR ZEFMEA50%
% 1E o IRIE P A REE B R oA R
HE ENEEHBNERi
EoRRERE ST RERERS
BENENERA MEXBERE
R BIEGME A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_ZF+_"_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

48. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Hotel properties revaluation reserve

Hotel properties are revalued annually based on
independent professional valuations on an open market
value basis. Changes in the values of hotel properties are
dealt with as movement in the hotel properties revaluation
reserve. If the reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation
deficit, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
difference arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group whose
reporting currency is not Hong Kong dollars. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
of foreign currencies set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Convertible note equity reserve

Convertible note equity reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible bond
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy of Convertible note set out in Note
4 to the consolidation financial statements.
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48. REZMHEERBEN @

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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48. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(vi) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represented additional contributions made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and,
in case of an acquisition of an additional non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interest acquired.

(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve comprises of gain on partial disposal of
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Sino Rock.

/> & =3
e MR b T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - ZF+_FB=+—HLILEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(vi)

(vii)

48. EZMHEERBEN @

BARGHAE

BRGNS NS
R ZEINEE R EWE—RE
Mt B AR EINFIER BTG R
TR AT B I R o
ZERR

Hithf# ks

HittfEHERHE—HNE AT
(PEZM) 28 MmEmz Wate
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Five Years Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=+—-HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
_i_/\i _tﬁi _/\ﬁi _ﬁ..& —T—VE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BETT BETT BRI
(Restated)
(&51)
RESULTS A
Revenue EER 24,554 29,846 79,550 161,065 293,555
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERH/ (58 (2,709) 27,630 55,815 81,428 (65,506)
Discontinued operations ERIEREER
loss for the year AEEFE (1,628) - - (1,516) (530)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEERNBEEA
attributable to owners FE1S (B518) /& (4,331) 31,266 42,383 68,612 (83,871)
(Loss)/earnings per share S5k (8518 /&BH
from continuing and BELEREKE
discontinued operations s
Basic =N (HK0.25 cent) HK1.83 cents  HK2.48 cents  HK4.01 cents (HK4.90 cents)
(Bi0.25Ml)  EE1.831L B 481l B4l (B¥E4.901l)
Diluted e (HKO.25 cent) HK1.83 cents  HK2.48 cents  HK4.01 cents (HK4.90 cents)
(Brs0.25Ml)  EE1.831 B 4811 B4l (A¥E4.901l)
Year ended 31 December
BHE+-A=t+—HILHFE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—~E Tt —N\F —hE BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BETT BETT BRI
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEKEE
Total assets BEEQLE 1,316,578 2,277,412 3,460,537 5,147,666 6,105,371
Total liabilities BEEE (385,291) (1,099,553 (2,129,217 (3,441,696) (4,117,039)
Non-controlling interests R gL - (157,625) (338,205) (600,764) (843,935)
Equity contributable to owners AT HEE AELER 931,287 1,020,234 993,115 1,105,206 1,144,397

*

for the discontinued operation.
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Particulars of Major Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December WKW _Z_ZH&E+_HA=+—H ' &xEBFAE

2020 are as follows: ZEEMEENFMUT :
Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE TREZ L
218/ e At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  THER
(sg.m.)
SN
Hotel properties
BIEYE
Guilin Plaza, 20 Li Jiang Lu 100 Medium Hotel 29,746 Existing N/A
Guilin, Guangxi,
The PRC.
FR B R 7 AT R B 100 #H IR 29746  HE TiEA
0SB E R
Properties
ES
Unit No.1, 14 & 15 on 5th Floor, 100 Medium Commercial 429 Existing N/A
Wing On Plaza,
No.62 Mody Road,
Kowloon.
BENE 100 45 HE 429  BE el
eS|
3786257
KEZBEH5E
1 14K15%
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
B8/ At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  =THER
(sg.m.)
(FHR)
Properties (Continued)
nE (&)
12th to 13th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 3,048 Existing N/A
Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,
6 Jinke Road,
Nanhai District
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 3048 HAE TiEA
IR g R

ERAEES KR
BESBRREE
12-1318
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
218/ At HEER i BEEmE  ERBR  =HER
(sg.m.)
SN
Properties (Continued)
nE (&)
Block AB and F, 72 Medium Commercial 16,218 Existing N/A
Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
No. 3 Yangguang Road,
Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,
Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
BT EEE 72 GES 16218 BE TEA
FHE A IR E R E
5 % B8 3%
fllih 72 78 5% BI5AB K FEE
Zhen An Village, Luo Le Village, 51 Medium Commercial 466,165 Existing N/A
Li Zhi Village,
Lian Tang Town,
Gao Yao District, Zhaoging City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
GAlTiEeay=1 ) 51 FH EES 466,165 HE TiEfR
EETRER
ERE

AR - BY - BRA
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Particulars of Major Properties

Effective Category
Name/Location % held of lease Type
ERFE
B8/ At HEER il

Total gross
floor area

on completion
RREZ
BEREEA
(sg.m.)
(FHR)

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
R
SERER

Investment properties

REWNE

17th Floor 100 Medium Commercial
Sing-Ho Finance

Building,

Nos.166/168 Gloucester

Road,

Hong Kong.

BB 100 HH [GES
ELE

166/168%%

ENHBAEITE

1st to 11th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial
Phase 1

Guangdong - Hong Kong

Finance & Technology Park

Guicheng Street,

6 Jinke Road,

Nanhai District, Foshan City,

Guangdong Province

The PRC

hEERE 100  #H EES
Il E R

ERAE o R6T

BETRMREIE

1-1112
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v [ 8 3 £ B £ B 23 5]
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112

15,818

15,818

Existing

BE

Existing

RE

N/A

NER

N/A
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Name/Location

Bt/ e

Effective
% held
EREA
BALE

Category
of lease

TAEHA

Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
floor area Expected year
Type on completion Stage of completion
RREZ L
2] BEEmE  ERBR  =HER
(sg.m.)
SN

Investment properties (Continued)

REWE (&)

Block C, D and E,
Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
No. 3 Yangguang Road,
Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,
Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

FLTEER

FHE A IR E R E

5 % B8 3%

fil# 2 ¥ B%C, DRERE

C3-1, C3-2, C5,

No. 8 Li zhong Road,
Danzao Logistics Center,
Danzao Town,

Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC

FILTEER

FHt &

FHE WAL

MR 85%
C3-1,C3-2,C5

72

72

72

72

Medium

P

Medium

P

Commercial 12,335 Existing N/A

GES 12,335 HA TEf

Commercial 15,506 Existing N/A

GES 15,506 HAE TEf
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Particulars of Major Properties

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE RREZ L
B8/ At HEER i wEEmE  ERBR  =THER
(sa.m.)
(FHR)
Properties held for sale
HENE
Level 2-3 of Block C of 100 Medium Commercial 1,250 Existing N/A
Shantou Commercial Plaza at
the junction of Jinsha Road East
and Huashan Road,
Shantou Special Economic Zone,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 1250 BE TEA

WSB AT s
SURBEEZNEIR
WERBREHEAR
CRE2-3iE
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